
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
MONDAY, APRIL 23, 2018 AT 7:00 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, LEDUC CIVIC CENTRE 
1 ALEXANDRA PARK, LEDUC, ALBERTA 

PAGE 1 

 

 

 I. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 
 
 

 II. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND RELATED BUSINESS 

 A. Select Items for Debate 

 B. Vote on Items not Selected for Debate 
 
 

 III. ADOPTION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 

 A. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting held Monday, 
April 9, 2018 

  
 

 IV. RECOGNITION ITEMS 

 There are no Recognition Items for the Agenda. 
 
 

 V. PUBLIC COMMENTARY 
 
 

 VI. PUBLIC HEARING 

 There is no Public Hearing for the Agenda. 
 
 

 VII. PRESENTATIONS 

C. Klooster A. Mayor’s Poetry City Challenge – Poetry Reading 
 
 

 VIII. BUSINESS 

Insp. K. Kunetzki A. Introduction of Sgt. D. Kendall, Acting OIC 
 

Insp. K. Kunetzki B. RCMP Annual Update 

R. Yeung C. Municipal Grant – Leduc Arts Foundry 
 
 

 



REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
MONDAY, APRIL 23, 2018 AT 7:00 P.M. 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, LEDUC CIVIC CENTRE 
1 ALEXANDRA PARK, LEDUC, ALBERTA 

PAGE 2 

 

 

 IX. BYLAWS 

J. Cannon A. Bylaw No. 975-2018 - 2018 Property Tax Rate Bylaw (2nd & 3rd Readings) 
 

S. Losier B. Bylaw No. 970-2017 – Amendment to Bylaw No. 809-2013 Land Use Bylaw 
(1st Reading) 
 

S. Losier C. Bylaw No. 971-2017 - Amendment to Bylaw No. 767-2011 Business Licence 
Bylaw (1st Reading) 
 

C. Chisholm D. Bylaw No. 981-2018 - Amendment to the Community Standards Bylaw  
No. 711-2008 (1st Reading) 

 

S. Davis / 
B. Loewen 

E. Bylaw No. 957-2017 - Council Code of Conduct Bylaw (2nd & 3rd Readings) 
 
 

 X. PUBLIC COMMENTARY 
 
 

 XI. IN-CAMERA ITEMS 

Mayor B. Young A. Council Appointment of a Public Member to the Assessment Review Board 
(FOIP s. 24 & 29) 

 
 

 XII. RISE AND REPORT FROM IN-CAMERA ITEMS 
 
 

 XIII. INFORMATION REPORTS 
 
A. Mayor’s Report 
 
 

 XIV. ADJOURNMENT 

 
 
 



 

 

 
ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

 
 

 
This is your opportunity to make an addition, deletion or 

revision to the Agenda 

 

 
 
 

I. 



ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND 

RELATED BUSINESS 

II.



UNCONFIRMED 
MINUTES OF LEDUC REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MONDAY, APRIL 9, 2018 

I wvo:J~ Leuuc 
PAGE 27 

Present: Mayor B. Young, Councillors B. Beckett, G. Finstad, B. Hamilton, L. Hansen, 
T. Lazowski and L. Tillack 

Also Present: P. Benedetto, City Manager, and S. Davis, City Clerk 

Mayor B. Young called the meeting to order at 7:03 pm. 

I. ADOPTION OF AGENDA 

MOVED by Councillor G. Finstad that the Agenda be adopted as presented. 
Motion Carried Unanimously 

II. ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION AND RELATED BUSINESS 

A. Selected Items for Debate 

The following items were selected for debate: 

VIII. BUSINESS 

A Financial Statement Presentation/Auditor's Report 
B. 2017 Audited Financial Statement 
C. Leduc Environmental Advisory Board ("LEAB") 
D. Annual Environmental Progress Report 
E. Edmonton International Airport Accord Transit Services and Funding 

IX. BYLAWS 

A Bylaw No. 975-2018-2018 Property Tax Rate Bylaw (1st Reading) 
B. Bylaw No. 976-2018 - Amendment to Southfork Area Structure Plan 

(2nd and 3rd Readings) 
C. Bylaw No. 973-2018 - Redistricting Southfork Stage 7B (2nd Reading) 

B. Vote on Items not Selected for Debate 

Votes recorded under item headings. 

Ill. ADOPTION OF PREVIOUS MINUTES 

A. Approval of Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting held Monday, March 26, 2018 

MOVED by Councillor L. Tillack that the minutes of the Regular Council Meeting held Monday, March 26, 
2018, be approved as presented. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 



UNCONFIRMED 
MINUTES OF LEDUC REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MONDAY, APRIL 9, 2018 
PAGE 28 

IV. RECOGNITION ITEMS 

There were no recognition items. 

V. PUBLIC COMMENTARY 

M. Nesimiuk, a resident of Southfork, and teacher at Willow Park School, spoke to 
Council on two matters: 

1. M. Nesmiuk is a member of a group of community gardeners ("gardeners"). The site 
the gardens are located on is a future school site; however, the gardeners would like it 
to be considered as a permanent location. M. Pieters, General Manager, 
Infrastructure and Planning, advised that the site is a high priority site for a new 
school, but advised that Administration will contact M. Nesmiuk in order to work with 
the gardeners. 

2. M. Nesimiuk also spoke to Council about concerns that the Administration of Willow 
Park School have relative to the high level of social service needs. M. Nesimiuk 
advised that children as young as five are home alone, children as young as eight are 
looking after younger siblings and a number of children come to school hungry. The 
school has started a cooking class to help children learn to prepare their own 
breakfast; however, a home alone program is required . The school has met a number 
of road blocks in trying to meet this need. M. Nesimiuk requested assistance to 
provide a home alone program directed to children aged five and up, in partnership 
with Family and Community Support Services. 

D. Melvie, General Manager, Community and Protective Services, will have a member 
of Administration contact M. Nesimiuk. 

VI. PUBLIC HEARING 

Mayor B. Young provided an explanation of the Public Hearing Process. 

A. Bylaw No. 976-2018-Amendment to Southfork Area Structure Plan 

Mayor B. Young declared the Public Hearing for Bylaw No. 976-2018 open at 7:17 p.m. 

Written Submissions: 

No written submissions were received. 

Presentations: 

Administration 

K. Woitt, Director, Planning and Development, made a presentation. 

Other Presentations 

There were no other presentations. 

Mayor B. Young declared the Public Hearing for Bylaw No. 976-2018 closed at 7:21 pm. 

I ~ffYOJ~ Leuuc 

Responsible 
Department 

IP 

CPS 



UNCONFIRMED 
MINUTES OF LEDUC REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MONDAY, APRIL 9, 2018 
PAGE 29 

B. Bylaw No. 973-2018 - Redistricting Southfork Stage 7B 

Mayor B. Young declared the Public Hearing for Bylaw No. 973-2018 open at 7:22 p.m. 

Written Submissions: 

No written submissions were received. 

Presentations: 

Administration 

K. Woitt, Director, Planning and Development, made a presentation. 

Other Presentations 

There were no other presentations. 

Mayor B. Young declared the Public Hearing for Bylaw No. 973-2018 closed at 7:24 pm. 

VII. PRESENTATIONS 

A. Alberta Figure Skating Foundation 

I crrroJ~ Leuuc 

M. McDonald, Vice-Chair, Alberta Figure Skating Foundation, and M. Strome, Executive Director, Skate 
Canada, made a presentation providing background on the Wild Rose Skating Competition ("Competition") 
and why the City of Leduc was chosen to host the Competition. 

M. McDonald advised that within two years the Competition will need to have three surfaces. Currently, the 
Leduc Recreation Centre ("LRC") has three surfaces, however, without sound attenuation between two of 
the three ice surfaces, only two ice surfaces are useable. M. Strome advised that there is a possibility that 
the Competition could have to move in order to be able to use three ice surfaces. 

M. McDonald was asked if the sound attenuation was installed, could a multi-year hosting agreement be 
entered into. M. Strome advised that a multi-year hosting agreement is a possibility and that the use of 
three ice surfaces could lead to other competitions coming into the LRC. 

D. Melvie, General Manager, Community and Protective Services, M. McDonald and M. Strome answered 
Council's questions. 

VIII. BUSINESS 

A. Financial Statement Presentation/Auditor's Report 

S. Walker and C. Cholak, MNP LLP, made a PowerPoint presentation (Attached) and 
answered Council's questions. 

Council requested they be provided with a broader view of capital expenditures from 
comparator municipalities more similar in size to the City of Leduc. 

Responsible 
Department 

cs 



UNCONFIRMED 
MINUTES OF LEDUC REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MONDAY, APRIL 9, 2018 
PAGE 30 

B. 2017 Audited Financial Statements 

J. Cannon, Director, Finance, made a presentation. 

MOVED by Councillor G. Finstad that, pursuant to section 281 of the Municipal Government Act, Council 
hereby receive the 2017 Auditors Report, inclusive of the year-end financial statement. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

C. Leduc Environmental Advisory Board ("LEAB") 

S. Ruddy, Vice-Chair, LEAB, made a PowerPoint presentation (Attached) and 
answered Council 's questions. 

Council thanked LEAB for all the initiatives being brought forward and for the 
collaborations with other community groups. 

Councillor G. Finstad requested that Administration ensure that there are sorting bins at 
all outdoor events as the City of Leduc is an environmental leader. M. Pieters, General 
Manager, Infrastructure and Planning, advised that the matter wil l be looked into. 

D. Annual Environmental Progress Report 

Responsible 
Department 

IP 

K. Chomlak, Environmental Sustainability Coordinator, and S. Olson, Director, Engineering, made a 
PowerPoint presentation (Attached) and answered Council 's questions. 

E. Edmonton International Airport Accord Transit Services and Funding 

M. Pieters, General Manager, Infrastructure and Planning, and K. Wenzel, Manager, Public Transportation, 
made a PowerPoint presentation (Attached) and answered Council 's questions. 

MOVED by Councillor B. Hamilton that Council authorize the expenditure of approximately $700,000, 
funded by the General Contingency Reserve that is not currently in the 2018 budget. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

IX. BYLAWS 

A. Bylaw No. 975-2018- 2018 Property Tax Rate Bylaw (1s1 Reading) 

J. Gannon, Director, Finance, G. Damo, Manager, Revenue Services, and P. Benedetto, City Manager, 
made a PowerPoint presentation (Attached). 

P. Benedetto and I. Sasyniuk, General Manager, Corporate Services, answered Council's questions. 



UNCONFIRMED 
MINUTES OF LEDUC REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MONDAY, APRIL 9, 2018 
PAGE 31 

Administration recommends Bylaw No. 975-2018 receive first reading. 

MOVED by Councillor T. Lazowski that Council give Bylaw No. 975-2018 First Reading. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

B. Bylaw No. 976-2018 -Amendment to Southfork Area Structure Plan (2nd & 3rd Readings) 

K. Woitt, Director, Planning and Development, made a PowerPoint presentation (Attached) and answered 
Council 's questions. 

Administration recommends Bylaw No. 976-2018 receive second and third readings. 

MOVED by Councillor T. Lazowski that Council give Bylaw No. 976-2018 Second Reading. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

MOVED by Councillor G. Finstad that Council give Bylaw No. 976-2018 Third Reading. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

C. Bylaw No. 973-2018 - Redistricting Southfork Stage 7B (2nd Reading) 

K. Woitt, Director, Planning and Development, made a PowerPoint presentation (Attached) 

Administration recommends Bylaw No. 973-2018 receive second reading. 

MOVED by Councillor B. Beckett that Council give Bylaw No. 973-2018 Second Reading. 

Motion Carried Unanimously 

X. PUBLIC COMMENT ARY 

G. Crnikovic, a resident of Southfork, stated that there is a need for more medium density housing, 
particularly a true mixed use inclusive of retail development. 

Council advised that there is more retail development planned for Southfork. 

XI. IN-CAMERA ITEMS 

There were no in-camera items. 

XII. RISE AND REPORT FROM IN-CAMERA ITEMS 



UNCONFIRMED 
MINUTES OF LEDUC REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

MONDAY, APRIL 9, 2018 
PAGE 32 

XIII. UPDATES FROM BOARDS AND COMMITTEES 

A. Council Member Updates from Boards and Committees 

There were no updates. 

B. Council Member Updates from Commissions, Authorities, Other 

There were no updates. 

XIV. INFORMATION REPORTS 

A. Mayor's Report 

B. Building Inspector's Report 

C. Newly Issued Business Licences 

There was no discussion. 

XV. ADJOURNMENT 

The Council meeting adjourned at 9:27 pm. 

8. Young 
MAYOR 

S. Davis 
CITY CLERK 



Scott Walker, CPA, CA, CAFM 
Presented by: Chris Cholak, CPA, CA 

Date: April 9, 2018 

Administrative Items 

• Ask questions any time. 

MNP.. 

• If we can not answer directly, we will add to a list and 
address later or after the presentation. 

M COIJNl ING ) CONSUi TING > TAX MNP ca 

1 



Independent Audit Opinion MN/?. 

Opinion 

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the City of Leduc as at December 31, 2017, and the results of its operations, changes in net 
financial assets (debt), and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector 
accounting standards. 

MN'P LLP April 9, 2018 
Leduc, Alberta Chartered Professional Accountants 

A(( OUN TING ) CON'>UL'ING ) TAX MNP ca 

-Statement of Operations MN/?. 

Budgot 
2017 

(Note 18) 2017 2016 

Revenue 

Not munlclpal property taxes (Schedule 11) 43,384.268 43,218,446 41 ,535,230 

Utnlty services 21 ,826.600 21,346,879 20,207,552 

Sales, user charges and costs recovered 8.127.217 9,112,227 8.869,108 

Govemment transfers (Schedule 111) 7,865,231 8,572,860 8,113,735 

Contributions and levies 1,041 ,000 3,890,086 1,363.165 

Property revenue 2,047,358 2, 119,814 2.104,392 

lnt0f0$l and penalties 1.698.500 1,605,100 1,982,460 

Enforcement services 1,820.000 1,335,790 2,267.456 

Gain on dis~ .. 1 of assets . . 7.158 

87.810 174 91 201 200 86.450.256 

AU OUNTINC > lONSULTING > TAX MNP ca 

2 



.1 

Revenue (millions of dollars> MNI? 
1.3 1.6 

• Net municipal property taxes 

• Utility services 

Sales, user charges and costs 
recovered 

• Government transfers 

• Contributions and levies 

Property revenue 

• Enforcement services 

• Interest and penalties 

ACCOUNTINC > CONSULTING > TAX MNP ca 

Property Taxes (millions of dollars> 

2017 

Total property taxes: 
$61,075,265 

0.1 

2016 

Total property taxes: 
$57,415,254 

MNI? 

• Net municipal 
property taxes 

• Leduc Foundation 

Provincial 
education 

AC ( OUNl INC > CONSULTING > TAX MNP ca 

3 



-Statement of Operations MNR. 

Ellpenses 

Amortization (Noto 18) 

Utility and public serAces 

Administration 

ProtecUve services 

Engineering 

Facility services 

Recreation and community development 

Planning services 

Family and community support seivices 

Library 

Loss on dis!!!!!!!l of assets (Nore 91 

Budget 
2017 

(Nole 18) 

22,442,506 

16,952,577 

16,344,187 

7,613,984 

7,060,713 

6,279,525 

3,604,136 

1,666,396 

1,196,704 

83,162,733 

2017 2016 

22,318,384 20,352,013 

21,026,402 22,218,076 

16,225,101 15,460,076 

15,804,968 16,692,624 

7,517,495 4,756,883 

7,093,177 7,272,224 

5,768,084 6,054,502 

3,314,558 4,365,565 

1,355,172 1,281,441 

1,224,407 1,175,736 

309,828 

101957 576 99 629 163 

ACCOUNTING > CONSULTING > TAX MNP ca 

Expenses by Function (millions) 
MNR. 

1.2 • Utility and public services 

• Amortization 

Administration 

• FCSS 

• Engineering 

Protective services 

• Facility services 

• Recreation and community 
development 

• Planning services 

•library 

ACCOUNTING ) CONSULTING ) TAX MNP ca 

4 



I 

Expenses by Object (millions) 
MNR 

• Salaries, wages and benefits 

• Amortization 

Contract services 

• Cost of utilities sold 

• Materials and supplies 

Utilities 

• Interest 

• Grants to organizations 

• Other 

ACCOUNllN G ) CONSULTING > TAX MNP ca 

-
Consolidated Statement of MNR 

Financial Position 

2017 2016 

Financial assets 

Cash 9 ,047,133 10,417,310 

Investments (Note 2) 52,816,394 52,932,581 

Property taxes receivable (Note 3) 1,591,640 1,459,496 

Trade and other accounts receivable (Nole 4) 6 ,061,358 7.418,955 

69 516 525 72.228 342 

ACCOUNTINC > CONSULTING > TAX MN Pca 

5 



Selected Notes to the 
Financial Statements 

Property taxes receivable 

Current taxes 
Non-current taxes 

2017 

1,335,343 (83.9%) 
256.297 116.1%1 

1 .591.640 (100%1 

MNPu, 

2016 

1,242,988 (85.2%) 
216.508 (14.8%) 

1.459.496 (100%) 

ACC OUNTINL ) CONSULTING ) TAX MNP ca 

-
Consolidated Statement of 

MNPu, 

Financial Position 
(continued) 

2017 2016 

Llablllties 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 13,049,079 13,308,879 

Deposits and deferred revenue (Note 6) 11,479,311 10,822,298 

Lona-term debt rNote 7) 48,643,1 30 52,273,583 

73 171 520 76404 760 

Net financial assets (debt) 13 654,9951 14 176 4181 

AC COUNTING > CONSULTING > TAX MNP ca 

6 



Debt Limits 
140,000,000 

120,000,000 137.0 
132.9 

80,000,000 

60,000,000 

40,000,000 

20,000,000 

2017 2016 

• Total debt Total Debt limit 

- Self-imposed limit (75%) 

ACCOUNTING > CONSULTING > TAX 

Debt Service Limits 
25,000,000 

20,000,000 

22.8 
15,000,000 

10,000,000 

5,000,000 

2017 

• Service on debt 

ACCOUNTING > CONSULTING > TAX 

22.1 

2016 

Service on debt limit 

MNR 

MNP ca 

MNR 

MNP ca 

7 



-
Consolidated Statement of MNI! 

Financial Position 
(continued) 

2017 2016 

Net flnanclal assets ldebtl (3 654 995) (4,176 418) 

Non-financial assets 

Tangible capital assets (Note 9) 797,272,707 749,035,771 

Inventory for consumption 558,223 582,832 

Preoaid exoenses 223,786 170,140 

798 054 716 749 788 743 

Accumulated surnlus fSchedu/e f) 794 399 721 745 612.326 

ACCOUt\T!NG > CONSULTING > TAX MNP ca 

Tangible Capital Assets 
MNI! 

Land 121,616,766 121 ,616,766 

Land improvements 28,409,549 8,337, 865 20,071,684 

Buildings 131,484,071 32,167,743 99,316,328 

Machinery and 27,252,397 13,827,439 13,424,958 
equipment 

Vehicles 11 ,064,180 4,979,691 6,084,489 

Engineered structures 777,896,645 250,297,939 527,598,706 

Construction in progress 9,159,776 9,159,776 

1, 106,883,385 309,610,676 797 ,272, 707 

ACCOUNT!NC ) CONSULTING ) TAX MNP ca 

8 



Net Book Value as a 0/o of MN/? 
Cost of Tangible Capital Assets 

700'· 

.., ... 

400'>. 

30 0'+ 

1ocr.. 

CCyolledle 

(201'Tl 

OlyoCledle 

(2016) 

SIAben 

(2018) 

Welasklwln 

12016) 

ACCOUNT ING ) CONSUL71NG ) TAX MNP ca 

Capital Reserves as a 0/o of MNR 
Tangible Capital Assets 

t0,0t1. 

, .... 
.... 
S.O"• 

4.0~ 

.... 
Olyolleduc 

(20 ' 

Otyoll~c: 

20 6 

,.,.._, 
g 

/\CC OUN TING > CONSUi TING > TAX MNP ca 

9 



Financial Indicators MN/? 

!>0,000.000 

40,000,000 

l0,000,000 

io.000.000 

t0,000,000 

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

-Contributed assets - Amortization Re serves 

ACCOUNT ING ) CONSUL'ING ) 'AX MNP ca 

Components of 
Accumulated Surplus (millions) 

MN/? 

3.3 

• Equity in capital assets 

• Operating reserves 

Capital reserves 

Unrestricted 

A(( OUNl ING ) CONSULTING ) TAX MN P ca 

10 



Audit Findings 

Changes from Audit Service Plan 

Significant deficiencies in internal control 

Difficulties encountered 

Identified or suspected fraud 

Identified or suspected non-compliance with laws and regulations 

Uncertainties related to application of going concern assumption 

Significant unadjusted differences 

Accounting policies used by the City of Leduc 

New accounting policies, or changes in accounting policies 

MNR 

None 

None 

None 

None 

None 

None 

None 

Appropriate 

None 

ACCOUNTING ) CONSULTING ) TAX MNP ca 

Audit Findings MNR 
• Areas of audit emphasis: 

- Deferred revenue and grant revenue 

- Tangible capital assets 

• Testing of employee credit cards: 
- No expenses that didn't appear reasonable 

- No instances where detailed receipts were not included 

• Compliant with investment policy 
- Composition of investment holdings 

- Credit rating of investment holdings 

ACCOUNT INC ) CONSULTING ) TAX MNP ca 

11 



Thank You MNR 

ACCOUNTING > CONSULTING > TAX MNP ca 

12 



LEAB 

LEAB 
Leduc Environmental 
Advisory Board 

Committee of Council Update 

April 9, 2018 

Sheila Ruddy, Vice Chair 

Outline 

LEAB 
Leduc Environmental 
Advisory Board 

• LEAB Overview 

• Historical Focus 

• Progress Update 

• Upcoming Events 

4/16/2018 

1 



LEAB 
Leduc Eavlroune:n~ta:l~=~;:=.~,;;;;;;;.~;:;=.;;=;:;:.i Advisory Board 

LEAB Overview 

LEAB Overview 

LEAB is an advisory board to Council which: 

1. Advises Council on environmental matters; 

2. Proposes to Council City programs and practices for 
the protection, enhancement and wise use of the 
environment; and 

3. Disseminates information to and for the residents of 
the City to create a better appreciation of wise and 
prudent environmental practices. 

4/16/2018 

2 



LEAB Overview 

Councillor Lars Hansen 
Councillor Glen Finstad (alternate) 
Katie Oliver, Chair 
Sheila Ruddy, Vice Chair 
Jaimee Dupont Morozoff 
Jill Mitchell 
Douglas Hube 
Brad Beesley 
Cory Kartz 
Jennifer Roach 
Thorren Koopmans 
April Ziegler 
Kerra Chomlak 
Shirley Weslosky 

LEAB 
Leduc Environmental 
Advisory Board ~~;.;;;;;;:====~:;:;;:;:;==~1 

Historical Focus 

4/16/2018 

3 



Historical Focus 

•Recycling 

• Tree Planting 

• Composting and Water Conservation 

• Light Pollution 

• Environmental Plan 2012 

LEAB 
Leduc Environmental 
Advisory Board 

Progress Update 

4/16/2018 

4 



Progress Update - Waste Diversion 

Progress Update - Waste Diversion 

Industrial, Commercial, Institutional 

City of Leduc 2016 Waste Stream byTonn1ce and% 

c~t •~~c..,,••"'
:4NSJOH'• 

---

4/16/2018 

5 



Progress Update -Alberta Summer Games 
Sustainability Torch 

Progress Update - Community Gardens 

4/16/2018 

6 



Progress Update - Light Pollution 

Progress Update - Pollinators 

What's all the Buzz 
about???? 

4/ 16/2018 

7 



Progress Update - Pollinators 

Pollinator Gardens 

Progress Update - Pollinators 

Million Pollinator Challenge 

• Initiating 'Million Pollinator Challenge" 

Plant your pollinator garden 

'BEE Counted' by registering your garden 

'Share the BUZZ' by spreading the word 

• Kick off April 18 at the Leduc Public Library 

• Promote the challenge at community events 

• Registration May - August 

• Wrap up event in the fall 

4/16/2018 

8 



Progress Update - GHG Reduction Plan 

• Established a LEAB GHG Reduction Sub 
Committee 

• Climate Management Express Workshop -
April 25, 2018 

• Ongoing Consultation 

LEAB 
Leduc Euvlronmental 
Advisory Board 

Upcoming Events 

4/16/2018 

9 



Upcoming Events 

Business Expo - April 14/ 15, 2018 

Upcoming Events 

Arbour Day - May 12, 2018 

/ 

4/16/2018 

10 



Upcoming Events 

Green and Gold Event - May 26, 2018 

Upcoming Events 

Environment Week: June 3 - 9, 2018 

• Spring Bird Count - June 3, 2018 

• Peter Puffin Presentation - June 4, 2018 

• Pollinator Garden Planting - June 4, 2018 

• Clean Air Day (Free Transit) - June 6, 2018 

• City Staff Commuter Challenge - June 3-9, 2018 

4/16/2018 

11 



Upcoming Events 

Waste Reduction Week: October 15 - 20, 2018 ... 
LEDUC 

Upcoming Events 

Festival of Trees - December 8-9, 2018 

4/16/2018 

12 



Upcoming Events 

Winter Bird Count - December 16, 2018 

LEAB 
Leduc Environmental 
Advisory Board 

Questions 

4/16/2018 

13 



Outline 

1. Environmental Progress Report 2017 

- highlights 

2. Five year report on implementation 

- conclusions 

4/16/2018 

1 



I 

Environmental Commitment 

Commitment to report publically 
on progress. 

Fifth Annual Report 

' I" nt ,,[ 'lAl !:: 
PROGRESS REPORT l': 

~ .. ....... rc-.....Ji....iJl..,W.... 

4/16/2018 

2 



LEDUC smATEGIC PLAN ~d ~i.vt.5 
L£AD OEP.t,RTMEHT KEY ACTIOllS & RESULTS 

• Goal 1.2 Plan and construct Telford lake amenities 

./ boardwalk, pollinator garden, weir 

• Goal 1.3 Complete Phase 2 of Downtown Master Plan 

./ 21 three-stream waste receptacles 

• Goal 2.1 Implement Environmental Sustainability Plan 

• Goal 3 Transportation 

./ transit ridership increases 

• Goal 4 - Regiona l partnerships 

./ capital region: airshed, waste, sustainability 

• Goal 6 - Fisca l Sustainabi lity 

./ solar savings 

Community Outreach Highlights 

• Earth Hour 

•Green Gold at Rona 

• Environment Week: 

- Peter Puffin 

- Clean Air Day 

- Art Wall 

• Alberta Care Recycling Conference 

• Large Item Pick up 

•Toxic Round Up 

• City events: 

- Business Expo 

- Community Registration Day 

- Festival ofTrees 

4/16/2018 

3 



4/16/2018 

What We Achieved 

• • • • • 0:2 "I ( °'I 
2011 WHAT WE ACHIEVED 6£Y~ 

52% 

Year-end Yeat-end Year-end Year-end Year-end 
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

27 ,241 28.583 29.304 30A98 31 130 

+ ~Wtt.n11'I • cuRllSlDE CURBSIDE 
euE SAG RECYClltlG ORGAtllCS 

4 



4/16/2018 

EC~ STATION 

VISITS RECYCLABLES (COMPACTED ONLY) 
TOtll\ES TOMIES IJ'llTS TO'lNES LITRES 

2013 21,651 263 N/A 2,959 56.1 60,094 

2014 20,119 344 15.39 3,316 59.5 54,608 
2015 25,786 271 29.65 3,944 68.6 92,865 
2016 27,995 302 28.93 3,447 59.3 90,645 ..... ..... A A A 
2017 27,666 133 N/A 3,499 63.8 99,354 

• tltl.UOl\G l.IAlEl!IALS COllfCTIDAT THE OCTcaal l:l17T®C & E-1'/~lt RCXJllDUP 

TREE PLANTING SPRING CHRISTMAS 
BIRD COUNT BIRD COUNT .. , 

f Voluntee11 I Pl1nled Biids Bird Bl!ds Bird 

70 600 
Sptclu Species 

2015 2015: 
2\)15 1.022 101 2015 677 30 

2016: 200 2016; 600 
2016 1.253 98 201~ 744 28 

2017" 180 :!D\1' 1,050 2011.1,489 94 2011· 473 26 
l I 

5 



Invasive Species and Weed Management 

• Integrated Pest Management Plan 

• environmentally sensitive decision making model to prevent, 
manage and evaluate pest problems 

• pro-active pest prevention rather than reactive action to 
control pests 

• a variety of non-chemical pest management strategies will be 
used or considered before using pesticides 

Energy Conservation 

- reclucL~ our 
eco f ootprLIM: 

2017 Energy Benellls lRC & Operations Bulldlng 

4/16/2018 

6 



Five Year Report on Implementation 

PARTNERING wttt\~€.. 

---.... -- .... _ -----·--····· .:-:::::.=-::..:::-;. ..... _ ...... _., ............. 
-·--.. -··-··-- .. _ 
-?:°I.."'7.;.-::=..:..:~:= 
"·-·~·· .......... .. 

0 SMART 

Five Year Report on Implementation 

Conclusions: 

1. All short term actions complete. 

2. City of Leduc has made great strides since 2012: 

- key policies approved e.g. climate readiness, water efficiency 

- important projects e.g. organics, solar, stormwater 

• . - well-established annual community program e.g. arbour day, 
green gold, environment week, bird counts, toxic round up 

- regional collaboration - e.g. Blackmud/Whitemud surface water 

- awards e.g. waste diversion, sustainable sport of the year 

PAtlTNERING wtlh ~e,. .. ..<>~SMART 

4/16/2018 

7 



4/16/2018 

Questions? 

• 

·. 

8 



Presented by: 
Michael Pieters, GM, Infrastructure & Planning 
Kevin Wenzel, Manager, Public Transportation 

Proposed Services 

Edmonton Route 747 

Leduc Transit Route 

South EIA Route 

North EIA Route 

[CITYJ~ euuc 

4/16/2018 

1 



I 

Leduc Transit Opportunity 

• Connection to route 747 at EIA extending our access to 
City of Edmonton for students and residents of the City of 
Leduc and Leduc County 

• Access to employment opportunities at EIA including 
mall, Costco, racetrack & casino, Aurora, etc. 

• Passenger travel to and from EIA including stops at hotels 
as well as opportunity for Leduc businesses to attract 
visitors from EIA through public transit 

• Support continued development of Aerotropolis which 
includes EIA and adjacent lands 

Cost Share 

Route 747 
Enhancements 

EIA Internal 
Transit 

Leduc Transit 
Route* 

Estimated 
Cost** 

$500,000 
$130,000*** 

$770,000 

$528,000 

• As per Joint Venture Agreement 
**Cost will be pro-rated for 2018 

50% 
33% 

50% 

65% 

50% 
33% 

50% 

35% 

***Frequency Increase to include share by City of Edmonton (assumed) 

4/16/2018 

2 



Other Considerations 

Route 747 
• Additional capital costs for buses as frequency increases 

EIA Internal Transit 
Clarity on level of service and future growth 

Leduc Transit 
Cost to increase capacity of park n' rides or to increase frequency of 
feeder routes 
Sufficient users to justify cost of subsidy {need to monitor) 

2019 Integrated Transit 
• What impact on fiscal projections to EIA Accord Partners? 

Impact on Leduc Transit partnership 

Operating and Capital Costs 

••••••••••••••,••o .. •p•e•,.•u•n•g•C•o•s•ts•-•Ci•otv• . . •. o•f•L•c•d•u•c•P•o,•\•lo•oi••,•. •.•••••r..1. ' ' ' ' • 
1 City of .. 2oi~ ., ... ~ 20i~~ 1:: 

ro'tal L~~~c·s · Opt!fat_l~n.;~I , 0P~rat1~·~-al 
Cosu : Tota:I Cost ':. 1M" aCt'·~fi:"~r Im act Oescrl tlon Comments 

ETS Route 747 F'undmg Split SO/SO (Leduc County, City of l tduc) SS0,000 175,000 115.-000 60,000 

hr• Reduction to $S F'undin& Split SO/SO (Leduc County, City of Leduc) lS0.000 75,000 S0,000 25,000 

Frequency lnc:rusc s,illt 3 ways includes City of Edmcnto.n lJ0.000 4Ull 43,333 

(IA lntern1I Tr•Mlt Func:Hng Split 50/50 (Leduc County, City of L.duc) noJJOO JU,000 256,668 121.332 

LedlK: Tr.Mil (60 min lntervat) FWM:tq: Split 6S/lS (Leduc County, City of leduc) 521,!?!!!! 10,200 2211,801 114-~99 

Capital and Ont'-t1me Costs· C•ty of Leduc Portion 
C11y of 2018 2019 

Tohll ltduc'i Capital tap1ta;I 

DtttflPttOn C.Omm!'nh (o\t\ Total Coit Impact Impact 

m1towte747 --""50(loducc.uoty,Cltyo<l- - - -UndNf'l[dmorieoa .. ~ 

DAl .......... TrWlidl --~(l<docc.uoty,Cltyo<Udocl - - -,IR. .. MdtAdilltlofl _,..._ll_C.W.l't.Cltyo<...., - ....... 11SJ)ll0 

"""'~_., ................ - _ ... •"3S(loducC-,Cltyo<Udocl •20,000 ?7JJ)ll0 rl>J)l)O 

lvl l .. M tln4-.tmi _ ... MfJSll<duc<-•"Clty"Udocl - ....... tUOO 
Smlit1Fat• ---ll<du<C-1Y,Cltyo<ldwl m.ooo .. ,, .. ...150 ........ ,.,,. ...... 
-. ... --OS/JS(loduc~1Y.Cltyo<ldwl - """"' """"' 
2019 Costs may very greatly from those shown as an integrated model is to be developed 
on the direction of the EIA Accord Oversight Committee 

4/16/2018 

3 



I 

Questions 

A 

RECOMMENDATION 

That Council authorize the expenditure of 
approximately $700,000, funded by the 
General Contingency Reserve that is not 
currently in the 2018 budget. This wil l 
fund the enhancement of regional transit 
services to the EIA in 2018 pending the 
development of the integrated transit 
service model starting in 2019. 

4/16/2018 

4 



Presented by: 
Jennifer Cannon, Director, Finance 

Emerging Issues 

Business Case 
Transit Service To Outlet Mall 

1: 
~~ .. 
.... 

Business Case 

... __ _ 

[QTYJ , 
euuc 

4/16/2018 

1 



EIA Transit - 2018 Timeline 

./ Transit Task Force ./ Accord partners 
presented proposed agree to implement 
costs & services cost sharing transit 

service to EIA mall 
./ Kick-start.s transit 
business case once 
again 

and enhanced service 
to Edmonton 

./ EIA Accord Transit 
Services and Funding 
Report provides 
in-depth Information 

./ Authorization 
sought to adjust the 
City's 2018 
operating budget 

EIA Transit Costs 

./ Service to begin 
to coincide with 
Outlet Mall opening 

December 4, 2017 
Budget Approval 

Modified Multi-Year Millrate 
(inclusive of transit) 

._. .. _ --

2018 

= 

2019 2020 

= = 

$1.021M = 2.22% 

tax revenue increase 

••1•mu.nl 

2018 2019 2020 

= = = 

4/16/2018 

2 



2018 Provincial Education t:~,~-'}1~~,;:~ ! 
. Th - · .. ' 

Property Tax - Residential f.-:~- ·_;1:~0 j 
--·- -.:'"_"·~ .. ' ,: 

Residential 

! 2018: $9,993,636 = $ZSSK 
2017: $10,248,908 

Decrease 

Municipal Requirement (Dec 4): 3.65% 
Provincial Requirement: -0.55% 
Total Tax Revenue Increase: 3.10% 

2018 Provincial Education ('}i~;.- -- i 
: Th' ... , 

Property Tax - Residential /.:,: ,;~~.g~ f 
l .... -: .. ~:: - ti :_.;. 1 

Non-Residential 

• • • • 

~ 2018: ss,110,926 _ $G07K I 2011: s1,503,1s3 -

Increase 

Municipal Requirement (Dec 4): 3.65% 
Provincial Requirement: 1.31% 
Total Tax Revenue Increase: 4.96% 

4/16/2018 

3 



Targeted Approach 

Municipal Targeted Approach to Alleviate 
Non-Res Provincial Increase: 

1. Reduce Contracted Services by $2301< 

2. Use 2017 Year End Surplus of-$2001< 

Combined > 2.9% ~ 

Residential Non-residential 

Shift in Fiscal Philosophy 

Ta.x ~eni..c Requlr•m•nt 
ApPfOved Ou 4, 2017 

ltnetgent h•m 
tlA Tran.SU Re-qullement 

......... __ 
Current Philosophy 

Surplus funds 

Support community 
re-investment 
• Capital 
• One-time 

2018 2019 2020 

4.00% 
to 
4.50% 

4.00" 
To 
4.50% 

Revised Philosophy 
Surplus funds 

Support community 
re-investment 

& strategic 
taxation options 

4/16/2018 

4 



Mill Rate Bylaw 

Built on the Foundation of: 

1) Combine tax revenue increase of 2.90% for both Residential and 
Non-Residential by: 

a) reducing 2018 contracted services budget by $230k 
b) using $200k from the 2017 year end surplus 
c) 2018 EIA Transit requirement ($700k) funded by 2017 year end surplus 

:;;; 

2) Administration and Council develop a revised policy for 2019 that: 
a) aligns tax smoothing strategies and fiscal sustainability 
b) managing the magnitude of shifts between budget years 
c) to reduce tax revenue requirements In 2019 and 2020 

e 

Re corn mendation 

That Council give 
Bylaw No. 975-2018 

First Reading. 

4/16/2018 

5 



4/16/2018 

Discussion 

6 



N 

(fJ 

SCALE - I: 10.000 
ORIGINAL SHEET - ANSI A 

Legend 

D Low Density Residential 

LJ Medium Density Residential 

LJ Commercial 

D Institutional 

- School / Public Park 

LJ Park I Greenway 

()stantec 

ATTACHMENT 2 
PROPOSED LAND USE CONCEPT 

SUBJECT LANDS 
(PROPOSED LAND 'usE CH~NGE) 

LJ Natural Area 

lc:>I Stormwater Management Facility 

• • • •• Multiway 

• • • • • Secondary Pathway 

Buffer {If Required) 

• • • • Area Structure Plan Boundary 

Seplember26.2017 
1161 106640 

Clieol/l'rojecl 

SOUTH FORK 

AREA STRUCTURE PLAN 
CITY OF LEDUC 

F'19ureNo. 

rn1e 
3.0 

LAND USE PLAN 
2017 AMENDMENT 



ATTACHMENT 3 

STURTZ BEND 

STURTZ LINK 

LEDUC COUNTY 
(NW 14-49-25-W4) 

FROM: MUN - MIXED-USE NEIGHBOURHOOD 

TO: RNL - RESIDENTIAL NARROW LOT 

N 

+ 



  RECOGNITION ITEMS

           There were no Recognition Items.

IV.



PUBLIC COMMENTARY 

V.



PUBLIC HEARING 

There is no Public Hearing for the Agenda 

VI. 



PRESENTATIONS 

Mayor’s Poetry City Challenge 

– Poetry Reading

Presented by: 

C. Klooster 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

Business 
 
 
 

Introduction of Sgt. D. Kendall, Acting OIC 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Presented by: 

 

Insp. K. Kunetzki 
 

 

 

 

 



-- - - ----c:------,-------------------

Leduc RCMP Detachment 

Prepared for April 23, 2018 by Chadwick Orr, S/Sgt. 

Kevin R.H. Kunetzki, lnsp. 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

WELCOME MESSAGE 3 

STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS 5 

Crime Statistics - City of Leduc 6 

Crime Statistics - Rural I Leduc County 7 

Total PROS Occurrences for 2017 8 

THE WATCHES 9 

Calls for Service by Watch 11 

City & Rural Assists 12 

OPERATIONS 13 

FACILITIES & INFRASTRUCTURE 15 

TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT 16 

Municipal Integrated Traffic Unit (MITU) 16 

Impaired Driving 17 

Automated Traffic Enforcement 18 

QE II Speed Management Project 19 

STRATEGIC POLICING 20 

Detachment Annual Performance Plan (APP) 20 

Prolific Offender Management 21 

Hot Spot Checks 22 

Strategic Communications 22 

Moving Forward-2018 APP 23 

GIS I DRUG SECTION 25 

Rural Enhanced I County Position 26 

Criminal Intelligence Analyst 27 

Integrated Crime Reduction Unit (ICRU) 28 

LEDUC SUPPORT STAFF 29 

LEDUC ENFORCEMENT SERVICES 31 

FIVE YEAR TRENDS 2013 - 2017 32 

Municipal (City) Statistics 32 

Provincial (Rural) Statistics 35 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review A 



WELCOME MESSAGE 

2017 will be remembered as one of the busiest years 

on record for the Leduc RCMP Detachment. This past 

year we saw just under 10,000 files in the City of 

Leduc, and just over 6,000 files in Leduc County. 

There were a number of unique challenges to face, but 

also a great number of successes. With prosperity and 

growth, there wi ll always be a need for increased 

police services. The City of Leduc's population has 

grown by an astounding 14% since 2013. The goal 

within this positive environment is to be as strategic as 

possible, such that we can also have the safest 

community within manageable costs. 

Two significant issues detailed within this report include stolen motor vehicles and 

fentanyl. In 2017 a total of 531 vehicles were stolen in this area. In about 40% of these 

cases, the keys were left in the vehicle. Alberta has the highest number of stolen 

vehicles in the country, higher even than Ontario. Leduc Detachment has undertaken 

significant endeavours to address this issue at our local level, the least of which has 

been increased awareness and education. The second issue, fentanyl, is really 

concerning. In 2017, Leduc Detachment experienced at least 6 fentanyl-related deaths. 

But again, Leduc's situation appears reflective of a much greater problem. At the end of 

the Q3 period, the Province of Alberta reported at least 482 suspected opioid deaths. 

This is up from 346 during the same period last year. Leduc Detachment has been part 

of a working group to help develop and deliver on a strategic framework for opioids. A 

third drug member was added to our organization chart recently to help address this 

issue. 

Leduc RCMP-2017 Year in Review 



-~-~------,----------------

Success in 2017 relates primarily to our persons crimes and our collective endeavours 

to addressing increased crimes trends in the Region. Leduc Detachment still has fewer 

persons crimes than what was experienced in 2013. At that time there were 674 

incidents of assault; whereas in 2017 that number was 568. This is significant, 

especially when the community growth over this same period is considered. Leduc 

County's figures are similar (209 versus 239). In 2017, Leduc and other hub 

Detachments contributed a resource to the newly formed "Integrated Crime Reduction 

Team". This team has been very active in addressing some of our more challenging 

prolific offenders. They have the ability to be exclusively proactive and to target repeat 

offenders and locations. Since starting in the fall of 2017, they have arrested 46 prolific 

offenders and laid 239 charges. In some cases, these offenders are believed to have 

been responsible for more than 200 offences. The success of this team has led to the 

creation of other teams in the Division, and it now resulting in our own establishment of 

a local Crime Reduction Unit. 

As we go forward in 2017, strategic resource planning and forecasting will be the key to 

our success. Strategic planning is not only about adding members and support staff; 

it's also about identifying how these resources should best be utilized. Our 

Commanding Officer has identified 'Crime Reduction' as a key theme for the future in 

"K" Division (Alberta). We have already begun the process of restructuring Leduc 

Detachment to be more in line with this model. We will continue to support those 

endeavours and strategies that fit within this approach to keeping our communities safe. 

Kevin R.H. Kunetzki, !nsp. 

Officer in Charge 

Leduc Detachment 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review 



STATISTICAL HIGHLIGHTS 

The following charts show the most common types of police files, as well as the files 

which are most time consuming to investigate and conclude. The first two charts show 

the numbers for the City of Leduc, and the next two show the details for the County. 

It is worth noting that false alarms are the number one and number two file types for the 

City of Leduc and Leduc County, respectively. Leduc Detachment has been working 

with the City of Leduc to help address this issue. The Manager of RCMP Administration 

and Enforcement Services will be bringing a revised false alarm bylaw to a Committee 

of the Whole meeting in 2018. The draft bylaw, as it is in its present form, looks to 

address this issue with Education and Enforcement for both home I business owners, 

as well as the alarm companies. Many communities have struggled to balance the need 

to address property crime and effectively manage resources against the daunting 

intelligence that shows the majority of alarms (as high as 97%) are false. More 

information will follow on this issue. 

Leduc members participate in /ARD training at Leduc Composite High School, August 2017 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review A 



Crime Statistics - City of Leduc 

Leduc Munlcfpal Detachment - Top Ten Fiie Types by Workload 
(2017) 

Impaired Operation (by Alcohol) of MV 

Mental Health Act - Other Activities 

Assault 

Assist Canadian Police (non-RCMP) 

Theft under/equal to $5000 From MV 

Mischief 

Fraud less than or equal to $5000 

Disturbing the peace 

MVC - Property Damage - Reportable 

Other theft under $5000 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review A 



Crime Statistics - Rural I Leduc County 

Leduc Provincial Detachment - Top Ten Fiie Types by Workload 
(2017) 

Impaired Operation (by Alcohol) of MV 

Other Moving Traffic Violations 

MVC - Property Damage - Reportable 

Disturbing the peace 

Abandoned Vehicles 

Other Non-Moving Traffic 

Assist Canadian Police (non-RCMP) 

MVC - Non-Fatal Injury 

Assistance to Canadian Federal Dept 

Other theft unde r $5000 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review 



Total PROS Occurrences for 2017 

10000 
9000 
8000 
7000 
6000 
5000 
4000 
3000 
2000 
1000 

0 

Calls for Service - 2017 

6162 

• City Rural 

The chart above shows the number of calls for service our members handled in the past 

year: 16,071 in total. These numbers average out to 27 City and 17 Rural calls per day 

in 2017, which further demonstrates how busy our growing city has become. It must be 

noted that our total file count in 2017 is the highest we have had in recent years, as the 

chart below highlights. 

Calls for Service - By Year 

2017 

2016 

2015 

0 2000 4000 6000 8000 10000 

Rural • City 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review 



THE WATCHES 

2017 was a landmark year for the Leduc 

Detachment and, as always, the Watches led the 

way. 

Leduc Detachment provides 2417 coverage for the 

City of Leduc as well as Leduc County and 

Calmar. We can cover that many hours and that 

large of an area because we work under the 

integrated post model. The integrated post model 

has municipally funded positions working hand in 

hand with provincially funded positions and allows 

us to best serve all of our contract partners. There 

are four watches: each watch consists of a 

Sergeant Watch Commander, a Corporal Road 

Supervisor and up to eight Constables. 

The spike in property crime, particularly Auto Theft, had a large impact on the 

watches. Members are often spread throughout the Detachment area dealing with 

property crime investigations and trying to find stolen vehicles. An internal study on the 

auto theft issue showed that predominantly trucks were being stolen and around half of 

all vehicles stolen had keys in them. A multi phase project was created to address the 

auto theft issue. The project included prevention, education and enforcement. A 

traditional and social media campaign was launched reminding people to lock their 

vehicles and to make people aware of what type of vehicles were being targeted. The 

Nighthawks distributed flyers to just about every truck in the City advising what steps 

could be taken to avoid theft. Crime Reduction techniques and intelligence gathering 

were used to identify high volume car thieves. Projects were undertaken to have the 

offenders arrested and remanded into custody or be given strict release conditions. ,& 

Leduc RCMP-2017 Year in Review -



More recently, we have seen a drop in auto thefts and with continuing work from the 

watches and the detachment as a whole we hope to keep those numbers going down. 

Human resources and the emergence of the Fentanyl issue have been great challenges 

over the year. Injured members and members transferring out have left some watches 

short on personnel for significant portions of the year. We do everything possible to 

bring new members in , however it has proven difficult to maintain a full 

complement. Members responded to many overdose deaths over the year, most of 

which are believed to be from Fentanyl. Fentanyl is a very toxic drug and members 

have to guard against exposure to it constantly. Members have to use respirators and 

other person~! protective equipment and carry Naloxone with them at all times. This is 

a new normal for us and has taken some getting used to. 

Looking forward to 2018 I anticipate continuing high call volume and an increase in the 

complexity of calls. As always the watches will be there to provide the best service 

possible. 

Chadwick T. Orr, S/Sgt. 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review A 



Calls for Service by Watch 

4000 

3500 

3000 

2500 

2000 

/ 
1000 / 

500 / 

0/ 

1500 

A Watch BWatch CWatch DWatch 

City Calls • Rural Calls 

This chart shows how all of the calls for service received at the detachment are spread 

across the four watches. The distribution evens out by the end of the year, with no one 

team ending up with significantly more work than any other. 

It is of note that the totals from this chart will not be equal to the overall 2017 file count 

spoken to earlier in this report. The reason for this is that Leduc detachment provides 

an additional level of service to the public and to our own membership through the 

employment of Reserve Constables working at the front counter. The difference in 

numbers accounts for those files that are handled by the reserve officers who are not 

assigned to one of our four Watches. 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review A 



City & Rural Assists 

700 

600 

500 

400 

300 ~ 200 334 

/ 100 

0 / 
A Watch BWatch CWatch DWatch 

City Assist by Rural • Rural Assist by City 

This graphic shows how many times City members assisted Rural members with calls 

on each Watch, and vice versa, throughout 2017. This can mean, for example, that a 

member occupying a Municipal position went and assisted with a call somewhere in 

Leduc County. Our members do this on every shift in order to maintain our consistent 

standard of service to the public. The numbers routinely level out to similar figures for 

each watch by the end of the year, as seen above. 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review 



OPERATIONS 

A number of support services form the Operation 

Support Services team: the Leduc Municipal 

Integrated Traffic Unit (MITU), Community 

Policing/Victim Services Liaison, School Resource 

Officer (SRO) and the Leduc County Enhanced 

team are all included under this umbrella. 

Many of our successes this year were achieved 

through partnerships. We partnered with Alberta 

Health Services to educate community members 

about the emerging deadly trend of Fentanyl abuse, 

which is affecting communities all across Alberta. 

We promoted awareness through a series of open 

houses and other community sessions, including a 

roundtable discussion at the MacLab Centre in May. 

Property Crime stood out as a growing trend throughout 2017. In response a group 

composed of the Nighthawks, Rural Crime Watch, the MITU, County Community Peace 

Officers and Victim Services created the Secure It or Lose It Campaign. This initiative 

encourages community members to install a unique theft prevention screw onto their 

licence plates. Over 700 of these screws have been handed out to date in this ongoing 

project. Leduc Rural Crime Watch and the Nighthawks partnered to begin developing a 

Crime Prevention program based on Crime Prevention Through Environmental Design 

with materials and presentations featuring easy-to-implement changes you can make in 

your lifestyle and home to keep your property safe. 

Leduc RCMP-2017 Year in Review 



This year the SRO, Cst. Neil MUZ, taught the DARE program to 18 different classes in 

Leduc schools. City of Leduc CPO Brad AGOTNES taught 2 additional classes at Leduc 

Estates School. Cst. MUZ continues to provide schools with numerous presentations on 

topics of internet safety, bullying, drunk and distracted driving, drug awareness and 

motivational speeches to Junior High classes. Cst. MUZ also attends student 

assemblies and is a positive presence throughout the schools. In addition, Cst. MUZ 

has begun to present the PARTY Program to grade 9 students. Cst. MUZ interacts with 

students on a daily basis wherever he is, and coaches sports teams at both of the High 

Schools. 

Some other notable events we participated in or led in the community in 2017: 

• RCMP Detachment Open House, 600 people attended 

• Mayor's Youth Conference for distracted driving 

• Seniors presentations on frauds I scams and how to avoid them 

• Participation at the Black Gold Rodeo, Canada Day and Santa Claus Parade 

• Town Hall in New Sarepta to discuss Property Crime & Crime Prevention 

Brent K Dueck, Sgt. 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review 



FACILITIES & INFRASTRUCTURE 

2017 saw our City Council approve plans in the upcoming budget for the $13,000,000 

renovation and expansion of the Leduc detachment building. This will be a cost-recovery 

shared project with the Province as part of continuing support for our integrated model 

of policing. Initial estimates of the building size upon completion have reached just over 

3,300m2, which will accommodate future growth of RCMP membership and support staff 

for years to come. 

As of the end of 2017 the RCMP had only entered into the beginning planning stages of 

the upgrade: selecting and meeting with an architect group, consideration of additional 

resources, etc. There will be a great many changes coming our way in 2018, but the 

growing pains and transitions will be well worth the wait. 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review 



TRAFFIC ENFORCEMENT 
Municipal Integrated Traffic Unit (MITU) 

The Municipal Integrated Traffic Unit has been active in the City of Leduc since July of 

2015. The MITU currently operates with 2 RCMP Constables and 1 City of Leduc Peace 

Officer, answerable to the Operations Sergeant. 

In 2017 there were 106 injury collisions in the City of Leduc, up from 80 in 2016. The 

charts below outline how the number of collisions over the past 5 years has declined 

more overall, with the most significant increase occurring between 2016 & 2017. 

120 

100 

80 

60 

40 

20 

0 

800 
700 
600 
500 
400 
300 
200 
100 

0 

Injury Collisions by Year 

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Property Damage Collisions by Year 

~ 
~715 749 

629 578 

~ 
527 

/ 
2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review 



The reasons for the increase in injury collisions against the previous declining trend are 

not fully known, but factors that may have influenced the change include the population 

increase, a subsequent rise in traffic volumes, and road conditions. ATE was absent 

during a significant part of 2017. This may also have been a factor. The figures remain 

relatively low when considering the longer term trend and the increase in population. 

Manned enforcement has been a major focus for the MITU in response to the 

discontinuation of ATE: they conducted a total of 3114 documented traffic stops during 

the year. Not all traffic stops result in violation tickets; however, many motorists are 

given warnings in an effort to further educate and inform our citizens. 

In keeping with its goal to promote awareness, the MITU will be increasing the number 

of media releases sent out. Topics will cover things such as the Alberta Transportation 

Traffic Safety Calendar themes, adverse weather readiness, and the importance of 

seatbelt safety. At least two informative media releases per month have been scheduled 

to allow us to surpass our 2017 count, which was 19. 

Impaired Driving 

Impaired driving is a top-tier priority for the Leduc Detachment, and there have been 

several initiatives identified that will help us to combat the issue: 

Education 

Assisting or conducting presentations within the schools and in the community to 

increase awareness of the effects of impaired driving. 

MITU participated in the Distracted Driving Youth Conference in October 2017, held at 

the LRC. Over 150 students came in from schools across the Capital Region to learn 

about the dangers of distracted driving and how they can take action to prevent it. The 

event saw several incredible keynote speakers come to Leduc to share their stories with 

our youth , and was very positively received. 

Impaired Check Stops 

Driving while impaired by alcohol continues to be the most prominent factor that 

contributes to serious, sometimes even fatal, motor vehicle accidents across Canada. 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review A 



Recent studies done are showing us that now, more than ever, law enforcement 

agencies need new strategies and initiatives to combat this deadly pattern of behaviour. 

FATAL DE CIS IO N 

ALCOHOL-RELATED VEHICLE DEATHS 
PERCENTAGE OF MOTOR VEHICLE DEATHS REIATED 
TO ALCOHOL IMPAIBMENT,.AMONG IDGH-INCOME 
COUNTRIES 

Canada•••••••••••••84% 
United States 81% 
New Zealand tJI% 

Australia tJO% 
Slovenia 30% 
~~ ~% 

Belgium 25% 
Finland 22% 

Sweden 19% 
Netherlands 19% 

l\;\110~ \I , !'-OST 

Alberta is no exception to the rule: in 2016 Alberta Transportation found that there were 

over 12,000 reported incidents of impaired driving across the province, and 20 people 

lost their lives. 

It is for these reasons that impaired driving was, and continues to be, a highly important 

focus for the Leduc RCMP. MITU conducted its annual Candy Cane Check Stop again 

in December 2017, with the goal being to 'normalize' check stops and help the public 

see them in a more positive light. Check stops in Leduc consist of at least 3 of our 

members actively engaged in an operation for 30 minutes or more. The MITU conducted 

a total of 27 impaired driving check stops in 2017, far exceeding our yearly goal of 18. 

Automated Traffic Enforcement 

The City of Leduc contracted Automated Traffic Enforcement in 2017 through a 

company called Global Traffic Solutions, whose services ended on June 301h. Under 

Provincial guidelines, the police service of jurisdiction is responsible for the deployment 

of ATE in a given area. It is expected that the City of Leduc will resume ATE operations 

in 2018 with an in-house provided service. 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review 



What we have learned that ATE and manned traffic enforcement, to be the most 

effective, must be strategically deployed in response to issue analysis. As the police 

service of jurisdiction, our top priority is to reduce the number of collisions and injuries 

to the public. It is to also ensure that the community feels safe. To that end, funding has 

been secured for a Traffic Enforcement/ATE Clerk position that will be responsible for 

collecting, interpreting and analyzing RCMP traffic data for use in selecting the most 

effective deployment areas and to target trending issues. 

QE II Speed Management Project 

The Leduc RCMP and the University of Alberta, with the support of City Council, the 

Community Safety Advisory Committee and other significant partners, have been 

approved to conduct a study on speed management and safety on the QE II Highway. 

The 6 ki lometre stretch of highway that runs between the City of Leduc boundaries is 

the focal area for this study: from Airport Road to the Commercial Vehicle Inspection 

Station (or, weigh scales) south of the city. 

The project will unfold in phases, the first of which was a data collection period where 

basic speed data was collected and analyzed by engineers at the University in order to 

produce an enforcement plan for the RCMP. 

The second phase will begin in May 2018; there will be signs erected at the beginning 

and end of the QE II 'Leduc Corridor' warning motorists that there will be increased 

enforcement in the area. These signs wi ll remain in place for 4 weeks before actual 

manned enforcement commences. 

During the enforcement period, officers will be ticketing for speeds registered above the 

established safety thresholds as well as for excessive speeds noted while passing 

emergency vehicles. 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review 



STRATEGIC POLICING 
Detachment Annual Performance Plan (APP) 

Each fiscal year the Leduc RCMP set out an Annual Performance Plan in line with 

Provincial and National policing priorities, along with key input and assistance from our 

community partners. This allows the citizens we serve to have a voice in how policing 

is guided within their communities. 2017 saw the detachment focus on three major 

issues: impaired driving, illegal drug related offences and major property crime. Within 

each of these areas we set out specific objectives for the detachment to meet, followed 

by formulating initiatives to help us make it happen. This allows us to effectively tackle 

the issues and provide the best policing we can to our community. These 

initiatives include education and enforcement pieces that will involve both the residents 

of Leduc and Leduc County as well as our RCMP members. As an example, tackling 

the issue of impaired driving is not strictly an enforcement issue. Educating the 

community on the issues behind impaired driving, such as school presentations, 

educating RCMP members on case law, proper investigative techniques and training 

new breath technicians all allow us continue to combat this deadly trend. 

Our drug unit saw another member added to their team in 2017, bringing the total up to 

3 full-time investigators under a Corporal and a Sergeant. The unit was very effective 

this fiscal year and completed many projects, working alongside with other drug units 

and teams from surrounding areas to combat the issues. All of the initiatives set out for 

this area of our APP were met and the unit had a successful year overall. 

Our major property crime objective is referenced further along in this report and includes 

our "Hot Spot" and prolific offender checks, as well as bait device deployment program 

and educational pieces such as community presentations. This evolving approach to 

major property crime has allowed us to effectively focus our attention in the right areas 

and allows us to make arrests, recover property and stop crime from happening. All of 

the objectives in our APP were not only met in 2017 but exceeded, showing the 

commitment and great work that our members are doing day to day. 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review A 



Prolific Offender Management 

History and statistical analysis shows that the same people are responsible for most of 

the crimes committed in our communities. Generally, 20% of the population is 

responsible for 80% of crime. Equipped with this knowledge, in 2017 we completed 454 

prolific offender checks in Leduc. 

This is where our officers personally check on the conditions of persons that we have 

determined are most likely to commit further crimes. These prolific offenders have been 

through the court system and had conditions of their release placed on them. Most 

commonly, these conditions are curfew related or drug and alcohol related. The officers 

will attend their residences, places of work, and frequented locations to ensure they are 

abiding by those conditions set out for them by the courts. If they are found in breach of 

those conditions, they are arrested and charged with the offence. Most of these checks 

result in a non-event when the subjects are found to be compliant. 

A consistent and targeted approach to this system of checking prolific offenders keeps 

them in check and causes less crime to be committed overall in the community. The 

checks oftentimes result in the 

offender being arrested in a quick 

and appropriate manner, which 

takes them off of the streets and 

again allows for less crime to occur. 

The list of prolific offenders is 

regularly reviewed and monitored by 

senior RCMP members to ensure 

continuing best results from the 

initiative are achieved. 

Leduc RCMP-2017 Year in Review A 



Hot Spot Checks 

In 2017, Leduc RCMP officers completed 6508 "Hot Spot" checks. These are checks of 

certain places in the community that have been identified to have had property crime 

issues in the past or are seen as places that could be an area of concern. Some of these 

places include the LRC, parking lots, the Telford Lake boat launch schools and industrial 

areas. These areas are continually monitored by all of the Watches and can be changed 

if intelligence leads us that way. Often these checks result in the recovery of stolen 

vehicles and stolen license plates. Members have also located people in these areas 

with no valid reason for being there at the time. We believe that these interactions and 

the obvious police presence in the area helps prevent crime from occurring. 

Strategic Communications 

Communication both internally and externally is critical for an effective and efficient 

Detachment. The use of the media to inform the public about our activities is important 

in that our Detachment can improve support by the public, obtain assistance from the 

public on investigations and demonstrate to the public the value of our services. The 

media can deliver important messages to the public that promote community safety and 

prevent crime. The media is an important and valuable community policing partner. 

35 

30 

25 

20 

15 

10 

5 

0 

Media Releases in 2017 

A Watch B Watch C Watch D Watch GIS/Drugs MITU 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review 



Moving Forward -2018 APP 

As the needs of our community evolve, so too must the policing priorities of the 

detachment that serves them: In February of 2018 the detachment, in partnership with 

the City and County of Leduc, conducted an online survey to engage community 

residents and f ind out what their policing priorities are for the next two years. RCMP 

Alberta "K" Division has mandated that Crime Reduction and Employee Wellness be 

priorities for all detachments in addition to those issues identified by their communities. 

568 people contributed to the February survey, and the results are highlighted in the 

chart below. 

2018 RCMP Policing Priorities Survey 

I I I I I I I 

Break & Enters 351 
I I 

Impaired Driving 204 
I I 

Theft of MV 198 
I I 

Drug Related Offences 18( 
I I 

Community Policing 
I I 

159 

Persons Crimes 1~2 
I I 

Theft Under $5,000 128 
I I 

Distracted Driving 120 
I I 

Traffic Safety 103 
I I 

Youth Engagement 8 
I I 

Domestic Violence ~ 77 

Other 13 J 
0 50 100 150 200 250 300 350 400 

The number one priority is property crime, comprising of break & enters and motor 

vehicle thefts. This is directly in line with the divisional crime reduction strategy, and 

initiatives are being crafted accordingly. The community also indicated that impaired 

driving and illegal drugs related offences are high priorities as well, so they will be 

combined into one objective with multiple initiatives to address the issues. 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review 



Subject to final approval by the City of Leduc, the Annual Policing Priorities for the Leduc 

detachment moving forward into 2018 and beyond will be: 

)- Crime Reduction (Major Property Crime & Auto Theft) 

)- Employee Wellness 

)- Alcohol & Drug Related Offences (Impaired Driving by Alcohol & Drugs, Drug 

Trafficking, and other related offences) 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review 

·' · . .. 



GIS I DRUG SECTION 

The Leduc RCMP General Investigation Section 

(GIS) had an extremely busy 2017. GIS members 

are involved in taking the lead role and/or 

providing assistance to the General Duty RCMP 

members in serious property and person crime 

offences in the City of Leduc and Leduc County. 

This role is complex and requires experienced 

members who have received specialized training. 

This year, GIS conducted investigations into 

several home invasions that resulted in numerous 

suspects being arrested and charged. GIS also 

investigated an armed robbery involving suspects 

that were later determined to be implicated in other serious crimes in the area. This in

depth investigation resulted in charges laid against multiple individuals. 

GIS members have also developed a plan to combat increasing auto theft by deploying 

a BAIT vehicle in both the City of Leduc and Leduc County. BAIT devices have also 

been deployed to combat other property crime in the community involving various types 

of theft. 

The General Investigation Section enhances the Leduc Detachment's overall response 

to serious, violent & organized crime, allowing our general duty members to spend more 

time responding to calls for service in the community. 

Lyle A. Rattray, A/Sgt. 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review 



Rural Enhanced I County Position 

The rural enhanced position was highly engaged in supporting the General Investigative 

Section in 2017. Very complex investigations were conducted on a number of high 

profile home invasions that had occurred in the County. 

As well, the enhanced member played important roles in numerous other investigations 

includirig two kidnappings and a robbery. Another important focus for the position was 

supporting Rural Crime Watch and the Nighthawks in developing a Crime Reduction 

program. This is based on a mix of formal Crime Prevention Through Environmental 

Design strategies and target hardening (better locks, security systems, etc.). 

In the spirit of education on these important topics three presentations were given in the 

County, with a combined attendance of more than 200 residents. Assistance from both 

Leduc County and the City of Leduc in developing brochures, developing a website and 

marketing plans was of great help as well. This program will be continuing into the 

following year providing knowledge to residents and businesses on how they can play 

a part in decreasing property crime. 

The enhanced member also worked with Leduc County in starting a new Traffic Advisory 

Committee, which will focus on developing strategies and changes to the local road 

network to improve safety for all users. 

Leduc RCMP-2017 Year in Review A 



Criminal Intelligence Analyst 

A Criminal Intelligence Analyst is a specialized support with a specific mandate to gather 

information and translate that into useable intelligence to better assist officers in 

detecting, solving, and preventing crime. An analyst like this is a critically important 

piece of the strategic policing puzzle, and an invaluable aid to officers in the field. The 

information and intelligence gathered by the analyst is used to identify viable suspect 

targets, help members focus on specific geographical areas in need of targeted patrols, 

and to monitor habitual offenders. 

In 2017 Leduc RCMP created and presented a Five Year Resource Plan to Council, 

which clearly outlined the direction the detachment wanted to go in the years to come. 

Within that report, completed in August 2017, the Officer in Charge of the detachment 

presented a business case for why Leduc would benefit from having an analyst. The 

plan was positively received and budget funding approved in 2018 in support of adding 

an intelligence analyst to our team. We are pleased at this time to report that the hiring 

process has been completed and our analyst will start on April 30, 201°8. 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review A 



Integrated Crime Reduction Unit (ICRU) 

The RCMP formed the Integrated Crime Reduction Unit (ICRU) in mid-October 2017 as 

a pilot project. As quickly as October 23, one of the first targeted arrests was completed. 

Leduc RCMP members and support staff were directly involved with a number of ICRU 

operations in the last quarter of 2017, and helped contribute to the overall success of 

the initiative. One of our own general duty Constables was seconded from his Watch to 

work with the fledgling team and produced outstanding results. Given the positive 

results of this pilot and the additional funding recently announced by the Province of 

Alberta, the RCMP is pleased to report that a full time unit has been established. In 

keeping with the focus of this Unit, the name has been changed to the Central Alberta 

District Crime Reduction Unit (CRU). 

The CRU is a support section to all of the detachments in Central Alberta District in the 

apprehension of serious prolific offenders, conducting special operations and gathering 

criminal intelligence. Intelligence is shared amongst neighbouring detachments as well 

as with the Edmonton Police Service, including their specialized sections. The CRU 

tracks crime trends and develops strategies aimed at reducing future crimes. 

To date, the CRU has recovered almost $500,000 in stolen property, including 18 stolen 

vehicles. More than 20 firearms I weapons have been seized. The team has made a 

total of 59 arrests of prolific offenders and their criminal associates. These arrests 

resulted in excess of 500 charges laid by either the CRU team, or by other jurisdictions 

as a result of the assistance of the CRU team. The CRU has executed over 50 

outstanding warrants with the arrests of these offenders. The RCMP is reinforcing the 

fact that crime reduction requires a collaboration with community members. We want 

you to report suspicious people or activities to your local RCMP whenever they occur. 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review 



LEDUC SUPPORT STAFF 

The Leduc RCMP and Enforcement Services 

Administration team has continued to evolve this year in 

an effort to meet the needs of the RCMP, the contract 

partners, and the communities we serve. Needs have 

been evaluated to ensure that we are working smart and 

we are meeting the changes necessary for 

administrative support to both the RCMP members and 

Community Peace Officers. In the general duty call for 

service we have evaluated where our needs have grown, 

what avenues have been used by other regions to meet 

similar growth, and begun to implement transitions for 

effective change management. 

Some of the factors that have altered our roles are the implementation of the new bail 

hearing process, impending AAFRAC's radio system changes, and substantial 

increases in both property and drug related crime. We believe an effective strategy to 

provide this support is to implement an additional support clerk to each watch, inclusive 

of coverage on evenings, weekends and statutory holidays. This implementation has 

started with staffing actions, re-assignment of duties and training. 

We have modified our cross training and assignment tasking in all areas of our 

administrative team to ensure we have personnel ready to perform all duties. The City 

of Leduc has supported a new Traffic Clerk position that has allowed for additional 

support to the members of our community working both traffic safety and traffic 

enforcement. 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review A 



-- __ ... ___________ _ 

The administrative team is absorbing the computer data 

entry obligations that previously were completed by 

members. We have refined the gathering and analysis of 

statistical traffic data to ensure that enforcement is being 

deployed in a strategic manner that focuses on traffic 

safety, and we continue to provide analysis of 

information for modifications as necessary. We continue 

to strive everyday to find ways of adapting to growth, 

community priorities and public safety here in Leduc. 

LeeAnne Mcleod 

Operations Supervisor 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review 

Sandra MacDonald 

Administrative Supervisor 



LEDUC RCMP & ENFORCEMENT SERVICES 

Working closely with the Leduc RCMP Detachment, 

Leduc Enforcement Services (LES) raises awareness 

and ensures compliance with City bylaws and select 

Provincial statutes. This enforcement responsibility 

includes traffic enforcement, parking control, community 

standards, animal control, weed control and property 

compliance. 

In addition to enforcement, the team of Community Peace Officers (CPO's) that make 

up LES are involved in a variety of community activities which help build Leduc. Some 

of these activities include positive ticketing, bike safety rodeos, Candy Cane check 

stops, food drives, school presentations and Drug Awareness and Resistance 

Education (DARE). LES consists of a team of seven CPO's, with one CPO dedicated to 

the Municipal Integrated Traffic Unit on a rotational basis. 

In 2017, there were 2,746 LES related calls for service from the public. This represents 

about a 22% increase over our 2016 calls for service. With respect to self-generated 

files, Enforcement Services created 481 files that were initiated by Leduc CPO's. In 

2017, Enforcement Services attended to 346 snow related files, 165 weed related files 

and 623 animal related files. 

Over 1,025 hours of community work was 

performed by the CPO's in the City of Leduc. 

These statistics represent an important 

contribution with respect to keeping the 

community safe and improving the quality of 

life in Leduc. 

Leduc RCMP-2017 Year in Review 



FIVE YEAR TRENDS 2013 - 2017 
Municipal (City) Statistics 

The following charts show the calls for service at the detachment separated by crime 

type and location. 

Leduc Municipal Detachment 

5 Year Traffic Summary - January to Q4 

January to Q4 Trend 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Fat als /"- 0 2 1 1 1 
~ 

lniurv MVC 64 104 84 80 106 ----Propertv Damage MVC {Reportable) 715 749 578 527 629 

Property Damage M VC {Non Reportable) "--- 132 85 64 77 63 
----...._ 

Total M VC 911 940 727 685 799 

January t o Q4 Trend 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

lmoaired Operation* 
Current ly Not Available 

Roadside suspensions - alcohol related - No charee** 
__./'\__ 

41 49 87 35 35 

Occupant Restraint/Seatbelt Violations•• ""--- 294 222 76 79 56 

SpeedinJ? Violations* * /'-- 226 1004 527 613 721 

Intersect ion Relat ed Violat ions** /\/-' 182 310 84 249 284 

Driving wit hout Due care or Attent ion* 
Current ly Not Available 

other Movine Traffic* 
Current ly Not Available 

~ 
other Non-Moving Violation** 865 1224 812 948 803 

Other cc Traffic*** '-- 83 49 47 37 40 
'include "Cleared b11 Charge" and "Cleared Other" ' "'Actual" "'"Reported" 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review 



L,educ Municipal Detachment 

Statistical Comparison 

January to Q4: 201.3 - 2017 

All cat egories contain "Attempted " and/or "Completed" 

CATEGORY Trend 2013 2014 

Homici d es & Offences Re lated to Death ~ 5 4 

Robbery /'v 8 12 

Sexu al Assaul ts 
~ 22 34 

Oth er Sexual Offences ~ 16 4 

Assaul t 
---........-

329 315 

Ki dnapping/Hostage/Abducti on ~ 6 11 

Extorti on ~ 3 1 

Cri mi na l Harassment '-- 143 95 

Utteri ng Threats ----- 134 132 

Other Persons ~ 8 7 

TOTAL PERSONS 
--......... 674 615 

Break & Enter 
_,,,,_ 

125 131 

Th eft of Motor Vehi cl e __./ 89 118 

Theft Over $5,000 ~ 35 19 

Theft Und er $5,000 
___.-

524 550 

Possn Stn Goods __../ 56 55 

Fraud 
__.,,,. 

184 191 

Arson '--'. 12: 6 -M isch iefio Property 542 540 

TOTAL PROPERTY 
___.,,. 

1.,567 1.,610 

Offensi ve We ap ons. 
__,_ 

43 37 

Public Order ""-- 8 3 

Disturbing the peace 
...........__ 

393 348 

-OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 557 594 

TOTAL OTHER CRIMINAL CODE ----- 1,001 982 -TCTALCR IMI NALCODE 3,242 3,207 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review 

January-05-18 

2015 2016 2017 

1 2 0 

22 6 17 

24 22 27 

15 11 19 

294 228 308 

5 5 7 

1 2 6 

81 87 83 

105 89 100 

5 3 1 

553 455 568 

184 150 187 

126 165 344 

24 26 44 

574 708 870 

84 76 140 

224 226 293 

6 8 3 

543 474 510 

1,765 um 2,391 

51 50 43 

4 0 0 

241 206 232 

522 492 511 

818 748 786 

3,136 3,036 3,745 



Leduc Municipal Detachment 

Statistical Comparison 

January to Q4: 2013 - 2017 
All categories contain "Attempted" and/ or "Completed" 

CATEGORY Trend 2013 2014 

Drug Enforcement - Production vv 4 2 

Drug Enforcement - Possession 
~ 

154 16 2 

Drug Enforcement- Trafficking 
---....,..... 

57 59 

Drug Enforcement - Other /'...../ 1 2 

Tot al Drugs ---- 216 225 

Federal - General 
..-.....__ 

64 89 

TOTAL FEDERAL 
--........ 

280 314 

Liquor Act ~ 180 191 -_, 
Other Provi ncial Stats 337 357 

Total Provincial Stats 
-......_.. 

517 548 

Munici pal By-l aws Traffic: '--- 161 55 

Munici pal By-l aws '-- 500 2&1 

Total Municipal "'--- 661 336 

Fatals I'- 0 2 

lnj ury M VC 
,,...__,,, 

64 104 

Property Damage MVC (Reportable) 
-............. 

715 74 9 

Property Damage MVC (Non Reportable) ""-- 132 85 

TOTALMVC 
-........--

911 94-0 

ProvinciaJ Traffic ~ 2,752 4,159 

other Traffac ~ 41 49 -Criminal Code Traffic 
..... 

360 333 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review 

2015 2016 2017 

3 1 4 

158 145 106 

54 40 53 

1 1 3 

216 187 166 

59 35 39 

275 222 205 

132 84 66 

309 287 400 

441 3 71 466 

48 3 4 26 

249 282 310 

297 3 16 336 

1 1 1 

84 80 106 

578 527 629 

64 77 63 

727 685 799 

2,491 3,219 2,825 

87 35 3 5 

292 294 242 

A 



Provincial (Rural) Statistics 

The following statistics show the data from all of Leduc County within our jurisdiction. 

Leduc Provincial Detachment 

S Vear Traffic Summary-January to Q4 

January to Q4 Trend 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Fatals 
/---._ 

4 8 7 5 4 ----lnjuryMVC 225 210 178 157 163 --Property Damage MVC (Reportable) 1117 1063 905 717 840 

"---
Property Damage MVC (Non Reportable) 207 124 124 115 112 --TotalMVC 1553 1405 1214 994 1119 

January to Q4 Trend 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Impaired Operation* 
Currently Not Available 

Roadside Suspensions - alcohol related - No charge** 
~ 

63 56 83 48 28 

Occupant Restraint/Seatbelt Violations** ~ 238 170 25 15 17 

Speeding Violations** ~ 2979 2416 402 373 549 

Intersection Related Violations""' \_ 451 76 55 52 66 

Driving without Due Care or Attention• Currently Not Available 

Other Moving Traffic• Current ly Not Available 

Other Non-Moving Violation** 
~ 

2057 1795 753 753 875 

otfler CC Traffic*** '---- 115 83 60 46 60 
' include "Cleared by Charge" and "Cleared Other" " "Actual" ' " "Reported" 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review A 



Leduc Provincial Detachment 

Statistical Comparison 

January to Q4: 2013 - 2017 
All categori es contain "Attempted" and/ or "Compl eted" 

CATEGORY Trend 2013 2014 

Homi ci des &Offences Related to Death _/'- 2 3 

RobbeP/ ~ 6 3 

Sexual Assaults '-'-- 14 7 

Other Sexual Offences \/'- 5 1 

Assault ~ 138 137 

Kidnappi ng/ Hostage/ Abducti on ..__../\ 6 4 

Extorti on _/ 0 0 

Cri mi nal Harassment ~ 50 54 

Utteri ng Threats ----- 66 60 

Other Persons /'v 0 1 

TOTAL PERSONS --.......... 11!.1 270 

Break & Enter ~ 142 141 

Theft of Motor Vehicle 
__./ 

140 135 

Theft Over $5,000 ..._/ 46 30 

Theft Under .$5,000 ___./' 
290 323 

Possn St n Goods --../ 71 101 

fraud -- 99 110 

Arson --./ 10 15 

M i s"Chi ef l o Property ~ 215 281 

TOTAL PROPERTY 
___, 

1,019 1,136 

Offensi ve Weapons ---- 103 102 

Public Order ~ 2 1 

Disturbing the peace --- 360 315 -OTHER CRIMINAL CODE 256 245 

TOTAL OTHER CRIMINAL CODE -- 721 663 

TOTAL CR IMINAL CODE 
___... 

2.027 2,069 

Leduc RCMP- 2017 Year in Review 

January-05-18 

2015 2016 2017 

8 4 4 

11 12 15 

8 4 5 

5 4 3 

147 88 121 

3 11 4 

1 2 2 

26 30 31 

46 41 52 

2 0 1 

257 196 238 

163 170 225 

144 147 217 

31 54 70 

327 334 506 

79 57 144 

123 107 137 

13 11 21 

242 163 254 

1.122 1,043 1,574 

80 90 70 

1 3 0 

259 225 195 

224 247 263 

564 565 528 

1,943 1,804 2,340 



Leduc Provincial Detachment 

Statistical Comparison 

January to Q4: 2013 - 2017 

All categories contain "Attempted" and/or "Completed" 

CATEGORY Trend 2013 2014 

Drug Enforcement - Production \.._,;r- 3 1 

Drug Enforcement - Posse.ssion ---- 127 124 

Drug Enforcement - Trafficking 
---..._ 

23 21 

Drug Enforcement - other "'--- 14 11 

Total Drugs '""""-- 167 157 

Federa l - General "--- 474 185 

TOTAL FEDERAL '- 641 342 

Liquor Act ~ 93 125 

Other Provincial Stats 
~ 

186 213 -Total Provincial Stats 279 338 

Municipal By-laws Traffic /V 1 4 

Municipa l By-laws V'- 33 10 

Total Muni<lipal V'- 34 14 

Fatals 
,,--......... 

4 8 

Injury MVC ---- 225 210 

Property Oamag.e MVC (Reportable) ----- 1,117 1,063 

Property Damage MVC (Non Reportable) '-- 207 124 

TOTALMVC 
-......_ 

1,553 1,405 

Provincial Traffic "'""- 8~ 7,049 

other Traffic ~ 63 58 

Criminal Code Traffic ""-- 671 547 

Leduc RCMP-2017 Year in Review 

2015 2016 2017 

1 2 2 

91 86 74 

22 14 13 

4 7 6 

118 109 95 

51 60 71 

169 169 166 

130 101 57 

167 201 222 

297 302 279 

7 2 5 

35 20 20 

42 22 25 

7 5 4 

178 157 163 

905 717 &40 

124 115 112 

1,214 994 1,119 

3,172 2,712 3,594 

83 48 28 

367 354 370 



Town of Calmar - Leduc Provincial Detachment 
Crime Statistics 

2014- 2017 

CATEGORY Trend 2014 2015 

Homicides & Offences Relate-0 to Death 0 0 

Robbery /V 1 7 

Sexual Assaults ~ 1 2 

Other Sexual Offences ~ 1 2 

Assault 
---....._ 35 31 

Kidnapping/Hostage/ Abduction ~ 2 0 

Extortion 0 0 

Criminal Harassment ~ 16 10 

Uttering Threats ~ 7 9 

Other Persons 0 0 

!TOTAL PERSONS ·~ 63 61 

Break & Enter ----./ 19 14 

Theft of Motor Vehicle 
..__...,, 

17 11 

Theft Over $5,000 "-._/ 5 2 

Theft Under $5,000 ----..../" 46 59 

Possn Stn Goods ___/ 8 3 

Fraud - _ __,.,,.. 
11 13 

Arson A_ 0 8 

MischiefTo Property ~ 45 38 

TOTAL PROPERTY ---../' 151 148 

Offensive Weapons ~ 6 9 

Public Order 0 0 

Disturbing the peace /"--- 7 24 

OTHER CRIMINAL CODE --....../ 33 42 

!TOTAL OTHER CRIMINAL CODE ~ 46 75 

TOTAL CRIMINAL CODE 
-.....,,-

260 284 

Leduc RCMP - 2017 Year in Review 

January-10-18 

2016 2017 

0 0 

0 4 

1 0 

0 0 

12 17 

1 0 

0 0 

3 11 

3 8 

0 0 

20 40 

12 29 

16 27 

0 6 

36 70 

4 25 

11 16 

0 0 

21 39 

100 212 

0 2 

0 0 

12 10 

25 48 

37 60 

157 312 

6 



Town of Calmar - Leduc Provincial Detachment 
Crime Statistics 

2014- 2017 

CATEGORY Trend 2014 2015 2016 2017 

Drug Enforcement - Production ~ 0 1 1 0 

Drug Enforcement - Possession ~ 2 4 8 7 

Drug Enforcement - Trafficking /'- 0 8 2 2 

Drug Enforcement - Other 0 0 0 0 

otal Drugs ~ 2 13 11 9 

Federal - General ~ 3 2 1 1 

TOTAL FEDERAL ~ 5 15 12 10 

Liquor Act /"-- 3 16 6 5 

other Provincial Stats ~ 20 9 21 34 

Total Provincial Stats 
~ 23 25 27 39 

Municipal By-laws Traffic 
............_,, 

2 1 2 2 

Municipal By-laws ~ 2 12 9 5 

otal Municipal ~ 4 13 11 7 

Fatals ~ 0 0 1 0 

Injury MVC 
........__,,,, 

2 1 1 3 

Property Damage MVC (Reportable) 
_____,..,, 

17 11 16 26 

Property Damage MVC (Non Reportable) ~ 1 3 2 1 

TOTALMVC 
____.,-

20 15 20 30 

Provincial Traffic 
--.._.... 

49 52 35 46 

other Traffic /'-- 0 2 1 1 

criminal Code Traffic 19 20 18 16 

Common Police Activities 

False Alarms 
__.,.---

40 63 70 57 

False/Abandoned 911 call and 911 Act ............... 10 6 9 8 

Suspicious Person/Vehicle/Property 
,,,-._.- 13 30 21 28 

Persons Reported Missing ~ 4 10 7 7 

Leduc RCMP-2017 Year in Review A 



MEETING DATE: April 23, 2018 

SUBMITTED BY: Rachel Yeung, Manager, Community Development 

PREPARED BY: Elana Hansen, Administrator, Community Development 

REPORT TITLE: Municipal Grant- Leduc Arts Foundry 

REPORT SUMMARY 

Administration has received and processed an application from the Leduc Arts Foundry for an Event Hosting Grant through 
the City's Municipal Grant Request Program. 

RECOMMENDATION 

That Council awards a grant to Leduc Arts Foundry for an amount not to exceed $5,000, which is to be funded from Council 
Community Grants to help offset expenses related to hosting the annual Leduc Art Walk on Main Street on July 14, 2018. 

BACKGROUND 

KEY ISSUE(S) I CONTEXT: 

The Leduc Arts Foundry has applied for a hosting grant to offset event expenses associated with the Leduc Art Walk to be 
held on July 14, 2018. 

This is the second annual one-day street festival, which brings together local community and Alberta based artists and 
artisans to display and sell art and any other handmade local goods in the historical Main Street District of Leduc, AB. 
Artists will engage with the community, offering workshops, demonstrations and performances by local musicians 
scheduled throughout the day to create an immersive and all-encompassing community arts experience. The event 
provides for an inclusive environment designed by artists to engage the broader community, inspiring collaborative 
creativity and culture to artists and patrons alike. Last year's event brought in an attendance of 3000+, hosted over 55 artist 
displays and included performances by local musicians. Current artist registration is already over 68, and registration is 
nearly full. 

The grant, if approved, would be allocated to offset overhead costs for the event, volunteer and medical services including 
nourishment, tent, table and chair rental, chalk and balloon artist, and misc. (e.g. insurance). 

The Grant Application Subcommittee recommends the grant be approved for the full amount requested ($5,000) 

IMPLICATIONS OF RECOMMENDATION 

FINANCIAL: 

Funds for this grant will be funded through the Council Community Grants Account. 

Report Number: 2018-CR-044 Page 1of2 

Updated: February 2, 2017 



Others Who Have Reviewed this Report

P. Benedetto, City Manager / J. Cannon, Acting General Manager, Corporate Services / D. Brock, Acting General Manager, 
Community & Protective Services J. Cannon, Director, Finance

AL TERNATIVE(S): 

That Council award a grant to Leduc Arts Foundry for an alternate amount, which is to be funded from Council Community 
Grants to help offset expenses related to hosting the annual Leduc Art Walk on Main Street on July 14, 2018. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Hosting Grant Application - Leduc Arts Foundry 

Report Number: 2018-CR-044 Page 2 of 2 

Updated: February 2, 2017 



/fet.ott1-M i clord-<:.K-o#f 

/lllac/J/J7e11 I 

City Council Hosting Grant Request 

Application Form 

The personal information on this form is being collected for !he purpose of determining eligibility 
of an applicant to receive a Council Gran!. The information is collected under !he authority of File# 
section 33(c) of !he Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Ac! and may become - ---
public information. Questions regarding the collection of this information can be directed lo !he Application# 
City Clerk at (780) 980-7177. #1 Alexandra Park, Leduc, AB. T9E 4C4. -----

Applications must be received no less than six (6) weeks prior to the scheduled event date; however 
(eight) 8 weeks prior is preferred for administrative purposes. Applications will be processed as submitted. 

Event Information 

1. Describe the nature of the event to be hosted (include date, location and volunteer component(s): 

t:l<+ ..Jt\ . .Ul ~O\ B 

~-Scl::ius~ :f~ \~ 1;)018 

2. Select the type of event to be hosted (choose all that apply): 

D Amateur Sport 0 · Multicultural j A-1~ 
3. Select event geographic (choose one): 

(il./Regional 

0 Provincial 

0 Inter-Provincial 

0 National 

D International 

4. Select which best describes the history of this event (choose one): 

0 Recreation 

UY' Regular and ongoing { a.nnwJ. onQ_ ~ ¥.s~ 
0 New Initiative 

5. Is this event a public event for City of Leduc residents to attend? (choose one) 

O"" Yes 0 No 

6. How many people are expected to participate? 

Revised: January 22, 2018 
Form 2010FA..014R3 

<.a:xp - 1qot:o ~n~s . 

\t>O_,,-~sl ~S-\"S.J 0-.<'tt~s) 
~ 0-~ \J O~n-\<Q \S. 

t.:e0at.c 



- - -- ----- ------c-----;---------------

City Council Hosting Grant Request 

Applicant Information 
1. Select the applicant status (choose all that apply): 

tit" Non-profit organization 

0 Local school 

O Local group affiliated with a National or Provincial entity 

(name of entity: _______ ___. 

2. Has the applicant been registered or in operation for at least one year? (choose one) 

~Yes O No 

3. Has the applicant been awarded a hosting grant within the same calendar year? (choose one) 

O Yes ~No 
4. Please give a brief description about your organization including its primary objectives: 

·1s ~ ~ .,S-\<'C'<.+-(.c~-·h\b..I bi.i14.!':. ~-·\he.r lot.o-1 ~muni.-k\ ~ ~~ 
~w o.r4-\s--T:::. ~ ~~ ~ ck5p~ ~ ¥ 11 a..r+ ~ ~ ~~~ 
\.cw.J, °O~ ~~ ~~ ~ ~~e..+ d-1.s-Y-lcr cn.t, J.-e.cluc._,Ab. A-r<:t-t~ vJU.I 

~(.·..)!:}LA·~ CbVI~ I o}.\'e.n.nci l.A)o(' t:."'i!>hap!!:, o.0 dtl'Y\..Ot\~1Pf\Ct. 
cpd-~f\CA.C:V. b ... , Lo~ ~f,.c:.~ Ore- sdu-c~ -\-\.ira~~ . .\ht_ cl~ 
-b ~e. o..N ~ ~ ().il-...Qn.<Z>~lrt:J ~rvu..._~~ ~ • e>-/!. ruu~ai.. 

L , ' . \ - ,., . . c . r ~ ~~'\I~ 
~ C.~VV\~ I' ~p<.rLr-c:, ~"~ c~~~L~1 -v-A ~ u-.... c-t-h'E:.-t ~\ ~"O-<-.'S ~~ 

5. Organization Name: J_.edu,c,Ar~ _fuicrlCL.\ • 

6. Name of Contact: Cdoa od f I I Qop\ I(_. ( 0¥t·, c oJ.-\hR 'Bc:osiJ 

7. Contact's Position in Organization: Cha+t:' ~ 0*a\W.Q -koa.rrl:/o.cllJ}W <4 \:'.;£~ u.x:t\:'.:...<. 

8. Address of Contact: 

Revised: January 22, 2018 
Form 2010FA-014R3 

Street: 

City: C'a\roa.C 

Province: 

Postal Code: 

Phone (home): 

Phone (work): 

Fax: 

Email: 



City Council Hosting Grant Request 

Grant Request 
1. Select the type of request (choose one): -

CJ % of facility/equipment rental (attach rental agreement) 

CJ 100 % ($ 

CJ 75 % ($ 

CJ 50 % ($ 

CJ 25%($ ------~·or 
~Defray event costs. Please indicate the amount requested: $ ~ .oa 

NOTE: Grants cannot be used toward damage deposits 

2. If applicable, provide details how the grant will be allocated to defray event costs: 

~nO.t'rq -~ cvnM<O wou..\d ~~~ ~-fol 1-o~ /")(' '. 
-Vo\ll.n.\«.r ~ """'~(:~ sen'ta~ -k"-+ ., ~b\es ~ c.ha.....r-"S.> L~) 

- \'\~W~,...;- ~< Vd-.t.v·dc.e~ _ -e_l[Ut\- ~-f+ c:;_~ \Jbl~ 
·-~~(l/"\q Dt- &-A-1 \L ar-+1'--t- l.a.M.tt®~}ntir~ ~-
- r\\r~ ,.-,°1 o+ 6~\oO<'I o..rh~+-

3. What is the total operating budget for your group or organization including fundraising initiatives? 
Please give revenue and expenditure details. Attach additional pages if necessary. 

p\ea.~ ~e.- ~--\+etched f>mij-c-Jr- bv.d~* cl-OCM.~+ 

~\ ~~·-\-lJa- 1 c.o~+ ~ = s c9L\, 8~o 

4. Please provide a budget for this event. If applicable, include what facilities will be required 
including number of hours and cost of rental. Attach additional pages if necessary . 

.$ ;:J4, 8 loo - ~ s. pee a...-Hach.ed-- p:-o (j-&- b~-+ 

~\} e ~*" w l.l \ <Uf'\ fur ~ r v...1o\u:. .\'.ro("V"t 114.fY\ - BfM 4-S 

l\. °"'e... cl~ ~s~1.rl\.\ w~ \JO \.t. L (\~rs a.rd.Lt\-~ P"oo<- C.-1- -k.a.m I 
b oarc\ h'im~ Jo\.u"-.\ufLA) -k--DVV"I l,.'?:,aq r"'(") - IOprY'\ . 

Revised: January 22, 2018 
Form 2010FA..014R3 



"Original Signed"

- ...... 

City Council Hosting Grant Request. 

Application Declaration 

We the undersigned do hereby declare that to the best of our knowledge this application: 
1. Contains a full, current and accurate account for all matters stated herein, 
2. Is made for and on behalf of the Organization by the undersigned, 
3. Is in respect of a project which is in the best interests of the Organization and which has been 

officially approved by a majority vote as defined by the constitution of the Organization , 
4. We declare that the monies will be used for the purpose the application was approved. If the 

event is not undertaken, the grant money will be returned, and 
5. We agree to fulfill the commitments of the grant, which include submitting the required final 

report within one month following the completion of the event identifying the project outcome 
and an evaluation of the project in relation to its objectives. 

If grant awarded, the cheque will be made payable to: 

Name of Organization: 

Address of Organization: 

Si~ture of Vfce-Chair or Vice-President 

Return this completed application with all supporting material attached to: 

Revised: January 22, 2018 
Form 2010FA-014R3 

Elana Hansen, Community Development 
City of Leduc 

#1 Alexandra Park 

Leduc, AB, T9E 4C4 
Phone: 780-980-7180 

Fax: 780-980-7127 
Email: ehansen@leduc.ca 



P•ge I of2 

CIP Prolect·Based • Settlon E • Budget 

Pro)oct Fcmdlna ~Is· Pluse ld111tlfy all SOUtWJ of funding for the pro]o<t 

Total Amount 

CIP ProJect·S.sed Funding Gran! Requos1 • pleaw flll In tho fundlna request for !his oppllcatlon {Maximum request $75,000) • 8905.00 

Addlllonal Revenuos lo complel• th• pro)oru 
Conhrmed Amount Pendlno Amount 

Ora•nlallon's C.sh COnttibutlon to the project < 2000.00 • 4800.00 • 6800 

Municipal Funding < 1 soo.00 I< 1500 

Provlndal Fundina {other Government of Alberta sources) < • • 
federal Fundlna ~ < ~ 

Other Fundlnc Soun:as • < 1000.00 $ 1000 

Oonattd-ln·Klnd (lncludlna all l1bour, equlpmen~ material)• s 6 655.00 $ $ 6 655 

Total Pto)«t fun.drnc (This amount must equal tll• Total Pro}l<t cost) • ~ 24800 

HQ.II;_ To ldd add lddlUonol lnform1tlOI\ 111Kh a 11par1101h11t In the um1 """11L 

' Anlldpated PtoJo<t EJCPtf!ses • De111lled list ol 111 the e~penses for the pr0~ • cesh costs only 
' . 

Dlltollrd lttm daalpllon Quot. Sourc. To"'I C<>St 

StueRen"'I 500 < 500.00 

Hlrln• of Chalk Artist 700 < •700.00 

Hlrln• of Balloon Artist 1225 • 1225.00 

OtvPermlts 200 < 200.00 

Hlrln• of tiead .. llne.r Musicians 5000 • 5000.00 

Medl1 and event marketln• llndudu: all or1nted m1terl1ls •l•nHo and event 1dverti5ementl 5150 $ 5150.00 

Toilet Rentals 4l6.82 • 450.00 

Tables tent ourc-h1se 2000 < 2000.00 

Vountf!tr nourshlment 1500 t 1500.00 

Name badaesnanvards for vendo-n: and "°'unteers 500 s 500.00 

t 

~ 

$ 

$ 

s 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

s 
s 

Is 

$ 

$ 

$ 
,. ~ .,.,w ·, 

' Total A $ 17225 

• Plea10 see Paso 2 for donated-In kind template 



Page 2of 2 

Dona~ ubovr• 
,,. . 

Dualptlon of onllclpattd labour 
No. of Volunteers Total Hours Wo1kfd Rate/Hr Total V1lue of Work 

Website and re1lstn1tlon developementlsuooort 2 75 $ 35.00 $ 2,625 

Event Ptannlnt committee 5 55 s 35.00 s 1925 

Event set·UP Cff!W 20 6 $ 35.00 $ 210 

Event tal«Hfown--crew 20 6 s 20.00 s 120 

Soonsor/fundlng explorotJon and arant wr1ting team 2 45 $ 35.00 $ 1,575 

Ev.nt dav 1mb11S1dor$ 10 10 $ 20.00 s 200 

$ s . 

$ . $ 

$ $ 

$ $ 

Total I $ 6 655 

Do1!1teil Equlp-t• 

CHsctlpt/on of worlt being compi.r.d Including tnw of rqulpm•nt Total Equipment Hours !Includes operator) Rato/Hr Total Value of Work 

Spultvs ond iound syst«m $ 14.00 
$ 70.00 s 980 

s s 

$ $ 

$ . $ 

s $ 

s $ 

s $ 

$ $ 

$ $ 

$ $ 

Totol C $ 980 

Donated Ml!Wlal/Sel'Vlces 

Donated bv 
Total Value of 

Dau/pt/on of mottrlol/nrvlats (please attach a donation letter on companv lotter head) Equipment/ 
M1to1l1ls 

Spuqrs ond sound mtvn $ 

$ 

s 
s 

s 
s 

s 
s 
$ 

$ 
~ 

TOll l 0 $ 

Total Pro Cost, .. Total A. Totol 8 . Total C• Total D 

• Rate• 110: $20/hr for unskilled labour. $35/hr for •killed labour and $70/hr for equipment lncludln& operatlng 



MEETING DATE: April 23, 2018 

SUBMITTED BY: Jennifer Cannon, Director, Finance 

PREPARED BY: Jennifer Cannon, Director, Finance 

Gino Damo - Manager, Revenue Services 

REPORT TITLE: 2018 PROPERTY TAX BYLAW 975-2018 SECOND AND THIRD READING 

REPORT SUMMARY 

To consider Second and Third Readings of Bylaw 975-2018. 

RECOMMENDATION 

1. That Council give Bylaw 975-2018 Second Reading. 
2. That Council give Bylaw 975-2018 Third Reading. 

BACKGROUND 

KEY ISSUE(S) I CONTEXT: 

Background on the Emerging Issues 

1. EIA Transit 

At the Airport Accord Oversight Committee meeting on February 23, 2018, the partners to the Accord (City of Leduc, Leduc 
County, City of Edmonton, and Edmonton International Airport (EIA)) agreed to implement an integrated sub-regional 
service with the Accord Partners based on a cost sharing model by December 31 , 2018. They also agreed to short term 
actions to be implemented by May 1, 2018 to coincide with the opening of the mall. The new transit will link Route 747 at 
the EIA and extend enhanced opportunities to travel between Edmonton and Leduc. In addition, it will increase access to 
the EIA w ith the opening of the new mall and future amenities. 

It is important to recognize that there was a business case brought forward as part of the Committee of the Whole public 
budget meetings in November 2017. Administration was aware that there would be a need for transit to the new EIA mall, 
but the information was incomplete due to availability of limited information; as a result the business case was not 
approved. It was determined that more information was needed in addition to seeking financial partnerships. At the EIA 
Accord Oversight Committee on February 23, 2018, the Transit Task Force presented the proposed services and costing . 
This kick-started the transit business case and on March 26, directed Administration to make the financial commitment. 
The EIA Accord Transit Services and Funding report (2018-CR-047 presented April 9, 2018) provides significant 
information about this initiative and seeks the authorization to adjust the 2018 operational budget. At this time the 2018 
figures are an estimate and further refinement will occur during the 2019 budget process. 

Report Number: 2018-CR-008 Page 1of9 

Updated: February 2, 2017 



EIA Transit Costs 

As already stated, the regional partners agreed to implement an integrated sub-regional service with the Accord Partners 
based on a cost sharing model by December 31 , 2018. They also agreed to short term actions to be implemented by May 
1, 2018 to coincide with the opening of the mall, with the short-term enhancements to be cost-shared by Leduc County and 
the City of Leduc. The estimated costs for this service enhancement is as follows: 

Annual operating cost will be $1 .928M with the City of Leduc's portion being $1.021 M. As this service is expected 
to start May 1, 2018, the operational base impact will span two years: 

2018 will be $1 .195M with the City of Leduc's portion being approximately $650k. 
2019 will be $733k with the City of Leduc's portion being approximately $371k. 

Capital and one -time costs wil l also span two years, but these are one-time funded and do not impact the 
operational base (except for future reserve allocations). The estimated costs are as follows: 

2018 will be $22.4k with the City of Leduc's portion being $14.56k. 
2019 will be $2.459M with the City of Leduc's portion being $1.438M. 

The costs associated with the EIA transit initiative were not included in the December approval of the 2018 budget. It is 
Administration's intention to use one-time funding for the annual operating cost of approximately $650k-$700k in 2018, by 
utilizing the 2017 year-end surplus. The ongoing operational funding requirement will be addressed through the 2019 
budget process. To provide perspective, the $1.021M equates to an approximate 2.22% tax revenue increase requirement 
(below is an illustration of how this could look based on the Dec 4th approved multi-year strategy). 

December 4, 2017 Budget Approval 

1 41tt: O~,_,"°"~ / C..poLll 
ltoqu""trUC:PO 

DM.1uttd f\tl't R .. 1eSUJlC'l'f 
rott',.:iH•t1Wt'S!'~i 

2018 2019 2020 

2. Provincial Education Requisition 

Modified Multi-year Millrate (inclusive of transit) 

o.c••, 2011 
Mutd•y•at t..: ~t11t.t"fY 

2018 2019 2020 

= = = 
~1 1 . -:i' 
t...:...:.::... L:__, I I 

The second emerging issue was a result of the Provincial Education Requisition. 

The Provincial Education Requisition for 2018 is $18,104,561 increased from last year $17,752,690 (2017). This 
requisition is n:iade of two components: residential and non-residential. To enhance clarity it is important to recognize that 
the Provincial Education Requisition uses equalized assessment which is based on assessment values from 2016 (as 
provincial equalized assessment lags one-year compared to municipalities assessments). 

Report Number: 2018-CR-008 Page 2 of 9 

Updated: February 2, 2017 



Defining equalized assessment - As stated from Municipal Affairs, "Equalized assessment is a process that levels 
the playing field for municipalities so that property tax requisitions and grants can be fairly allocated. " 

Since equalized assessment "levels the playing field for municipalities", areas that experience growth in declining economic 
conditions will be impacted unfavourably by the requisition. As the City of Leduc continued to experience non-residential 
growth when other areas in Alberta saw a decline, the result for this year was a considerable unfavorable increase to the 
non-residential component of the requisition. In 2017, the City of Leduc was requisitioned $7 ,503, 783 for non-residential; 
this year it increased to $8, 110,926. The $607, 143 increase is the equivalent to a 1.31% tax revenue increase for the non
residential ratepayers. To provide perspective this would mean: 

Municipal requirement 
Provincial requirement 
Total tax revenue increase 

3.65% 
1.31% 
4.96% 

Reviewing the residential component of the requisition, in 2018 there was a decrease from $10,248,908 (2017) to 
$9,993,636 (2018). The $255,272 decrease is favourable and is equivalent to a 0.55% reduction in the tax revenue 
requirement. To illustrate: 

Municipal requirement 
Provincial requirement 
Total tax revenue increase 

3.65% 
-0.55% 
3.10% 

Recognizing the increase was both significant and unexpected for the non-residential ratepayers Administration 
recommends alleviating the impact to the non-residential ratepayers through a targeted approach with a combination of 
expenditure reduction and the use of 2017 year-end surplus funds. 

Municipal Targeted Approach 

Through collaboration, it is Administrations understanding that Council has a desire to keep the tax revenue increase to a 
minimum; a shared goal between both Administration and Council. Recognizing that the Provincial School Requisition has 
placed pressure upon the non-residential ratepayers while providing a reduction to the residential ratepayers Administration 
is recommending through a targeted approach a consistent tax revenue increase inclusive of both municipal and provincial 
levies. The combined tax revenue increase of 2.90% is being proposed for both residential and non-residential ratepayers. 
This lofty goal will be achieved by reducing the 2018 contracted services budget by $230,000. As this is a reduction of 
expenses this is considered ongoing reduction to the operational base and will extend into 2019. The remaining revenue 
(approximately $200k) will be sourced from the 2017 year-end surplus. As surplus funds are considered one-time funding 
they w ill not extend into 2019. This means that in 2019 these one-time funds will need to be addressed. 

Next Steps 

Administration developed proposed budget revisions based on Council's desire to find a way to utilize year-end surplus 
funds, to be split between the operating and capital budget. Until 2017, the year-end surplus funds were re-invested into 
the community and have supported numerous capital projects such as the spray park, Telford Lake rowing facility, and the 
Library expansion to name a few. The 2018 budget will need to be n;wised as the surplus has been strategically used to 
support the emergent EIA transit requirement and to provide targeted assistance to the non-residential ratepayers as a 
result of the unanticipated increase of the provincial requisition. 

Report Number: 2018-CR-008 Page 3 of 9 

Updated: February 2, 2017 



Recognizing the need to capture the EIA transit funding within the operational base beyond 2018 and the desire to keep tax 
revenue increases to a minimum Administration based on the direction from Council, further reviewed a shift in fiscal 
philosophy with respect to year-end surplus funds. As part of the 2019 budget process Administration is committed to 
researching how other municipalities utilize year-end surplus funds. Administration is cautious as surplus funds are one
time and would like to ensure appropriate due-diligence is taken. This research will be used to support and draft a revised 
philosophy, in addition to a new fiscal policy that supports continued community capital re-investment in combination with a 
taxation strategy. 

Shift in Fiscal Philosophy 

The current fiscal philosophy uses surplus funds to support community re-invesement through capital and one-time 
projects. The revised policy will be based on a new platform that continues to support community re-investment, but also 
provides strategic taxation options. 

The focus for Administration with regard to the fiscal philosophy will be to find ways that the surplus can be used to reduce 
in a prudent manner the 2019 and 2020 tax revenue requirements; 5.70% and 5.80% respectively (inclusive of EIA transit 
as identified previously. Administration is confident in working with Council to developing a philosophy that can align tax 
smoothing strategies and fiscal sustainability that will manage the magnitude of shifts between budget years. 

An example of a revised fiscal strategy that could be used wou ld be to establish a conservative "forecasted" surplus and 
use 50% for community re-investment and 50% for tax reduction. Please note, this example is high level and does not 
define an exact mulit-year mill rate target for 2019 and 2020. 

To provide an example: 

RECOMMENDATION 

Tax Revenue Requirement 
Approved Ott 4, 2017 

Emergent Item 
EIA Transit Requlrem<ont 

Proposed Revised Strategy 

2018 

= 

2.90% 

2019 

4.00% 
to 
4.50% 

2020 

= 

4.00% 
To 
4.50% 

To reiterate, it is Administrations recommendation to have a combined tax revenue increase of 2.90% for both residential 
and non-residential. This will be achieved by reducing the 2018 contracted services budget by $230,000, with the 
remaining· $200k from the year-end surplus funds. 

Report Number: 2018-CR-008 Page 4 of 9 

Updated: February 2, 201 7 



Secondly, Administration is committed to working with Council in developing a revised fiscal policy for 2019 that can align 
tax smoothing strategies and fiscal sustainability, while managing the magnitude of shifts between budget years. The 
intent will be to reduce the tax revenue requirements in 2019 and 2020 in a manner similar to the above example. 

General Background 

Community Stability & Fiscal Sustainability 

On December 4, 2017 Council approved the following smoothed multi-year tax strategy. 

D~t tul '•~• I R,Ut- Su:itJ"Ol' 
ff')f Pre:,(fi.,c!KJ'\'k~i 

......... 1 .......... --

2018 2019 2020 

= = 

This multi-year tax strategy was accepted as part of a value proposition aimed at meeting the needs of the community. In 
both the 2018 budget planning survey (conducted May 2017) and 2018 citizen satisfaction survey, the City of Leduc 
residents indicated high service levels and quality of life as their top key performance indicators. The mill-rate strategy 
offers, maintained high service levels and a focus on continued capital investment. 

The approved budget delivers a balanced approach to achieve short-term goals and long-term fiscal sustainability. The 
formula for continued success is comprised of: 

Value Proposition + Infrastructure Investment Strategy + Integrated Capital Financing Program 

The Value Proposition - The City of Leduc is dedicated to ensuring citizens receive excellent value for taxes paid , resulting 
in a high quality of life. Recognizing citizen's desire for high levels of service is paramount and this budget delivers on this. 
It also provides a value proposition that creates an environment that allows businesses to invest, innovate, grow and 
prosper. 

Infrastructure Investment Strategy- ls a formal process established to align our capital program in a manner that identifies 
capital projects as critical, necessary and desirable; which in itself supports robust and viable infrastructure. This is 
imperative as the city maintains a capital program in excess of $1 billion dollars (historical value). 

Integrated Capital Financing Program - is a methodology that is used, that takes into consideration smart debt, reserve 
optimization, year-end surplus reinvestment, capital grants utilization, and asset management, to strategically maintain the 
capital program (current and future). This approach maximizes financial flexibility and reinforces long term vitality. 

These reasonable measures are developed in alignment with the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) 
international best practices, and contribute to sound government manage~ent and financial planning. 

Value Proposition 

The value proposition underpins the foundation for short-term success and long-term fiscal sustainability, bridging the gap 
between short-term needs and long-term pressures. 

Report Number: 2018-CR-008 Page 5 of 9 

Updated: February 2, 2017 



The proposed 2018-2020 budget balances long term vision with short term needs. By utilizing tools such as the revenue 
registry and growth indicators, the City is able to be proactive and adaptive to change. The three year mill rate strategy 
provides a fiscally balanced path that keeps the City of Leduc's high services levels intact while providing enhanced 
funding for arts and culture, protective services, economic development and community organizations. This value 
proposition of balancing community needs with fiscal sustainability is tested annually through various means such as the 
citizen engagement survey and more specifically the budget survey. Leduc has consistently rated above 70% with respect 
to perceived value for tax dollars paid since the conception of the annual budget survey. 

Supporting Capital Investments 

As mentioned previously, the infrastructure investment strategy supports the overall capital assets program. Currently, 86% 
of the capital investments is either a mandatory/critical project or a necessary project. Overall the City of Leduc capital 
assets program amount to $1.1 Billion. Keep in mind this amount is based on historical cost and not replacement cost. This 
is rather important to note as replacement cost is much higher than historical cost. 

Other Considerations 

The City of Leduc has numerous "other" considerations which can have an impact on the current and future operational 
and capital budgets. 

1. It is important to recognize that the City is engaged in the Airport Accord and the costs stemming from this 
initiative are not defined and in some cases unknown. As a regional partner there could be emergent items come 
forward that have not been considered and this is important to understand as Administration may not be able to 
plan for them adequately. 

2. The Airport Tax Agreement was scheduled for review at the end of 2017, however a mutual agreement between 
the City of Leduc and Leduc County has been made to extend this review. The uncertainty surrounding the 
continuation of this significant revenue stream creates a high level of vulnerability with respect to the operational 
reliance. 

3. There are numerous unfunded capital projects and other operational requirements in the near future that need to 
be considered. These include: 

Unfunded Capital 

o Snow storage site - $4.1 M (2021-2022) 
o Facilities master plan projects - $17.2M (2025-2027) 
o North fire hall - $4.6M 2019 (2021-2022) 
o Aquatics expansion - $3.1 M (2020-2021) 
o Downtown redevelopment plan - $6.4M (2021,2023-2025) 
o Crystal Creek Servicing (High School) 

Potential Operational 

o Leduc Regional Fire Service 

2018 Mill Rate in Detail 

As part of the taxation process, it is important to understand some factors that play a role. 

Report Number: 2018-CR-008 Page 6 of 9 

Updated: February 2, 2017 



Assessment in Review 

Assessment is a key component of the taxation process. Changes in property assessment over the prior year are the 
result of either: 

a) Assessment growth, which results from new developments such as renovations and/or new buildings 
(generating new tax revenue), and 

b) Market value adjustments, which are changes to property assessments resulting from market forces such as 
supply, demand and inflation. Within Leduc, on an overall basis, market value adjustments do not generate 
new tax revenue, as the City's practice has been to reduce property tax mill rates in an amount equivalent to 
offset overall market value increases. It is important to note that properties whose market value has increased 
or decreased at a rate different from the overall average will be impacted by their change in market value 
compared to the average. 

2018 Property assessments changes: 

Total new residential assessment growth is 3.05%. 
Total new non-residential assessment growth is 2.67%. 

With respect to the existing assessment base: 

85% of residential tax rolls fall within the -3% to 3% assessment adjustment range. This means that the majority of 
residents will see a minimal change in assessment over last year. 
89% of non-residential tax rolls will see an assessment decrease over last year. 

Municipal Property Tax 

The 2018 municipal property tax revenue is $45,753,226 ($43,300,662 in 2017). This increase in the revenue requirement 
will be funded by a $28,094,737 in residential and $17,658,489 in non-residential taxation. 

Residential: The 2018 municipal tax revenue increase results in a tax mill rate of7.155 for 2018 (6.780 for 2017) 

Non-residential: The 2018 municipal tax revenue increase results in a tax mill rate of 8.568 for 2018 (8.060 for 
2017). 

Leduc Foundation 

The 2018 Leduc Foundation requisition is $115,563 ($103,180 in 2017) . The Foundation tax mill rate will be 0.020(0.017 
for 2017). For clarity, this requisition is also a flow through tax that is collected on behalf of the Foundation by the 
municipality. 

2018 Property Taxes 

Based on Bylaw 975-2018, total taxes levied (municipal, provincial, and foundation) for 2018 are $64, 175,644. 

A residential property based on an average market value of $350,000 will see their property tax increase (including 
municipal, education and foundation) by approximately $97 for the year or $8 per month. 

Report Number: 2018-CR-008 Page 7 of 9 

Updated: February 2, 2017 



LEGISLATION AND/OR POLICY: 

The Municipal Government Act Part 10, Section 353(1) requires a Bylaw (Attachment 1) to establish property tax rates, 
against assessed property, to raise sufficient tax revenue to fund the 2018 Operating and Capital budgets and to provide 

for various requisitions from outside organizations such as School Boards and the Leduc Foundation. Each year Council 

sets a mill rate taking into consideration new assessment growth, market value changes and inflationary increases in 
property values. 

PAST COUNCIL CONSIDERATION: 

2018 Property Tax Rate Bylaw 975-2018 

• 1st reading approved on April 9th, 2018. 

Predecessor- 2017 Property Tax Rate Bylaw 943-2017 

• 1st reading approved on April 10th, 2017. 

• 2°d and 3rd reading approved on April 24th 2017. 

CITY OF LEDUC PLANS: 

None 

IMPLICATIONS OF RECOMMENDATION 

GENERAL: 

The City of Leduc determines its revenue requirements through a public budget process each fall. If the market value of 
assessable property has increased more than the revenue requirements, then the tax mill rate decreases. However, if the 

revenue requirement increase exceeds the market value changes, a tax mill rate increase occurs. 

ORGANIZATIONAL: 

None 

FINANCIAL: 

Approval of the 2018 Property Tax Rate Bylaw will provide funding as per the 2018 Municipal Budgets. As the Budget is 

developed and approved in December prior to finalization of the assessment, assessment growth projections are based on 
best available information at the time. Final property assessments were completed February 28, 2018 as per the Municipal 

Government Act and resulted in an overall new growth of 5.72% (combined residential and non-residential). 

POLICY: 

Report Number: 2018-CR-008 Page 8 of 9 

Updated: February 2, 2017 



COUNCIL REQUEST FOR DECISION 
oF  

Leduc 

Shift in Fiscal Philosophy 

The current fiscal philosophy uses surplus funds to support community re-investment through capital and one-time projects. 
The revised policy will be based on a new platform that continues to support community re-investment, but also provide 
strategic taxation options. 

The focus for Administration with regard to the fiscal philosophy will be to find ways that the surplus can be used to reduce 
in a prudent manner the 2019 and 2020 tax revenue requirements; 5.70% and 5.80% respectively (inclusive of EIA transit 
as identified previously. Administration is confident in working with Council to developing a philosophy that can align tax 
smoothing strategies and fiscal sustainability that will manage the magnitude of shifts between budget years. 

LEGAL: 

The Municipal Government Acts requires that tax rates for a municipality be set by bylaw (s.353). The tax rate must be set 
for each assessment class (s.354 (2)) and it may be different for each assessment class (s.354 (3)). The Act requires that 
the tax rate be calculated by dividing the amount of revenue required by the total assessment of all property on which that 
rate will be imposed (s. 355). The amount of tax due from a specific property will be calculated by multiplying the 
assessment for that property by the tax rate contained in the bylaw (s.356). If a council did not meet the obligations in the 
Act it would be unable to pay the expenditures and transfers set out in the budget or other requisitions. 

Section 364 of the Municipal Government Act, allows Council to pass a bylaw that exempts machinery and equipment used 
for manufacturing or processing to the extent they consider appropriate. This bylaw creates a 100% exemption for this 
category of assessment. 

IMPLEMENTATION / COMMUNICATIONS: 

Assessment/tax notices will be sent out mid-May 2018. 

ALTERNATIVES: 

1. That Council defeats Bylaw No. 975-2018. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. Bylaw No. 975-2018 — 2018 Property Tax Rate Bylaw. 

Report Number: 2018-CR-008 
	

Page 9 of 9 

Updated: February 2, 2017 

Others Who Have Reviewed this Report

P. Benedetto, City Manager / B. Loewen, City Solicitor / I. Sasyniuk, General Manager, Corporate Services / J. Cannon, 
Director, Finance



Bylaw No. 975-2018 
2018 PROPERTY TAX RATE BYLAW 

PAGE 1 

A BYLAW OF THE CITY OF LEDUC IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA, TO AUTHORIZE THE 
RATES OF TAXATION TO BE LEVIED AGAINST ASSESSABLE PROPERTY FOR THE 2018 
TAXATION YEAR. 

The Municipal Government Act, R.S.A. 2000, Chapter M-26, as amended, grants a 
Municipality the authority to adopt a Property Tax Rate Bylaw annually to authorize 
Council to impose a tax on property in the Municipality to raise revenue to pay for 
expenditures and transfers set out in the City's budget, and to pay for requisitions. 

AND: in accordance with the Act, Council approved the final 2018 budget at 
the Council meeting of April 23, 2018 calculated for Municipal purposes at 
$97,788,153 and for capital purposes at $74,755,090 

AND: it has been estimated that the sum of $51,959,927 will be collected by the 
City from sources other than from current property taxes. 

AND: the revenue requirements for requisitions received by the City from other 
authorities are: 

Alberta School Foundation Fund (ASFF) 
Residential/Farm land $9,321,337 
Non-Residential $6,904,071 

Opted Out School Boards 
Residential/Farm land $702,124 
Non-Residential $1,301,561 

Total School Requisitions $18,229,093 

Requisition Allowance MGA (359(2)) $75,000 
Leduc Foundation $118,325 

AND: the Municipal Government Act provides for each Municipality to prepare 
an assessment for each property in the municipality except for the 
properties identified in the Act that no assessment is to be prepared for 
those properties. 

AND: the total assessable value of property in the City is: 

Residential/Farmland 	 $3,918,943,100 
Non-Residential 	 $2,052,312,470 
Machinery and Equipment 	 $4,344,120 

$5,975,599,690 

APPROVED 
As to Form 

City Solicitor 

B.L.



Bylaw No. 975-2018 
2018 PROPERTY TAX RATE BYLAW 

PAGE2 

AND: Council has passed Bylaw 974-2018 being a Bylaw authorizing the 
supplementary assessment of all improvements to properties which are 
completed or occupied or moved into The City in 2018, but not including 
machinery and equipment 

AND: the taxation rates and taxation revenue for certain properties which 
were brought into The City of Leduc as a result of annexation governed 
by: 

• Order in Council 258/2013 

THEREFORE: the Council of the City of Leduc in the Province of Alberta enacts 
as follows: 

PART I: BYLAW TITLE 

1 . That this Bylaw shall be known as the '2018 Property Tax Rate Bylaw'. 

PART II: DEFINITIONS 

2. In this bylaw, unless the context otherwise requires: 
a. "City": means the municipal corporation of the City of Leduc 
b. "City Manager": means the chief administrative officer of the City or his 

or her delegate. 

PART Ill: APPLICATION 

3. a. Council authorizes the City Manager to impose taxes for the purpose of 
raising revenue to be used towards the payment of expenditures and transfers 
set out in the budget of the City and for the purpose of raising funds for the 
school requisition as a consequence taxes are hereby imposed on each class 
of assessed property within the City, whether listed in the assessment roll or 
supplementary assessment roll, a t the rates for each class shown below: 

Tax Levy Assessment Tax Rate 
General Municipal 

Residential $28,019 ,737 $3,918,943, 100 7.155 
Non-Residential $17,583,489 $2,052,312,470 8.568 

Machinery and Equipment $ $ 8.568 
Supplemental $ 150,000 

$45,753,226 $5,971,255,570 

ASFF 
Residential/Farm Land $9,321,337 $3,644,402,534 2.558 

Non-Residential ~6,904,07 1 ~ 1,698,600,831 4.065 
$16.225,408 $5,343,003,365 



Bylaw No. 975-2018 
2018 PROPERTY TAX RATE BYLAW 

PAGE3 

Opted-Out School Boards 
Residential/Farm Land 

Non-Residential 

Requisition Allowance 
Includes Machinery & Equipment 

Foundation 
Includes Machinery & Equipment 

$702, 124 $27 4,512,466 

~~-'--'------'--~~~---'-~-'------'--
$1.301,561 $320,221 ,639 
$2,003,685 $594,734.105 

$75,000 $5,975,599,690 

$118,325 $5,942,081,590 

2.558 
4.065 

0.013 

0.020 

b. Notwithstanding the tax rate set for machinery and equipment. Council 
completely exempts from taxation machinery and equipment used for 
manufacturing or processing, pursuant to section 364(2) of the Municipal 
Government Act. 

PART VI: ENACTMENT 

4. This Bylaw shall come into force and effect when it receives Third Reading and 
is duly signed. 

READ A FIRST TIME IN COUNCIL THIS ___ DAY OF ___ ,, AD 2018. 

READ A SECOND TIME IN COUNCIL THIS ___ DAY OF ___ , AD 2018. 

READ A THIRD TIME IN COUNCIL THIS __ DAY OF ___ , AD 2018. 

Date Signed 

Bob Young 
MAYOR 

Sandra Davis 
CITY CLERK 



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BYLAWS 

 
 
 

Bylaw No. 970-2017 – Amendment to  
Bylaw No. 809-2013 Land Use Bylaw (1st Reading)  

 
 
 
 

(Distributed Under Separate Cover) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

          



DATE: April 7, 2018 

MEETING DATE: April 23, 2018 

SUBMITTED BY: Ken Woitt, Director, Planning & Development 

PREPARED BY: Sylvain Losier, Manager, Current Planning and Development 

REPORT TITLE: Bylaw 971-2017 -Amendment to the Business Licence Bylaw 

REPORT NUMBER: 2017-CR-133 

REPORT SUMMARY 
Bylaw 971-2017 is proposing to amend the Business Licence Bylaw by updating references to existing bylaws and deleting 
a section that will become obsolete once the federal legislation on cannabis is in effect. 

RECOMMENDATION 
That Council give Bylaw 971-2017 first reading and set the Council meeting of May 141h as the time and place for the Public 
Hearing of said bylaw to be held in accordance with the Municipal Government Act (MGA). 

BACKGROUND 

KEY ISSUE(S) I CONTEXT: 

With the upcoming legalisation of cannabis by the Government of Canada and the upcoming cannabis framework set by 
the Government of Alberta, the City of Leduc should take this opportunity to review its Business Licence Bylaw to evaluate 
how the proposed new acts and regulations could impact the Business Licence Bylaw. Under the proposed federal Act (Bill 
C-45), cannabis accessories are defined as follow: 

cannabis accessory means 
(a) a thing, including rolling papers or wraps, holders, pipes, water pipes, bongs and vaporizers, that is represented to be 
used in the consumption of cannabis or a thing that is represented to be used in the production of cannabis; or 
(b) a thing that is deemed under subsection (3) to be represented to be used in the consumption or production of cannabis. 
( accessoire) 

Deeming - cannabis accessory 
(3) For the purposes of the definition cannabis accessory, a thing that is commonly used in the consumption or production 
of cannabis is deemed to be represented to be used in the consumption or production of cannabis if the thing is sold at the 
same point of sale as cannabis. 

It is Administration's understanding that the Government of Alberta does not intend to restrict the sale of accessory as 
defined by federal legislation. However, all accessory to be sold at cannabis premises will have to be kept under lock. If a 
municipality adds additional restrictions to those imposed by the other levels of government, this will impact the 
competitiveness of the retail store. Therefore, an amendment to the bylaw is necessary as we currently limit to two (2) the 
type of accessory that can be sold in one (1) location (section 3, License requirements, subsection 5a). To be competitive, 
Administration believes that these stores may need to sell accessories. 

Updated: January, 2017 Page 1of3 



As for the background verification in order to obtain a business license, considering that the provincial framework is quite 
robust, requiring financial, personal, and criminal verifications, Administration felt that it would not be necessary to duplicate 
the process by adding similar requirements to the municipal licensing process. As with any other industry, the issuance of a 
business license does not eliminate or supersede the requirements of meeting all federal and provincial acts, regulations, 
and other requirements. 

LEGISLATION AND/OR POLICY: 

1. Municipal Government Act, RSA 2000, Chapter M-26, as amended 
S. 7 A council may pass bylaws for municipal purposes respecting the following matters: 

(a) the safety, health and welfare of people and the protection of people and property; and 
(e) businesses, business activities and persons engaged in business; ... 

Business License Bylaw 767-2011 , as amended 

PAST COUNCIL CONSIDERATION: 

The upcoming legalisation and its potential implication for the Business License Bylaw has been discussed three (3) times 
(June 25th and December 4th, 2017, March 19, 2018) in Committee of the Whole (CoW). This is the first time that Bylaw 
971-2017 is presented to Council. 

CITY OF LEDUC PLANS: 

Bylaw 971-2017 is consistent with the City's Municipal Development Plan, as amended. 

IMPLICATIONS OF RECOMMENDATION 

ORGANIZATIONAL: 

There are no organizational implications. 

POLICY: 

There are no policy implications. 

IMPLEMENTATION I COMMUNICATIONS: 

The public hearing will need to be advertised in the April 27th and May 4th, 2018 issues of ' The Representative' and notification 
will also be made available on the City of Leduc cannabis webpage. 

ALTERNATIVES: 

1. That Council direct Administration to amend the proposed Bylaw before giving 1st reading as amended. 

2. That Council defeat Bylaw 971-2017, cancel the public hearing of May 14th, and direct Administration to create a new 
amending bylaw to address the upcoming legalisation of cannabis. The new approach could contemplate options such 
as: 

a. categorizing industries for which a business licence is required, 

b. imposing various fees pending on the industry category, and/or 

Updated: January, 2017 Page 2 of 3 



Others Who Have Reviewed this Report

P. Benedetto, City Manager / B. Loewen, City Solicitor / M. Pieters, General Manager, Infrastructure & Planning

c. limiting the number of licence for certain industries. 

ATIACHED REPORTS I DOCUMENTS: 

1. Bylaw 971-2017 

2. City of Leduc Business License Bylaw 

Updated: January, 2017 Page 3 of 3 



Bylaw No. 971-2017 
PAGE 1 

A BYLAW OF THE CITY OF LEDUC IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA, TO AMEND BYLAW 
767-2011 TO LICENSE AND REGULATE BUSINESSES 

WHEREAS pursuant to section 7(e) of The Municipal Government Act, a council 
may pass bylaws for municipal purposes respecting businesses, business activities 
and persons engaged in business; 

AND, in accordance with the Act, Council finds it desirable to amend Bylaw 767-
2011; 

THEREFORE, the Council of the City of Leduc in the Province of Alberta duly 
assembled, hereby enacts as follows: 

That Bylaw 767-2011 shall be amended as follows: 

1. Section 2 (1)(k) shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the 
following: 

(k) "Fees Bylaw" means the current City of Leduc Fees Bylaw; 

2. Section 2 (1)(m) shall be deleted in its entirety and replaced with the 
following: 

(m) "Land Use Bylaw" means The City of Leduc Land Use Bylaw No. 
809-2013; 

3. The phrase "and Charges" shall be struck from sections 2(1)(o), 5(4), 5(6), 
5(7) and 12(1). 

4. Section 3(5)(a) shall be deleted in its entirety. 

5. This Bylaw shall come into force and effect when it receives Third Reading 
and is duly signed. 

READ A FIRST TIME IN COUNCIL THIS 	DAY OF 	 , AD 2018. 

READ A SECOND TIME IN COUNCIL THIS 	DAY OF 	 AD 2018. 

READ A THIRD TIME IN COUNCIL AND FINALLY PASSED THIS 	DAY OF 
	 ,AD 2018. 

 

APPROVED 
As to Form 

     

     

Bob Young 
MAYOR 

    

Date Signed 

  

      

       

 

City Solicitor 

    

Sandra Davis 
CITY CLERK 

B. L.



Date of Consolidation: September 3, 2014 

Consolidation of Bylaw 767 -2011 

CITY OF LEDUC BUSINESS LICENSE BYLAW 

Adopted September 26, 2011 

As Amended By: 

Bylaw 861-2014 adopted June 23, 2014 

This consolidation is not an Official Bylaw. It is prepared by the City Clerk's Office for the assistance only. 
Copies of the official bylaw(s) may be purchased from the City Clerk's Office. 

This consolidated bylaw was authorized pursuant to Bylaw No. 389-97 



Bylaw No. 767-2011 
THE BUSINESS LICENCE BYLAW 

PAGE 1 

A BYLAW OF THE CITY OF LEDUC, IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA, TO LICENSE AND 
REGULATE BUSINESSES 

WHEREAS pursuant to section ?(a) of the Municipal Government Act, a council may pass 
bylaws for municipal purposes respecting the safety, health and welfare of people and the 
protection of people and property; and 

WHEREAS pursuant to section 7(e) of the Municipal Government Act, a council may pass 
bylaws for municipal purposes respecting businesses, business activities and persons engaged 
in business; and 

WHEREAS pursuant to section 7(e) of the Municipal Government Act, a council may pass 
bylaws for municipal purposes respecting the enforcement of bylaws made under the Municipal 
Government Act or any other enactment including any or all of the matters listed therein; and 

WHEREAS pursuant to section 8 of the Municipal Government Act, a council may in a bylaw: 

(a) Regulate or prohibit; 
(b) Deal with any development, activity, industry, business or thing in different ways, divide 

each of them into classes and deal with each class in different ways; and 
(c) Provide for a system of licences, permits or approvals, including any or all of the matters 

listed therein; 

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the City of Leduc, in the Province of Alberta, duly 
assembled, enacts as follows: 

PART 1- GENERAL LICENSING PROVISIONS 

Short Title 

1 This Bylaw may be cited as the "Business Licence Bylaw''. 

Interpretation and Definitions 

2 
(1) In this Bylaw, unless the context otherwise requires: 

(a) "applicant means a person who applies for a licence or renewal of a licence; 

(b) "business" means: 

(i) a commercial, merchandising or industrial activity or undertaking, 

(ii) a profession, trade, occupation, calling or employment; or 

(iii) an activity providing goods or services; 

Whether or not for profit and however organized or formed, including a co
operative or association of persons. 



PAGE 2 

Bylaw No. 767-2011 
THE BUSINESS LICENCE BYLAW 

(c) "carry on", "carrying on", "carried on" and "carries on" means to conduct, operate, 
perform, keep, hold, occupy, deal in or use, for a fee or exchange of benefits, 
whether as principal or agent; 

(d) "charitable organization" means any incorporated or unincorporated organization 
that is formed for a charitable purpose; 

(e) "charitable purpose" includes a philanthropic, benevolent, educational, health, 
humane, religious, cultural, artistic or recreational purpose; 

(f) "Cit'I' means The City of Leduc, a municipal corporation in the Province of 
Alberta , and includes the area contained within the geographic boundaries of the 
City of Leduc where the context requires ; 

(g) "City Manager' means the chief administrative officer of the City or his delegate; 

(h) "Contractor' means the business of offering to any person to perform or arrange 
to perform work involving an improvement; 

(i) "Council" as defined in the Municipal Government Act, R.S.A. 2000, Chapter M-
26, as amended; 

0) "dwelling unif' means a dwelling unit as defined in the Land Use Bylaw; 

(k) "Fees and Charges Bylaw" means The City of Leduc Fees and Charges Bylaw 
No. 712-2008; 

(I) "improvement' means anything built, placed, altered or repaired which is in, 
upon, over or under land or water, including a building and any clearing, 
dismantling, digging, drilling, excavating, grading, filling or tunneling; 

(m)"Land Use Bylaw" means The City of Leduc Land Use Bylaw No. 516-2002; 

(n) "licence" means a licence issued under this Bylaw; 

(o) "licence fee" means those fees payable for a licence as prescribed in the Fees 
and Charges Bylaw; 

(p) "Licensee" means a person holding a valid and subsisting licence; 

(q) "mobile business unif' means a motor vehicle, temporary structure or display, or 
stand from which a business is carried on and for which the Licensee is not listed 
on the assessment roll; 

(r) "Municipal Tag" means a ticket alleging an offence issued pursuant to the 
authority of a Bylaw of the City; 

(s) "Peace Officer' means a peace officer as defined in the Provincial Offences 
Procedure Act; 

(t) "person" means an individual human being or a corporation and includes a 
partnership, an association or a group of persons acting in concert unless the 
context explicitly or by necessary implication otherwise requires; 

(u) "premises" means a store, office, dwelling unit, warehouse, factory, building, 
enclosure or the place occupied or capable of being occupied, by any person for 
the purpose of carrying on any business; 



PAGE 3 

Bylaw No. 767-2011 
THE BUSINESS LICENCE BYLAW 

(v) "restricted product" means any of the following: 

(i) a product that displays a marijuana plant 

(ii) a device intended to facilitate smoking activity, including a pipe (metal I 
glass blown, plastic, wood), water bong or vaporizer 

(iii) a type of grinder (electric or manual) 

(iv) a type of digital weigh scale 

(v) a detoxifying product (including a drink, pill or other product) marketed for 
masking drug effects or making such effects undetectable through tests; 

Added- Bylaw 861-2014 - adopted June 23, 2014 

(w) "subsequent offence" means any offence under this Bylaw committed by a 
person after that person has already been convicted of an offence under this 
Bylaw or has voluntarily paid a fine for such an offence; 

(x) "Violation Tickef' means a violation ticket as defined in the Provincial Offences 
Procedure Act; 

Re-lettering wand x - Bylaw 861-2014 adopted June 23, 2014 

(2) Nothing in this Bylaw relieves a Person from complying with any Federal or 
Provincial law or regulation, other bylaw or any requirement of any lawful permit, 
order or licence. 

(3) Every provision of this Bylaw is independent of all other provisions and if any 
provision of this Bylaw is declared invalid for any reason by a court of competent 
jurisdiction, all other provisions of this Bylaw shall remain valid and enforceable. 

(4) All schedules attached to this Bylaw shall form part of this Bylaw. 

(5) Any headings or subheadings in this Bylaw are included for guidance purposes and 
convenience only, and shall not form part of this Bylaw. 

(6) Specific references to laws in this Bylaw are meant to refer to the current laws 
applicable within the Province of Alberta as at the time this Bylaw was enacted and 
as they are amended from time to time, including successor legislation. 

(7) All references in this Bylaw shall be read with such changes in number and gender 
as may be appropriate according to whether the reference is to a male or female 
person, or a corporation or partnership. 

Licence Requirements 

3 
(1) No person shall carry on a business in the City unless the person holds a licence 

authorizing the person to carry on that business. 



PAGE 4 

(2) 

Bylaw No. 767-2011 
THE BUSINESS LICENCE BYLAW 

(a) Notwithstanding subsection ( 1 ), a licence is not required for: 

(i) a business carried on by the City, 

(ii) a business carried on by the Government of the Province of Alberta or the 
Government of Canada or a Crown Corporation created by either 
Government; 

(iii) a business expressly exempted from the requirement of a licence by a statute 
of the Legislature of Alberta or Parliament of Canada or; 

(iv) a business carried on by any person as part of the Leduc Farmer's Market; 

(b) A person who contracts with any of the Governments or corporations designated 
in subsection (2)(a) will be subject to all the requirements of this Bylaw. 

(3) No person shall contravene a condition of a licence. 

(4) A licence is required for each premises or mobile business unit where the business is 
carried on. 

(5) 
(a) No person may, in a single business location or under a single business licence, 

display or offer for sale restricted products from 3 or more categories thereof. 

(b) No person may sell a restricted product to a minor. 

( c) No person shall display a restricted product at a place of business such that the 
restricted product is visible from outside the place of business. 

(d) The restrictions of this section do not apply in the context of a licensed or 
regulated pharmacy as contemplated by the Pharmacy and Drug Act, RSA 2000 
ch.P-13, or a licensed business within which such licensed or regulated 
pharmacy is operated. 

Addition - Bylaw 861-2014 adopted June 23, 2014 

Licence Application 

4 
(1) Before the issue or renewa l of a licence a person must submit to the City Manager. 

(a) an application in a form established by the City Manager, 

(b) the applicable licence fee; and 

(c) any additional information required by this Bylaw or by the City Manager. 

(2) No person shall give false information in an application pursuant to the provisions of 
this Bylaw. 

Licence Fees 



Bylaw No. 767-2011 
THE BUSINESS LICENCE BYLAW 

PAGE 5 

5 
(1) Unless otherwise specified in this Bylaw, licence fees are not refundable. 

(2) The City Manager may refund a licence fee if the licence is not issued or renewed. 

(3) Where a licence has been issued in error without payment of the applicable licence 
fee, the licence may be revoked by the City Manager. 

(4) A person who does not reside or maintain a permanent business premises in the City 
shall pay the non-resident licence fee set out in the Fees and Charges Bylaw. 

(5) A person who operates a business from land zoned for residential use pursuant to 
the City of Leduc Land Use Bylaw. 

(6) A Licensee may apply to amend a licence by paying the amendment fee set out in 
the Fees and Charges Bylaw. 

(7) A Licensee may obtain a replacement licence for a licence that has been lost or 
destroyed by paying to the City the fee for a replacement licence set out in the Fees 
and Charges Bylaw. 

Fee Exemptions for Charitable Organizations 

6 
(1) Where any charitable organization wishes to be exempted from the requirements of 

this Bylaw to pay a licence fee, it shall apply to the City Managerfor an exemption 
providing the name of the organization and such other information as the City 
Manager requires to determine that the organization is a charitable organization. 

(2) Where an exemption to pay the licence fee has previously been granted to the 
charitable organization applying under the same or similar circumstances or a similar 
relief or benefit was granted to the same or a similar charitable organization pursuant 
to the provisions of this Bylaw, the City Manager may issue a licence without 
requiring the payment of the licence fee from the charitable organization. 

(3) A charitable organization which receives an exemption under this section must 
otherwise comply with all provisions of this Bylaw. 

Consultations and Approvals 

7 
(1) The City Manager may consult, prior to issuing or renewing a licence, with authorities 

and agencies including but not limited to the Province of Alberta, the RCMP, and City 
departments, to determine whether they are in possession of information which, in 
the opinion of the City Manager, renders it inappropriate for a licence to be issued to 
a person. 

(2) Where a person intends to carry on business at a specific premises or location within 
the City, the person shall, prior to the City Manager issuing a licence, ensure that all 
necessary approvals required under the Land Use Bylaw have been obtained and 
shall provide satisfactory proof thereof to the City Manager. 

(3) Where a licence has been issued in error without all the necessary approvals 
required pursuant to this Bylaw, the licence may be revoked by the City Manager. 



Bylaw No. 767-2011 
THE BUSINESS LICENCE BYLAW 

PAGE 6 

( 4) The City Manager may determine that it is inappropriate to issue a licence to a 
person where the safety, health or welfare of the public may be at risk due to the 
issuance of a licence. 

Inspections 

8 
(1) Where a business requires a consultation or approval for licensing or is licensed, 

then the premises and surrounding lot may be inspected by the City Manager or a 
Peace Officer. 

(2) A person who the City Manager or a Peace Officer reasonably believes is carrying 
on a business requ iring a licence, an applicant, or a Licensee shall: 

(a) permit and assist in all inspections requested by the City Manager or a Peace 
Officer, 

(b) furnish to the City Manager or a Peace Officer all identification, information, or 
documentation related to the inspection or licensing requirement; and 

(c) not provide to a the City Manager or a Peace Officerfalse or misleading 
information or information intended to mislead with regard to any matter or thing 
arising in connection with the licensing of the business. 

(3) No person shall attempt to prevent, obstruct or hinder the City Manager or a Peace 
Officer from making an inspection authorized by this Bylaw. 

(4) During an inspection authorized under this section, the City Manager or a Peace 
Officer may examine any business record or document for the purpose of enforcing 
this Bylaw, remove any relevant record or document from the premises for the 
purpose of copying it, and will provide a receipt for any document or record so 
removed. 

(5) No person shall allow any false or misleading information to appear on any record 
required to be kept or prepared pursuant to this Bylaw. 

License Approval, Refusal, Suspension or Revocation 

9 
(1) The City Manager may refuse to issue or renew a licence, may suspend or revoke a 

licence and may impose any conditions on a licence for the following reasons: 

(a) The applicant or Licensee does not or no longer meets the requirements of this 
Bylaw with respect to the licence applied for or held; 

(b) The applicant or Licensee or any of its' officers or employees: 

(i) furnishes false information or misrepresents any fact or circumstance to a 
Peace Officer or the City Manager, 



PAGE 7 

Bylaw No. 767-2011 
THE BUSINESS LICENCE BYLAW 

(ii) has, in the opinion of the City Manager based on reasonable grounds, 
contravened this Bylaw whether or not the contravention has been 
prosecuted; 

(iii) fails to pay any fee or outstanding fine required by this Bylaw; or 

(c} In the opinion of the City Manager, based on reasonable grounds, it is in the 
public interest to do so. 

(2) Where any certificate, authority, licence or other document of qualification under this 
or any other Bylaw, or under any statue of Canada or the Province of Alberta is 
suspended, cancelled, terminated or surrendered, the City Manager shall suspend 
any licence issued under this Bylaw based in whole or in part on the certificate, 
authority, licence or other document of qualification. 

Notice to Applicant or Licensee 

10 Before refusing to issue o r renew a licence, and before a licence is suspended or 
revoked or conditions are imposed, other than conditions imposed by this Bylaw, the 
applicant or Licensee must be given: 

(a) notice of the proposed refusal, suspension, revocation or the proposed conditions 
with reasons; and 

(b) an opportunity to make written representations to the City Manager. 

Decision of City Manager 

11 If a decision is made to refuse the issue or renewal of a licence, to suspend or revoke a 
licence or to impose conditions on a licence, other than conditions imposed by this 
Bylaw, notice of the decision may be served on the applicant or Licensee: 

(a) in person on the applicant or Licensee or any of its officers or employees; or 

(b) by registered mail to the address in the application or in the records of the City for 
the Licensee. 

Appeal to City Council 

12 
(1) A person: 

(a) who has been refused the issue or renewal of a licence; 

(b) whose licence has been suspended or revoked; or 

( c) whose licence is made subject to conditions, other than conditions imposed by 
this Bylaw; 

may appeal the decision within fourteen (14) days by providing written notice to the 
City Clerk and paying the notice of appeal fee set out in the Fees and Charges 
Bylaw. 

(2) Where a Licensee has given notice of an intention to appeal the revocation , 
suspension or conditions of a licence, the City Manager may, in the City Manager's 
sole discretion, stay the revocation , suspension or conditions pending the hearing of 



Bylaw No. 767-2011 
THE BUSINESS LICENCE BYLAW 

PAGE 8 

the appeal if the continued operation of the business does not create a danger to the 
safety, health or welfare of the public. 

Licence Identification 

13 
(1) A licence must be issued on a form bearing the identification of the City and all 

licences issued pursuant to this Bylaw are and shall remain the property of the City. 

(2) A licence must bear on its face the date on which it is issued and the date on which 
the licence will expire. 

(3) A Licensee shall: 

(a) post the licence in a prominent visible location in the premises; or 

(b) if it is not practical to post the licence, produce the licence forthwith upon demand 
by a Peace Officer. 

(4) No person shall reproduce, alter, or deface a licence. 

Notification of Changes 

14 A Licensee shall forthwith notify the City Manager in writing of: 

(a) a change in the address of the Licensee's business premises; 

(b) a change in the partners of the business if the licence is issued to a partnership; or 

(c) a change in the officers or directors of the corporation if the licence is issued to a 
corporation. 

Transfer of Licence 

15 A licence does not confer any property right and no Licensee may sell, transfer, assign, 
lease or otherwise dispose of or deal in a licence. 

Term of Licence 

16 
(1) A licence issued pursuant to this Bylaw, unless previously suspended or revoked, or 

as otherwise specified in this Bylaw, is valid from the date issued stated thereon and 
shall expire at twelve o'clock midnight on December 31 in the year in which it was 
issued. 

(2) The City Manager may issue a licence for a limited term or for a specified date in any 
case where the City Manager considers it appropriate to do so. 

(3) A person may not appeal a decision to issue a licence for a limited term or for a 
specified date. 



Bylaw No. 767-2011 
THE BUSINESS LICENCE BYLAW 

PAGE 9 

PART II-REGULATIONS PERTAINING TO PARTICULAR BUSINESSES 

Contractor 

17 
(1) A Contractor that applies to the City for a permit, including but not limited to a 

Building Permit, a Development Permit, a Plumbing and Gas Permit, an Electrical 
Permit or a Mechanical Permit, must have a licence. 

(2) The City Manager or a Peace Officer may inspect the premises or the site at which a 
Contractor is working. 

(3) Notwithstanding Section 30, proof of one offer to perform or offer to arrange to 
perform work on an improvement is sufficient to establish that the business of a 
Contractor is being carried on. 

PART 111- ENFORCEMENT 

Offence 

18 A person who contravenes this Bylaw is guilty of an offence. 

Continuing Offence 

19 In the case of an offence that is of a continuing nature, a contravention constitutes a 
separate offence in respect of each day, or part of a day, on which it continues and a 
person guilty of such an offence is liable to a fine in an amount not less than that 
established by this Bylaw for each such day. 

Vicarious Liability 

20 For the purposes of this Bylaw, an act or omission by an employee or agent of a person 
is deemed also to be an act or omission of the person if the act or omission occurred in 
the course of the employee's employment with the person, or in the course of the 
agent's exercising the powers or performing the duties on behalf of the person under 
their agency relationship. 

Corporations and Partnerships 

21 
(1) When a corporation commits an offence under this Bylaw, every principal, director, 

manager, employee or agent of the corporation who authorized the act or omission 
that constitutes the offence or assented to or acquiesced or participated in the act or 
omission that constitutes the offence is guilty of the offence whether or not the 
corporation has been prosecuted for the offence. 

(2) If a partner in a partnership is guilty of an offence under this Bylaw, each partner in 
that partnership who authorized the act or omission that constitutes the offence or 
assented to or acquiesced or participated in the act or omission that constitutes the 
offence is guilty of the offence. 



Bylaw No. 767-2011 
THE BUSINESS LICENCE BYLAW 

PAGE 10 

Fines and Penalties 

22 
(1) A person who is guilty of an offence is liable to a fine in an amount not less than that 

established in this Section, and not exceeding $10,000.00, and to imprisonment for 
not more than 6 months for non-payment of a fine. 

(2) Without restricting the generality of subsection (1) the following fine amounts are 
established for use on Municipal Tags and Violation Tickets if a voluntary payment 
option is offered: 

(a) $300.00 for any offence for which a fine is not otherwise established in this 
Section; 

(b) $500.00 for any offence under Sections 3(1), 3(4), 4(2), 8; 
(c) $750.00 for any offence under Section 3(5); 
(d) double these fine amounts for an subsequent offence. 

Amended - Bylaw 861-2014 adopted June 23, 2014 

Municipal Tag 

23 
(1) A Peace Officer is hereby authorized and empowered to issue a Municipal Tag to 

any person who the Peace Officer has reasonable and probable grounds to believe 
has contravened any provision of this Bylaw. 

(2) A Municipal Tag may be issued to such person: 

(a) either personally; or 

(b) by mailing a copy to such person at his last known post office address. 

(3) The Municipal Tag shall be in a form approved by the City Manager and shall state: 

(a) the name of the person; 

(b) the offence; 

(c) the specified penalty established by this Bylaw for the offence; 

(d) that the penalty shall be paid within 30 days of the issuance of the Municipal 
Tag; and 

(e) any other information as may be required by the City Manager. 

Payment in Lieu of Prosecution 

24 Where a Municipal Tag is issued pursuant to this Bylaw, the person to whom the 
Municipal Tag is issued may, in lieu of being prosecuted for the offence, pay to the City 
the penalty specified within the time period indicated on the Municipal Tag. 

Violation Ticket 

25 
(1) If a Municipal Tag has been issued and if the specified penalty has not been paid 

within the prescribed time, then a Peace Officer is hereby authorized and 



Bylaw No. 767-2011 
THE BUSINESS LICENCE BYLAW 

PAGE 11 

empowered to issue a Violation Ticket pursuant to the Provincial Offences Procedure 
Act; 

(2) Notwithstanding subsection (1 ), a Peace Officer is hereby authorized and 
empowered to immediately issue a Violation Ticket pursuant to the Provincial 
Offences Procedure Act to any person who the Peace Officer has reasonable and 
probable grounds to believe has contravened any provision of this Bylaw; 

(3) If a Violation Ticket is issued in respect of an offence, the Violation Ticket may; 

(a) specify the fine amount established by this Bylaw for the offence; or 

(b) require a person to appear in court without the alternative of making a voluntary 
payment. 

Voluntary Payment 
26 A person who commits an offence may: 

(a) if a Violation Ticket is issued in respect of the offence; and 

(b) if the Violation Ticket specifies the fine amount established by this Bylaw for the 
offence; 

make a voluntary payment by submitting to a Clerk of the Provincial Court, on or before 
the initial appearance date indicated on the Violation Ticket, the specified penalty set out 
on the Violation Ticket. 

Obstruction 

27 A person shall not obstruct or hinder any person in the exercise or performance of the 
person's powers pursuant to this Bylaw. 

PART IV· GENERAL 

Proof of Licence 

28 The onus of proving that a person has a valid and subsisting licence for a business is on 
the person alleging the licence on a balance of probabilities. 

Proof of Exemption 

29 The onus of proving that a person is exempt from the provisions of this Bylaw requiring a 
licence is on the person alleging the exemption on a balance of probabilities. 

Proof of Business 

30 In a prosecution for a contravention of this Bylaw against carrying on a business without 
a licence, proof of one transaction in the business or that the business had been 
advertised is sufficient to establish that a person is carrying on the business. 



Bylaw No. 767-2011 
THE BUSINESS LICENCE BYLAW 

PAGE 12 

City Manager 

31 Without restricting any other power, duty or function granted by this Bylaw, the City 
Manager may: 

(a) carry on whatever inspections are reasonably required to determine compliance with 
this Bylaw; 

(b) delegate any powers, duties or functions under this Bylaw to an employee of the 
City; and 

( c) establish forms for the purposes of this Bylaw. 

Certified Copy of Record 

32 A copy of a record of the City, certified by the City Manager as a true copy of the 
original, shall be admitted in evidence as prima facie proof of the facts stated in the 
record without proof of the appointment or signature of the person signing it. 

Existing Licence 
33 An existing licence issued under Bylaw No. 487-2000, the City of Leduc Business 

Licence Bylaw, remains valid until the term of such licence expires. 

Repeal 

34 Bylaw No. 487-2000 is repealed. 

Enactment 

35 This Bylaw shall come into force and effect when it received third reading and is duly 
signed. 

READ A FIRST TIME IN COUNCIL THIS 24TH DAY OF MAY, 2011 . 

READ A SECOND TIME AS AMENDED IN COUNCIL THIS 26TH DAY OF 
SEPTEMBER, 2011. 

READ A THIRD TIME AS AMENDED IN COUNCIL AND FINALLY PASSED THIS 
26r~ DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2011. 

September 26, 2011 
Date Signed 

"original signed" 

Greg Krischke 
MAYOR 

"original signed 

Laura Knoblock 
CITY CLERK 



MEETING DATE: April 23, 2018 

SUBMITTED BY: Darrell Melvie, General Manager, Community & Protective Services 

PREPARED BY: Cameron Chisholm, Manager, RCMP Administration and Leduc Enforcement Services 

REPORT TITLE: Bylaw No. 981-2018 Amendment to Community Standard Bylaw No. 71-2008 Cannabis Public Use 

REPORT SUMMARY 

To provide a municipal legislative response for the public use of cannabis in preparation for the legalization of 
cannabis by the Federal Government. 

RECOMMENDATION 

That Council give Bylaw 981-2018 a first reading . 

BACKGROUND 

KEY ISSUE(S) I CONTEXT: 

The Federal Government is legalizing adult cannabis possession and consumption in the summer of 2018. 

In response to the Federal legalization, the Province of Alberta tabled Bill 26: An Act to Control and Regulate 
Cannabis. This Act restricts the use of cannabis in public places where the smoking of tobacco products is 
prohibited. These restrictions are unlike alcohol which is illegal to consume in public unless at a licensed 
premise or private residence. The Act further restricts the vaping and smoking of cannabis in areas frequented 
by children. 

The Act provides the following restrictions with respect to locations where the use of cannabis is prohibited: 

Smoking and Vaping Prohibited 
90.28 No person may smoke or vape cannabis 

(a) in any area or place where that person is prohibited from smoking under the Tobacco and Smoking 
Reduction Act or any other Act or the bylaws of a municipality 

(b) on any hospital property, school property or child care facility property 
(c) in or within a prescribed distance from 

(i) a playground 
(ii) a sports or playing field 
(iii) a skateboard or bicycle park 
(iv) a zoo 
(v) an outdoor theatre 
(vi) an outdoor pool or splash pad, or 
(vii) any other area or place that is prescribed or otherwise described in the regulations 

Report Number: 2018-CR-045 

Updated: February 2, 2017 

Page 1of6 



Under the Regulations for the Act, the prescribed distance is defined as: 

Prescribed distance for no smoking areas 
129 No person may smoke or vape cannabis within 5 metres of an area or place listed in section 90.28(c)(i) to 
(vi) of the Act. 

The Tobacco and Smoking Reduction Act prohibits smoking within public places which means all or any part of 
a building, structure or enclosed area to which the public have access as of by right or by invitation. That Act 
further prohibits smoking in: 

i) The common areas of a multi-unit facility, including patios, pools, 
other recreational areas and enclosed parking garages 

ii) A group living facility 
iii) An outdoor bus or taxi shelter 
iv) Licensed premises 
v) A restaurant, and 
vi) A hotel 

The Tobacco and Smoking Reduction Act prohibits smoking in public places as previously described, in a 
workplace, in a vehicle in which a minor is present, in a public vehicle or within five (5) metres from a doorway, 
window or air intake of a public place or workplace. 

With the legalization of cannabis, the City of Leduc has the ability to further address the issue of public use 
within the City. The Province has provided authority under the Act to Control and Regulate Cannabis for 
municipalities to vary the prescribed distance or add additional locations where the use of cannabis is 
prohibited. Other issues such as retail locations relating to cannabis legalization are being covered by the 
Planning Department. 

A City of Leduc survey on the public use of cannabis ran from February 15th to March 2nd, 2018. The survey 
provided the public the opportunity to answer key questions relative to the public use of cannabis. The nine 
question survey was posted on the City of Leduc website and was promoted using social media and print 
advertisement. Two of the questions were open. The survey was answered by 1,505 respondents. 

Some of the survey highlights included: 

• More than 91 % felt that rules for public use of cannabis should be the same as, or more restrictive as the 
rules for smoking tobacco in public facilities. 

• 76% felt that vaping should be subject to the same regulations as tobacco for public use. 
• 74% felt that it was not acceptable to use (smoke or vape) cannabis in areas frequented by seniors 

and/or vulnerable groups. 54% stated it was not acceptable to use in public parks. Approximately 44% 
felt it was unacceptable to use while walking down the street, on multi ways or walking trails, in 
downtown areas and in industrial areas. 39% stated that it should not be used at outdoor concerts, 
festivals or events. 

• 66% responded that cannabis should be smoked or vaped at festivals and events in designated areas 
only. 

Report Number: 2018-CR-045 Page 2 of 6 

Updated: February 2, 2017 



• With respect to the permissible distance from locations prohibited by the Province, 27% said less than 
25 metres was acceptable while the equal amount said between 25 and 100 metres was acceptable. 

• 82% wanted to learn more about RCMP enforcement of cannabis (impaired, possession, etc.) 
• 67% wanted to know more about how cannabis consumption would be regulated. Roughly the same 

wanted to know what they would be permitted and prohibited from doing. 
• 96% of the respondents stated the survey was being responded for themselves or their family. 
• The age of the respondents represented the demographics of Leduc. 
• There were 554 comments made with 99 of them being "no comment". 

A complete copy of the survey is attached as Attachment "A". 

Vaping is not covered under the Tobacco and Smoking Reduction Act. While the vaping of cannabis is 
referenced in an Act to Control and Regulate Cannabis, there is a need to restrict vaping within Leduc at public 
places given that the vaping of cannabis could be undetectable or masked. 

All Leduc Vaping Retailers were contacted in November 2017, and consulted over the proposal of prohibiting 
vaping in public places under the Health Bylaw. They were advised that Leduc would be consistent with 
Edmonton, Red Deer and Calgary bylaws and provide an exemption for Vaping Retailers that would allow 
customers to try vaping products at their retail stores. The stores were invited to provide input on this proposed 
amendment. All of the stores supported the addition of vaping to the Health Bylaw but did not provide feedback 
on the amendment. 

The vaping of cannabis will be illegal where it is illegal to smoke cannabis. The only reason to advance vaping 
restrictions at this time within the proposed arnendments is to address the possibility where a person could be 
masking the vaping of cannabis. The likelihood of this is fairly low. Given that there is a need to look broader at 
a tobacco reduction strategy for the entire community from a health perspective and that the environment is still 
evolving with respect to cannabis legislation, this provision will be deferred until later. 

The Community Safety Advisory Committee supported the addition of vaping to both the Health Bylaw and the 
Smoke-Free Vehicles for Minors Bylaw. 

LEGISLATION AND/OR POLICY: 

Under Section 129 of Bill 26, the Act to Control and Regulate Cannabis, a municipality will have the authority to 
further prescribe distances and describe areas and places where cannabis will be prohibited to be used 
(smoking or vaping). 

PAST COUNCIL CONSIDERATION: 

On March 18, 2018, Administration presented Committee of the Whole with an update on Cannabis - Public 
Use. A copy of the Committee of the Whole report is included as Attachment "B". 

Report Number: 2018-CR-045 Page 3 of 6 

Updated: February 2, 2017 



At this meeting, three models were presented by Administration. 

Option 1: 

Option 2: 

Option 3: 

to proceed with an Open model where no further changes would be made to the existing 
Provincial prescribed distance or locations. 

to have a Moderate model where the prescribed distance would be varied from the 
Provincial prescribed distance of 5 metres. In addition, the City would have the ability to 
temporarily prohibit the smoking and vaping of cannabis at a location. 

a Restricted model where cannabis would be treated the same as liquor is in that it could 
not be consumed in public places. 

A motion was made by Council that, "Administration be directed to prepare a report, and a Bylaw, using a 
moderate private use approach, including a buffer of 50 meters and the use of temporary bans during certain 
events such as Canada Day celebrations. The Multiway will not be a restricted location". 

When the options were presented, it was further recommended that the existing Health Bylaw and Smoke Free 
Vehicles for Minors Bylaw be repealed. Additionally, it was recommended that provisions to prohibit vaping in 
public places but permit vaping in vaping retailing. As noted previously, that recommendation will be dealt with 
at a later time. 

On February 12, 2018, Council was presented with the proposed survey on public use of cannabis. Results of 
this survey were presented to Council on March 12, 2018. 

IMPLICATIONS OF RECOMMENDATION 

GENERAL: 

The proposed amendment will grant the City Manager the ability to define areas where the smoking and vaping 
of cannabis is prohibited. The ability to extend distances (or the prescribe distance as referenced under the Act 
to Control and Regulate Cannabis) to beyond 5 meters can be addressed under this same City Manager area 
definition authority. Key to this approach would be a requirement to ensure signage is adequate to provide 
notice to the public and in the event of prosecution, the signage was in good repair at the time of the offence. 

ORGANIZATIONAL: 

Both the RCMP and Leduc Enforcement Services will be required to be made aware of any City Manager 
defined areas where cannabis has been prohibited. Delegation of the ability to define areas may be required to 
facilitate requests for public events. This defined area would only pertain only to City of Leduc owned property. 

FINANCIAL: 

Departure from Provincial standards for prescribed distances has financial implications. Costs for temporary and 
permanent signage would be required. Public Works would be required to place and remove signage at any 
temporary events. Costs for a fixed regulatory sign would be approximately $200 for each sign. Labour costs of 

Report Number: 2018-CR-045 Page 4 of 6 

Updated: February 2, 2017 



Public Works employees for installation would be extra. Alberta First Call is also required for each sign 
installation unless an existing pole is required. Applications for Alberta First Call requests would increase labour 
requirements as an application is required for each new sign installation. Leduc has 42 playgrounds, 44 sports 
fields, one splash park and one skateboard park. Sign costs alone could exceed $70,000 if you have at least 
four signs per location. 

Costs for signs are not captured within the existing budget. 

POLICY: 

Administration will draft a policy that allows for the City Manager (or delegate) to prohibit the smoking or vaping 
of cannabis within 50 meters from the following locations: 

(i) a playground 
(ii) a sports or playing field 
(iii) a skateboard or bicycle park 
(iv) a zoo 
(v) an outdoor theatre 
(vi) an outdoor pool or splash pad 

As this distance is different than the 5 meter prescribed distance set by the Province in the Act to Control and 
Regulate Cannabis, signage will be required for these locations listed above. 

Administration will also include in the policy the ability for the City Manager (or delegate) to temporarily prohibit 
the smoking or vaping of cannabis at public locations. Temporary signage requirements will be outlined in this 
policy. 

Hospital, school property and child care facility property, along with locations covered under the Tobacco and 
Smoking Reduction Act, will not be referenced in this policy as Provincially the use of cannabis (smoking or 
vaping) is prohibited in these areas. 

LEGAL: 

As the Province has not provided a draft of their legislation, any amendment could be subject to additional 
change. At this time only a first reading of the amendments can be done. A variation to the Provincial prescribed 
distance may require rationale if challenged. 

IMPLEMENTATION I COMMUNICATIONS: 

A communications plan will be required to better educate the public on the rules prohibiting public use of 
cannabis in Leduc regardless of any prescribed distance variation or additional locations added by the 
Municipality. Proper signage will be required for locations where a temporary or permanent prohibition is in 
place. Ongoing communications would be required until the public is educated on where they can or can't, 
smoke or vape cannabis. 

Report Number: 2018-CR-045 Page 5 of 6 

Updated: February 2, 2017 



Others Who Have Reviewed this Report

Others Who Have Reviewed this Report P. Benedetto, City Manager / B. Loewen, City Solicitor / I. Sasyniuk, General 
Manager, Corporate Services / D. Melvie, General Manager, Community & Protective Services / M. Pieters, General Manager, 
Infrastructure & Planning / J. Cannon, Director, Finance

ALTERNATIVES: 

1. Proceed with Open model and make no further changes to proposed/existing Provincial legislation. 
2. Proceed with Restricted model and prohibit use of cannabis (smoking or vaping) in public within Leduc. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Attachment "A" - Survey results on Public Use of Cannabis 
Attachment "B" - Committee of the Whole Cannabis Update - Public Use Report 
Attachment "C" - Proposed Bylaw 981-2018 

Report Number: 2018-CR-045 

Updated: February 2, 2017 

Page 6 of 6 



Cannabis Legalization: Public Consumption 
Online Survey Results 

The City of Leduc conducted an on line survey from Feb. 16 - Mar. 2, 2018 that provided the public an 
opportunity to answer key questions relative to public consumption of cannabis. Questions allowed 
the public to indicate how they felt public consumption should be regu lated in the City of Leduc and 
identify any other questions or concerns they had surrounding legalization. 

This survey was posted on the City of Leduc website at www.leduc.ca/ cannabis and was 
p romoted through the City's Facebook and Twitter accounts as well as in the Leduc Representative. 
This survey received a total of 1,505 responses. 

Question 1 

Currently in the province, regu lations state that smoking tobacco is prohibited in public 
facilities and within 5 metres of any entrance to public facilities to protect the public from 
second-hand smoke. Should the rules regarding smoking cannabis in public p laces be: 

II . 

More restrictive than current regulations for tobacco 44% 

Less restrictive than current regulations for tobacco 7% 

I don't know enough about current regulations 1% 

Question 2 

Cannabis can be consumed by vaping (also known as e-cigarettes). The City of Leduc 
is cons idering amending its Health Bylaw to include vaping tobacco. Should vaping 
cannabis also be subject to the same regulations under the Health Bylaw? 

II • 

No 22% 



Cannabis Legalization: Public Consumption 
Online Survey Results 

Question 3 

Please select any places you feel ARE NOT acceptable for people to smoke or vape can
nabis (select all that apply): 

In areas frequented by seniors and/ 
or vulnerable groups II While on the multiway, Telford Lake 

boardwalk or other walking trails 

In commercial/ retail locations II In industrial areas 

In a public park II At an outdoor concert, festival or 
event 

While walking down the street II Any outdoor public space 

In the downtown area II Other 

Question 4 

How should t he City of Leduc approach smoking and vaping cannabis at festiva ls and 
events? 

.-·c7~nabis use should only be allowed in designated areas at these 
events 

Cannabis use should be banned entirely at these events 

Cannabis use should be allowed anywhere at these events 

II 
19% 

15% 

43% 

42% 

37% 

36% 

23% 



Cannabis Legalization: Public Consumption 
O nline Survey Results 

Question 5 

The Government of Alberta has proposed that the consumption of cannabis will be 
restricted within a certain distance from schools, daycares, afterschool care, playgrounds, 
sports fields, skate or bike parks, zoos, outdoor theatres, pools, splash parks and other 
areas that children frequent. This distance has yet to be defined by the province, but the 
City of Leduc will be able to impose additional restrictions on distance. In your view, at 
what distance from the boundaries of these restricted areas should smoking and vaping 
be permitted? 

Unspecified (answers did not include definitive measurement e.g. 
out of sight or everywhere) 

Less than 25 metres 

25 to 100 metres 

Greater than 200 metres 

101 to 200 metres 

Other Trends 

II 
27% 

27% 

10% 

4% 

12% of responses indicated they supported a distance that was the same as what is set 
out in smoking and tobacco legislation. 

5% of responses mentioned children and/or the presence of children as a factor in their 
answer. 



Cannabis Legalization: Public Consumption 
Online Survey Results 

Question 6 

The City of Leduc, along with the Government of Alberta, will be responsible for educat
ing residents on cannabis legalization. What topics would you like to learn more about? 
(select all that apply) 

RCMP enforcement (DUI, posession, 
etc.) 

How cannabis consumption will be 
regulated 

What I will be permitted and 
prohibited from doing 

How cannabis retail will be 
regulated 

Cannabis and youth 

Question 7 

II . 

Ill 
II 
II 
II 

The health and socia l impacts (in-
eluding addiction and impairment) 

Post-legalization next steps from 
Federal and Provincial Government 

Economic development 
opportunities 

Leglization history in Canada 

Other 

You are completing this survey on behalf of {select all that apply): 

Yourself and your family II . 

Other 4% 

A business 3% 

A community group, association or organization 2% 

45% 

43% 

32% 

15% 

7% 



Cannabis Legalization: Public Consumption 
Online Survey Resu lts 

Question 8 

Your age: 

26-35 Ill 36-45 

18-25 II 46-55 

55+ 

Question 9 

20% 

12% 

12% 

Do you have any additional comments regarding the legalization of cannabis? 
Comments have been categorized by type. 

I 

Negative II 
Other (did not state support or non-support of legal ization) 34% 

Positive 27% 

Question 5% 

Other Trends 

16% of responses indicated that the regulations should be the same as alcohol. 

5% of responses indicated that t he regu lations should be the same as tobacco/smoking. 



MEETING DATE: March 19, 2018 

SUBMITTED BY: Darrell Melvle, GM Community and Protective Services 

PREPARED BY: Cameron Chisholm, Manager RCMP Administration and Leduc Enforcement Services 

REPORT TITLE: Cannabis Update - Public Use 

REPORT SUMMARY 

This report provides an overview of the places where cannabis will be prohibited to use under Provincial 
legislation. The report also contains a summary of Administration's investigation cit other municipalities' activities 
as they are preparing themselves for the upcoming legalization of cannabis and enforcement challenges. Lastly, 
the report contains a proposed· strategy for the City of Leduc Community Standards Bylaw amendments to 
address public use of cannabis. · 

BACKGROUND 
PREVIOUS COUNCIUCOMMITTEE ACTION: 

An update was provided on March 12, 2018, at Council. That updated provided results of the Cannabis Public 
Use survey conducted February 16-March 2, 2018, and outlined three options that Administration was 
considering for Council review. An update was also made on February 121h, 2018, where the survey questions 
on the public use of Cannabis were presented to Council at Committee of the Whole 

KEY ISSUES: 

Council Report of March 12, 2018 provides background on the issues of public use. Provincial legislation treats 
cannabis similar to tobacco for where it can be used (smoking or vaping). This legislation outlines areas where it 
is prohibited to be used. 

No person may smoke or vape cannabis 

(a) in any area or place where that person is prohibited from smoking under the Tobacco and Smoking 
Reduction Act or any other Act or the bylaws of a municipality 

(b) on any hospital property, school property or child care facility property 

(c) in or within a prescribed distance from 

i) a playground 
ii) a sports or playing field 
iii) a skateboard or bicycle park 
iv) a zoo 
v) an outdoor theatre 
vi) an outdoor pool or splash pad 
vii) any other area or place that is prescribed or otherwise described in the regulations 

Report Number: 2018-COW-019 

Updated: December 14, 2017 

Page 1of3 



Under the Regulations for the Act, the prescribed distance is defined as 5 metres. 

A Municipality has the ability to set any prescribed distance and add places and locations where the use of 
cannabis will be prohibited. 

The Tobacco and Smoking Reduction Act prohibits smoking within public places which means all or any part of a 
building, structure or enclosed area to which the public have access as of by right or by invitation. That Act 
further prohibits smoking in: 

i) the common areas of a multi-unit facility, including patios, pools, other recreational 
areas and enclosed parking garages 

ii) a group living facility 
iii) an outdoor bus or taxi shelter 
iv) licensed premises 
v) a restaurant 
vi) a hotel 

The Tobacco and Smoking Reduction Act prohibits smoking in public places as previously described, in a 
workplace, in a vehicle in which a minor is present, in a public vehicle or within 5 metres from a doorway, window 
or air intake of a public place or workplace. 

Vaping is not covered under the Tobacco and Smoking Reduction Act. While the vaping of cannabis is 
referenced in an Act to Control and Regulate Cannabis, there is a need to restrict vaping within Leduc at public 
places (indoors and 5 metres from entrances) given that the vaping of cannabis could be undetectable or 
masked. 

At this time, limited information is available on what other Cannabis public use bylaws are being implemented by 
other communities. 

Spruce Grove currently bans smoking and vaping in open space (playground, dog park or sports field). A 
recommendation is oeing forwarded to Council to also include parks, walkways and City owned facilities. Their 
current definition of smoking would include the use of cannabis if smoked or vaped. 

Strathcona County Enforcement will be putting forth to Council a proposal similar to Spruce Grove (.but more 
extensive) where all smoking and vaping is prohibited everywhere in public space. Administration is appearing 
before their Council on March 271h. 

An enforcement issue will be the issue of odour as a result of the public use of cannabis. Landlords and Condo 
associations have the ability to dictate such usage on their property in rental or condo agreements. Some areas 
in the United States define cannabis odour as not offensive in their legislation. This approach has minimized the 
impact on enforcement in situations where it would be difficult to determine what qualifies as offensive. 

Proposed Strategy for Bylaw Amendments: 

Minimum proposed recommendations: 

1) As the City of Leduc Health Bylaw was created prior to the creation of the Tobacco and Smoking 
Reduction Act, it has been made redundant by Provincial law and can be repealed. 

Report Number: 2018-COW-019 

Updated: December 14, 2017 

Page 2 of 3 



2) The City of Leduc Smoke Free Vehicles for Minors can be repealed as smoking in a vehicle with minors 
is covered under the Tobacco and Smoking Reduction Act. 

3) As vaplng is not referenced under the Tobacco and Smoking Reduction Act. a section under the 
Community Standards Bylaw is required to prohibit vaping in public places (indoor areas where the 
public has access) and also vehicles with minors. An exemption for retail outlets that sell vaping related 
products should be permitted in this amendment (both Edmonton and Calgary have this provision). 

With respect to further defining where Cannabis can be smoked or vaped, the following options are 
presented to qouncil: 

Further Options for consideration: 

Open: 

Take no further legislative action and rely on Provincial legislation. 

Moderate: 

a) The City could, by bylaw. create the authority to temporarily prohibit the smoking and vaping of 
cannabis at any other location. This could be used to facilitate large public events where 
children would be present such as festivals or parades. 

b) The City could, by bylaw, increase the prescribed distance (5 m) to ensure smoking and vaping 
cannabis was even further away from locations identified in this report. 

Restricted: 

The City could by bylaw prohibit the smoking and vaplng of cannabis in all public places within 
the City. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

Appendix 1: Map of Leduc with prohibited areas under Open option 

Appendix 2: Map of Leduc with prohibited areas under Moderate option using 50 metres as prescribed distance 

Others Who Have Reviewed this Report 

Report Number: 

I / / / I I // / I 
P. Benedetto, City Manager I B. Loewen, City Solicitor ID. Melvie, General 
Manager. Community & Protective Services I M. Pieters, General Manager, 
Infrastructure & Planning 

2018-COW-019 

Updated: December 14, 2017 

Page 3 of 3 



~---.---=-~;..J.:..++~~,,,.- ... _~!!!~!'!!.~~---- - - i' 

J 

I 
n i 

A 

" .... 

• • " 
• t • 

._ · r 
l I I' 

--~=-·jl. • • • ..:& • • I ~--~--........-.~---~--------~ 'JI .. 

City of Leduc Cannabis L 
Consumption Restrictions Map '~-------------------=~--..-~-~---·- ._J 
Open Scenario 

Hospital, school, registered daycares, 
and Sm seperating distance from playground, 
sports or bicycle park, playground', outdoor 
theater, outdoor pool and splash pad 

Total restricted consumption area: 1073157 m2 

' playground oroos wero ossumod wilh an average of 225m' 
and a radius or 1 &n rrom deslgnal&d playground center. 

GSR4762IMarch14, 2018 I City of Leduc GIS Product 

II 



r 
! 

• I • 1 

• 
• .. ,,, • ct.,, • 

• 

City of Leduc Cannabis 
Consumption Restrictions Map 

Moderate Scenario 

II Hospital, school, registered daycares, 
and 50m seperatlng distance from playground, 
sports or bicycle park, playground*, outdoor 
theater, outdoor pool and splash pad 

Total restricted consumption area: 1941473 rn2 

•playground areas were ess1MTied WiUl an average of 225m' 
and a radius ol 15m from designated pleygrould center. 

'- GSR4762 I Marcil 14, 2018 I City of Leduc GIS Product 
II -

l 
J 

• --
• ,,, • • • • 



Bylaw No. 981-2018 
PAGE 1 

A BYLAW OF THE CITY OF LEDUC IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA, TO AMEND BYLAW 
NO. 711-2008 COMMUNITY STANDARDS BYLAW 

WHEREAS The Municipal Government Act, R.S.A. 2000, Chapter M-26, as amended, 
grants a municipality the authority to pass, amend and repeal a bylaw. 

AND, the Council of the City of Leduc has deemed it expedient and necessary to 
amend Bylaw No. 711-2008; 

THEREFORE, the Council of the City of Leduc in the Province of Alberta duly 
assembled, hereby enacts as follows: 

That Bylaw 711-2008 shall be amended as follows: 

1. The following new definitions shall be alphabetically added to Section 2: 

(b.1) "Cannabis" has the meaning given to it in the federal Act; 

(m.1) "Smoke" where used as a verb in respect of Cannabis, means 
inhaling or exhaling the smoke produced by lit Cannabis or holding 
or otherwise having control of lit Cannabis or any device or thing that 
contains lit Cannabis; 

(m.2) "Vape" in respect of Cannabis, means inhaling or exhaling the 
vapour, emissions or aerosol produced by, or holding or otherwise 
having control of, an electronic cigarette or similar device 
containing Cannabis; 

2. The following new section shall be added following Section 7: 

CANNABIS 

7.5 A Person shall not smoke or vape Cannabis in any location 
identified as an area where smoking or vaping Cannabis is 
prohibited. 

3. The following new section 42 (e.1) shall be added following section 42 (e) : 

APPROVED 
As to Form 

City Solicitor 

42 (e.1) establish areas where the smoking or vaping of Cannabis is 
prohibited; 

B.L.



Bylaw No. 981 -2018 
PAGE 2 

4. This Bylaw shall come into force and effect when it receives Third Reading 
and is duly signed. 

READ A FIRST TIME IN COUNCIL THIS _ DAY OF ____ _, AD 2018. 

READ A SECOND TIME IN COUNCIL THIS DAY OF _____ AD 2018. 

READ A THIRD TIME IN COUNCIL AND FINALLY PASSED THIS __ DAY OF 
________ ,AD 2018. 

Date Signed 

Bob Young 
MAYOR 

Sandra Davis 
CITY CLERK 



DATE: February 15, 2018 

MEETING DATE: April 23, 2018 

SUBMITTED BY: B. Loewen, City Solicitor/S. Davis, City Clerk 

PREPARED BY: S. Davis, City Clerk 

REPORT TITLE: Bylaw No. 957-2017 Council Code of Conduct 

REPORT NUMBER: 2017-CR-130 

REPORT SUMMARY 

The Code of Conduct Regulations have required further amendments to Bylaw No. 957-2017 which Council 
gave first reading to on August 21, 2017. Counci l must adopt a Bylaw that meets the requirements of both 
the Municipal Government Act and the Code of Conduct Regulations. 

RECOMMENDATION 

1. That Council amend Bylaw No. 957-2017 - Council of Conduct Bylaw to comply with the Code of 

Conduct for Elected Officials Regulation as follows: 

a) In Part II: Purpose and Definitions, addition of the following definitions: 

3. Act: Municipal Government Act 

6. City Solicitor: the Solicitor for the City 

8. Council Remuneration Committee: a committee of Council with the mandate to review the 
compensation paid to members of Council and recommend reasonable changes 
as required 

9 Relative: a Council member's spouse, chi ld, parent, sibling, grandparent, grandchild, 
guardian, aunt, uncle, niece, nephew, or legal dependent, including in-laws, 
common law, and step relations. 

b) Sections 3 & 4 are renumbered to Sections 4 & 5 and Section 5 is renumbered to Section 7. 

c) In Part III: Application 

I. Section 6 is renumbered to Section 10. 

d) In Part IV: Council Conduct: 

I. Sections 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13, 14, and 15 are renumbered to Sections 11, 12, 13, 14, 15, 
16, 17, 18 & 19 

II. The following sections are added after section 19: 

Updated: January, 2017 Page 1 



Employment of Relatives 

20. In the event that a relative of a member of Council is being considered for employment: 
a. Administration will maintain sound hiring practices ensuring the recruitment process 

has been followed and has not been unduly influenced. Nor will there be an opportunity 
to jeopardize financial control(s). 

b. Members of Council are responsible for disclosing any existing or potential conflicts to 
the City Manager as soon as they become aware of the conflict. 

c. Administration is committed to disclosing to Council, any potential conflicts that may 
arise as part of the recruitment process. 

Improper Use of Influence 

21. Members of Council should be committed to performing their functions with integrity and 
to avoiding the improper use of the influence of their office, both apparent and rea l. No 
member of Council shall use the influence of their office for any purpose other than for 
the exercise of their official duties. 

III. Sections 16 & 17 are renumbered to Sections 22 & 23. 

IV. Section 18 has been deleted. 

V. Sections 19, 20, 21 are renumbers to Sections 24 & 25. 

VI. Section 21 is amended as follows and is renumbered to Section 27: 

Expenses 

27. The Council Remuneration Committee will complete an in depth review of the 
compensation paid to members of Council following each municipal election, and 
an annual review in each of the three years between municipal elections. After 
each review, the Council Remuneration Committee will recommend reasonable 
changes to Council remuneration ensuring the highest standards of fairness and 
transparency are maintained. 

VII. Section 23 is renumbered to Section 28 and following sections are added after Section 28: 

Complaint System 

29. Any individual who reasonably believes, in good faith, that a member of Council has 
contravened the Bylaw may make complaint. It is recognized that complaints may vary 
in severity, complexity and whether they are admitted or denied. As a result, 
Complainants are given the option of an informal, or formal, complaint process. 

30. Informal Complaint: 

a. An informal complaint is appropriate for quick problem solving where the parties 
can seek agreement and shared understanding of how to avoid problems in the 
future. 

Updated: January, 2017 Page 2 



b. Any individual who reasonably believes, in good faith, that a member of Council 
has contravened the Bylaw may wish to address the prohibited conduct by: 

i. of advising the member of Council that the behaviour or activity contravenes 
the Code of Conduct; 

ii. encourage the member of Council to stop the prohibited behaviour or activity; 

iii. keep a written record of the incident(s), including dates, times, locations, 
other persons present, and any other relevant information; 

iv. request that the Mayor assist in informal discussions with the member Council 
in an attempt to resolve the issue. In the event the Mayor is the subject, or is 
implicated in a complaint, request the assistance from the Deputy Mayor; 

v. if applicable, confirm to the member of Council their satisfaction with the 
response of the member of Council, or, if applicable, their dissatisfaction with 
the response; and 

c. Individuals are encouraged to pursue this informal complaint procedure as the first 
means of remedying conduct that they believe violates this Bylaw. However, an 
individual is not required to complete this informal complaint procedure prior to 
pursuing the formal complaint procedure outlined below. 

31. Formal Complaint: 

a. Any individual who reasonably believes, in good faith, a Member has contravened 
the Bylaw may make a formal complaint as follows: 

i. All complaints shall be made in writing. The Complainant may complete a 
Statement of Complaint document (Attachment "A") which can be obtained 
from the Office of the City Clerk. 

ii. The Complaint must: 

• set out reasonable grounds and probable grounds for the allegation; 
• provide a detailed account of the facts as the Complainant understands 

them; 
• provide information on witnesses, if any and if known. 

iii. The completed Statement of Comr?laint must be addressed to the Office of 
the City Clerk. 

32. Review of Complaint 

a. The Office of the City Clerk shall forward the Complaint, without added comment, 
to the City Solicitor ("Solicitor") OR a Complainant may file the completed 
Complaint in a sealed envelope, with the Office of the City Clerk, and the Complaint 
shall be forwarded, unopened, to the Solicitor. 

Updated: January, 2017 Page 3 



b. A Complaint shall not be made available to the public except as may be required 
and authorized under the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act, 
the provisions of this By-law or any other applicable law. 

c. Upon receiving a Complaint filed in accordance with this By-law, the Solicitor shall 
notify the member(s) of Council to whom the Complaint is directed of the fact and 
nature of the complaint. 

d. The Solicitor shall conduct a preliminary review of the Complaint as follows to 
determine whether to proceed to investigation or dispose of the Complaint: 

i . The Solicitor may request further information from the Complainant as part of 
the preliminary review. 

ii. If the Complaint is not, on its face, a complaint relative to the Code of 
Conduct or the complaint is covered by other legislation or a complaint 
procedure under another Council policy, the Solicitor shall advise the 
Complainant, in writing, that the matter is not within the jurisdiction of the 
Solicitor. The advice will provide reasons and referrals to the appropriate 
authority as the Solicitor considers appropriate. 

iii. If the Solicitor considered the Complaint to be frivolous or vexatious, that it is 
not made is good faith or that there are no grounds, or insufficient grounds, 
for conducting an investigation the Solicitor may choose not to conduct an 
investigation, terminate the investigation or may dispose of the Complaint in 
a summary manner. The Solicitor's decision will be provided in writing to the 
Complainant and Council. 

33. Inquiry into a Complaint Regarding a Member of Council: 

a. If the complaint was not dismissed, the Solicitor shall take such steps as is 
considered appropriate to investigate and may attempt to settle the 
Complaint. Steps to investigate may include having a th ird party ("third 
party") certified to handle such matters, investigate the Complaint. All 
proceedings of the Solicitor and/or the third party regarding the investigation 
shall be confidential. 

b. The Solicitor and/or third party shall, upon conclusion of the investigation, 
provide Council and the member of Council who is the subject of the 
Complaint, the results of the investigation. 

c. A member of Council who is the subject of an investigation shall be afforded 
procedural fairness, including the opportunity to respond to t he allegations 
before Council deliberates and make any decision or any sanction is imposed. 

d. A member of Counci l who is the subject of an investigation is entitled to be 
represented by legal counsel, at the member of Counci l's sole expense. 

VIII. Section 24 is renumbered to Section 34 

Updated: January, 2017 Page4 



IX. The following sections are added after section 34: 
35. Members of Council agree to uphold this Bylaw and govern themselves accordingly, 

in order to enhance ethical conduct and the credibility and integrity of Council in the 
Community. 

36. During Council Orientation, which is conducted after every municipal election, each 
member of Council will be provided with a copy of the Counci l Code of Conduct and 
will be requested to sig the Statement of Commitment (Attachment "B") 
acknowledging that he or she has read the Council Code of Conduct and supports it. 

37. No member of Council shall : 

a. Undertake any act of reprisal or threaten reprisal against a Complainant or any 
other person for providing relevant information to Council or to any other person. 

b. Obstruct Council, the Solicitor, the third party, or any other person, in carrying out 
the objectives or requirements of this Bylaw. 

X. Section 25 is renumbered to Section 38 and amended as follows: 

38. Should a member of Council breach the Council Code of Conduct, the possible course 
of action available to Council include, but are not limited to : 

a. A Jetter of reprimand addressed to the member of Council 

b. Requesting the member of Council issue a letter of apology to the impacted 
individual(s) 

c. Suspension or removal from Council Committees and bodies to which Council has 
a right to appoint members 

d. Suspension or removal from a position of Deputy Chief Elected Official or 
Chairperson of a Committee under section 152 of the Act 

e. Suspension or removal of the Chief Elected Official's presiding duties under section 
154 of the Act 

f. Educational training on ethica l and respectful conduct provided by a 3rd party 

g. Any o~her sanction Council deems reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances 
provided that the sanction does not prevent a member of Council from fulfilling the 
legislated duties of a Councillor and the sanction is not contrary to the Act. 

XI. Section 26 is deleted. 

2 . That Council give Bylaw No. 957-2017 second reading, as amended . 

Updated: January, 2017 Page5 



3. That Council give Bylaw No. 957-2017 third reading, as amended. 

4 . That Counci l repeal Policy No. 11.00:05 - Ethical Guidelines of Conduct for Elected Local 
Government Officials. 

BACKGROUND 

KEY ISSUE{S) / CONTEXT: 

Division 1.1, s.146.1 (1) & (2) of the Municipal Government Act states: 

1. A council must, by bylaw, establish a code of conduct governing the conduct of councillors. 

2. A code of conduct under subsection (1) must apply to all councillors equally. 

Bylaw No. 957-2017, Section 27 entitled "Expenses" refers to the Council Remuneration Committee 
("Committee"). This Committee was created by Bylaw at the February 12, 2018, Council meeting . If 
Council wishes this Committee to become a standing committee, the Bylaw will required amendment to set 
out the terms of the Committee members. 

LEGISLATION AND/OR POLICY: 
Municipal Government Act 
Code of Conduct for Elected Officials Regulation 
City of Leduc Policy #11.00:05 entitled Ethical Guidelines of Conduct for Elected Local Government Officials 

PAST COUNCIL CONSIDERATION: 
At the January 16, 2017, Committee-of-the-Whole meeting, Administration presented the first of two 
reports relative to a Code of Conduct Bylaw ("Bylaw"). The first report provided a framework of topics and 
sought input from Committee members' relative the format of the new Bylaw. 

At the April 24, 2017, Committee-·of-the-Whole meeting, Administration presented a report that 
incorporated items brought forward by Committee members during discussions on January 16, 2017, as 
well as examples of wording that may the utilized in the Bylaw. Based on discussions and feedback from 
both Committee-of-the-Whole meetings, Administration crafted Bylaw No. 957-2017. 

At the August 21, 2017, Council gave the Bylaw ist Reading. At that time Administration indicated that the 
Bylaw would require amendment in order to comply with the Code of Conduct for Elected Officials 
Regulation ("Regulation") once it came into effect. The Regulation is now in effect and sets out the 
minimum requirements for a Code of Conduct. 

At the February 12, 2018, Committee-of-the-Whole meeting, Administration presented a report outlining 
the required amendments to Bylaw No. 957-2017 based on the Regulation. The amendments are the 
addition of paragraphs entitled: 

• Employment of Relatives 
• Improper Use of Influence 
• Complaint System, and 
• Sections under Compliance with the Code of Conduct 

Updated: January, 2017 Pages 



COUNCIL REQUEST FOR DECISION 
	 Leitc 

IMPLICATIONS OF RECOMMENDATION 

ORGANIZATIONAL: 
Once passed, Council members will be expected to adhere to the Bylaw. 

POLICY: 
The Bylaw will repeal Policy #11.00.05. 

LEGAL: 
The Bylaw is intended to ensure compliance with the new Municipal Government Act requirements. The 
Bylaw also sets out possible sanctions, or penalty options, to be imposed for a breach of the Bylaw by a 
member of Council. 

ALTERNATIVES: 
1. Council direct Administration to return at a later date with further amendments to Bylaw No. 

957-2017 

ATTACHED REPORTS / DOCUMENTS: 
1. Bylaw No. 957-2017, as given first reading 
2. Bylaw No. 957-2017, with amendments high-lighted 
3. Code of Conduct Complaint Form 
4. Statement of Commitment to the Code of Conduct 

       

       

       

       

      

        

Updated: January, 2017 	 Page 7 

Others Who Have Reviewed this Report

P. Benedetto, City Manager / B. Loewen, City Solicitor



PAGE 1 

Bylaw No. 957-2017 
COUNCIL CODE OF CONDUCT BYLAW 

A BYLAW OF THE CITY OF LEDUC IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA, TO ESTABLISH A 
CODE OF CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS OF COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEDUC 

WHEREAS, The Municipal Government Act, R.S.A. 2000, Chapter M-26, Section 
145(b), of the Revised Statutes of Alberta, 2000, states that A council may pass 
Bylaws in relation to the procedure and conduct of council, council committees 
and other bodies established by council, the conduct of councillors and the 
conduct of members of council committees and other bodies established by the 
council. 

THEREFORE, the Council of the City of Leduc in the Province of Alberta duly 
assembled, hereby enacts as follows: 

PART I: BYLAW TITLE 

1 . That bylaw shall be known as the "Council Code of Conduct" Bylaw. 

PART II: PURPOSE AND DEFINITIONS 

2. This Council Code of Conduct Bylaw sets a standard each member of 
Council can be expected to meet. The Code enables members of Council 
to carry out their duties, powers and functions in such a way that protects, 
and maintains, the City of Leduc's reputation and integrity while in service 
to the public. The Code is a supplement to: 

a. The Municipal Government Act 
b. The Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act 
c. The Alberta Human Rights Act 
d. The Local Authorities Election Act 
e. The Conflicts of Interest Act (Alberta) 
f. The Criminal Code of Canada 
g . The City of Leduc Council Procedures Bylaw 

3. City: 

4. City Manager: 

5. Council: 

the Municipal Corporation of the City o~ Leduc 

the Chief Administrative Officer of the City, as 
appointed pursuant to the Municipal Government Act, 
or their delegate. 
the Council of the City. 



PAGE 2 

Bylaw No. 957-2017 
COUNCIL CODE OF CONDUCT BYLAW 

PART Ill: APPLICATION 

6. This Bylaw applies to all members of Council, including the Mayor. 

PART IV: COUNCIL CONDUCT 

Statement of Values 

7. Members of Council: 
a. Are committed to performing their functions with integrity, 

accountability and transparency; 
b. Are responsible for complying with all applicable legislation, by-laws 

and policies pertaining to their position as an elected official; 
c. Recognize that the public has a right to open government and 

transparent decision-making; 
d. Shall at all times serve and be seen to serve the interests of their 

constituents and the City in a conscientious and diligent manner; 
and 

e. Shall approach decision-making with an open mind. 

Respect of the Decision Making Process 

8. Members of Council are elected to make decisions for the municipality 
about services, policies and programs, with each Member having an equal 
voice and one vote. Members of Council work together to find acceptable 
outcomes by: 

a. Actively participating in the decision-making process; 
b. Showing respect for each member and their views; and 
c. Valuing diverse expertise, experience and knowledge that exists 

among members of Council. 

9. A Council decision is the decision of the municipality and the decision must 
be respected. Members of Council continue to show respect for their 
colleagues, and the decision making process, by avoiding personal, or 
group, criticism both at and away from Council meetings. 

Communication Protocols and Council's Spokesperson(s) 

10. The City of Leduc strives to communicate with media and the public in an 
accurate, consistent and timely consistent manner. In that regard, Council 
authorizes the Mayor, or the Deputy Mayor in the Mayor's absence, to 
speak on behalf of the City of Leduc and Leduc City Council when 
communicating with the public and/or the media. 



PAGE 3 

Bylaw No. 957-2017 
COUNCIL CODE OF CONDUCT BYLAW 

Conduct Respecting Administration 

1 1 . Members of Council are committed to creating, and sustaining, a vibrant, 
healthy, safe and caring work environment. Under the direction of the City 
Manager, Administration serves Council as a whole. There are distinct and 
specialized roles of Administration both in carrying out their responsibilities 
and in dealing with Council. Members of Council shall be respectful of the 
role of Administration to provide advice based on political neutrality and 
objectivity, and with undue influence from any individual member of 
Council. Should members of Council have any questions, or concerns, of 
Administration, those questions or concerns shall directed through the City 
Manager. 

Confidentiality 

12. Members of Council will not disclose, or release by any means, any 
confidential information acquired by virtue of their office, in either written 
or verbal form, except when required by law or authorized by Council to 
do so. Nor will members of Council use confidential information for personal 
or private gain. 

13. After leaving office, members of Council shall continue to keep confidential 
information acquired as a member of Council. 

14. Members of Council will not interfere in any way with a determination made 
by the head of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy for 
the City of Leduc. 

Conflict of Interest 

15. It is difficult to anticipate every conflict of interest a member of Council may 
encounter. However, members of Council must govern their conduct in 
accordance with the requirements and obligations as set out in legislation, 
and ·strive to avoid any activities in which their personal interests may come 
into conflict, or may appear to conflict, with the interest of the City of 
Leduc. Doing so will ensure residents continue to have confidence in the 
integrity of members of Council and the City of Leduc. Members of Council 
have a duty to avoid a conflict of interest, to account for their conduct, to 
report a conflict of interest, and take appropriate action to mitigate a 
conflict of interest. 



PAGE 4 

Bylaw No. 957-2017 
COUNCIL CODE OF CONDUCT BYLAW 

Use of Municipal Property and Services 

16. In order to fulfi ll their roles as elected representatives, members of Council 
have access to municipal resources such as property, equipment, services, 
staff and supplies. No member of Council shall use, or permit the use of City 
land, facilities, equipment, supplies, services, staff or other resources (for 
example, City-owned materials, websites, or a Member of Council 
Constituency Services Budget) for activities other than purposes connected 
with the discharge of Council duties or City business. 

17. No Member shall obtain financial gain from the use or sale of City
developed intellectual property, computer programs, technological 
innovations, or other patent, trademark, copyright held by the City. 

18. Council directs Administration to annually review and make 
recommendations to Policy No. 11.00:27 Social Media Policy for Council to 
ensure the highest standards of fairness and transparency are maintained. 

19. In order to fulfil l their roles as elected representatives, members of Council 
have access to municipal resources such as property, equipment, services, 
staff and supplies. No member of Council shall use, or permit the use of City 
land, facilities, equipment, supplies, services, staff or other resources (for 
example, City-owned materials, wE;bsites, or a Member of Council 
Constituency Services Budget) for activities other than purposes connected 
with the discharge of Council duties or City business or as otherwise 
authorized by Council Policy. 

20. No Member shall obtain financial gain from the use or sale of City
developed intellectual property, computer programs, technological 
innovations, or other patent, trademark, copyright held by the City 

Election Related Activity 

21 . Members of Council are required to conduct themselves in accordance 
with the Local Authorities Elections Act. The use of municipal resources, 
both actual municipal property and staff time, for election-related activity 
is not permitted. This applies to both the promotion and opposition to the 
candidacy of a person for elected office. Election-related activity applies, 
not only to a member of Council's personal campaign for office, but also 
other campaigns for municipal, provincial and federal office. 

Expenses 

22. Council directs Administration to annually review and make 
recommendations to Policy No. 11.00:25 Council Remuneration and 



PAGE 5 

Bylaw No. 957-2017 
COUNCIL CODE OF CONDUCT BYLAW 

Expenses to ensure the highest standards of fairness and transparency are 
maintained. 

Gifts and Hospitality 

23. Members of Council are called upon to assist and support various charities, 
service clubs, and other non-profit and community-based associations. In 
considering accepting an invitation, or purchasing tickets to, an event, 
members of Council should also consider the organizer. Acceptance of an 
invitation, or purchase of tickets to events, should be reviewed to consider 
whether attendance at the event is being offered by someone whose 
interests could be affected by a decision the member of Council could be 
called upon to make. Members of Council should also consider whether 
accepting an invitation from a particular organization would, or would 
appear, to place the member of Council under an actual, or perceived, 
obligation. 

Compliance with the Code of Conduct 

24. Members of Council are accountable to the public through the four-year 
election process and must govern their conduct in accordance with the 
requirements of the Municipal Government Act or any other Act of the 
Province of Alberta or Government of Canada. Members of Council agree 
to uphold this Bylaw and govern accordingly, in order to enhance ethical 
conduct and the credibility and integrity of Council in the community. 
Every member of Council will be provided with a copy of the Council Code 
of Conduct Bylaw and will acknowledge that he or she has read it and 
supports it. 

~ 25. Should a member of Council breach the Council Code of Conduct, the 
possible course of action available to Council include, but are not limited 
to: 

a. Requesting an apology to the impacted individual{s) 
b. Removal from Council Committees 

. c. Dismissal from a position of Deputy Mayor or Chairperson of a 
Committee 

d. Educational training on ethical and respectful conduct provided by 
a 3rd party 

e. Any action taken by Council should include a time frame and what 
remedial action is expected. 

26. Members of Council agree to uphold this Bylaw and govern accordingly, in 
order to enhance ethical conduct and the credibility and integrity of 
Council in the community. Every member of Council will be provided with 



PAGE 6 

Bylaw No. 957-2017 
COUNCIL CODE OF CONDUCT BYLAW 

a copy of the Council Code of Conduct Bylaw and will acknowledge that 
he or she has read it and supports it. 

PART V: ENACTMENT 

This Bylaw shall come into force and effect when it receives Third Reading and 
is duly signed. 

READ A FIRST TIME IN COUNCIL THIS __ DAY OF _____ , AD 2017. 

READ A SECOND TIME IN COUNCIL THIS DAY OF ____ , AD 2017. 

READ A THIRD TIME IN COUNCIL AND FINALLY PASSED THIS __ DAY OF 
______ ,AD2017. 

Date Signed 

Greg Krischke 
MAYOR 

Sandra Davis 
CITY CLERK 



PAGE 1 of 10 

Bylaw No. 957-2017 
COUNCIL CODE OF CONDUCT BYLAW 

A BYLAW OF THE CITY OF LEDUC IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA, TO ESTABLISH A CODE OF 
CONDUCT FOR MEMBERS OF COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF LEDUC 

WHEREAS, The Municipal Government Act, R.S.A. 2000, Chapter M-26, Section l 45(b), of 
the Revised Statutes of Alberta, 2000, states that A council may pass Bylaws in relation to 
the procedure and conduct of council, council committees and other bodies 
established by council, the conduct of councillors and the conduct of members of 
council committees and other bodies established by the council. 

THEREFORE, the Council of the City of Leduc in the Province of Alberta duly assembled, 
hereby enacts as follows: 

PART I: BYLAW TITLE 

1. That bylaw shall be known as the "Council Code of Conduct" Bylaw. 

PART II: PURPOSE AND DEFINITIONS 

2. This Council Code of Conduct Bylaw sets a standard each member of Council 
can be expected to meet. The Code enables members of Council to carry out 
their duties, powers and functions in such a way that protects, and maintains, 
the City of Leduc's reputation and integrity while in service to the public. The 
Code is a supplement to: 

a. The Municipal Government Act 

b. The Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act 

c. The Alberta Human Rights Act 

d. The Local Authorities Election Act 

e. The Conflicts of Interest Act {Alberta) 

f. The Criminal Code of Canada 

g. The City of Leduc Council Procedures Bylaw 

3. Act: Municipal Government Act 

4. City: the Municipal Corporation of the City of Leduc 

5. City Manager: the Chief Administrative Officer of the City, as 
appointed pursuant to the Municipal Government Act, 
or their delegate. 



Bylaw No. 957-2017 
COUNCIL CODE OF CONDUCT BYLAW 

PAGE 2 of 10 

6. City Solicitor: 

7. Council: 

8. Council 
Remuneration 
Committee: 

9. Relative: 

the Solicitor for the City. 

the Council of the City. 

a committee of Council with the mandate to review 
the compensation paid to members of Council and 
recommend reasonable changes as required. 

a Council member's spouse, child, parent, sibling, 
grandparent, grandchild, guardian, aunt, uncle, niece, 
nephew, or legal dependent, including in-laws, common law, 
and step relationships. 

PART Ill: APPLICATION 

10. This Bylaw applies to all members of Council, including the Mayor. 

PART IV: COUNCIL CONDUCT 

Statement of Values 

1 1 . Members of Council: 
a. Are committed to performing their functions with integrity, accountability 

and transparency; 

b. Are responsible for complying with all applicable legislation, by-laws and 
policies pertaining to their position as an elected official; 

c. Recognize that the public has a right to open government and transparent 
decision-making; 

d. Shall at all times serve and be seen to serve the interests of their constituents 
and the City in a conscientious and diligent manner; and 

e. Shall approach decision-making with an open mind. 

Respect of the Decision Making Process 

12. Members of Council are elected to make decisions for the municipality about 
services, policies and programs, with each Member having an equal voice and 
one vote. Members of Council work together to find acceptable outcomes by: 

a. Actively participating in the decision-making process; 



PAGE 3 of 10 

Bylaw No. 957-2017 
COUNCIL CODE OF CONDUCT BYLAW 

b. Showing respect for each member and their views; and 

c . Valuing diverse expertise, experience and knowledge that exists among 
members of Council. 

13. A Council decision is the decision of the municipality and the decision must be 
respected. Members of Council continue to show respect for their colleagues, 
and the decision making process, by avoiding personal, or group, criticism both 
at and away from Council meetings. 

Communication Protocols and Council's Spokesperson(s) 

14. The City of Leduc strives to communicate with media and the public in an 
accurate, consistent and timely consistent manner. In that regard, Council 
authorizes the Mayor, or the Deputy Mayor in the Mayor's absence, to speak on 
behalf of the City of Leduc and Leduc City Council when communicating with 
the public and/or the media. 

Conduct Respecting Administration 

15. Members of Council are committed to creating, and sustaining, a vibrant, 
healthy, safe and caring work environment. Under the direction of the City 
Manager, Administration serves Council as a whole. There are distinct and 
specialized roles of Administration both in carrying out their responsibilities and in 
dealing with Council. Members of Council shall be respectful of the role of 
Administration to provide advice based on political neutrality and objectivity, 
and with undue influence from any individual member of Council. Should 
members of Council have any questions, or concerns, of Administration, those 
questions or concerns shall directed through the City Manager. 

Confidentiality 

16. Members of Council will not disclose, or release by any means, any confidential 
information acquired by virtue of their office, in either written or verbal form, 
except when required by law or authorized by Council to do so. Nor will 
members of Council use confidential information for personal or private gain. 

17. After leaving office, members of Council shall continue to keep confidential 
information acquired as a member of Council. 

18. Members of Council will not interfere in any way with a determination made by 
the head of the Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy for the City of 
Leduc. 



PAGE 4 of 10 

Conflict of Interest 

Bylaw No. 957-2017 
COUNCIL CODE OF CONDUCT BYLAW 

19. It is difficult to anticipate every conflict of interest a member of Council may 
encounter. However, members of Council must govern their conduct in 
accordance with the requirements and obligations as set out in legislation, and 
strive to avoid any activities in which their personal interests may come into 
conflict, or may appear to conflict, with the interest of the City of Leduc. Doing 
so will ensure residents continue to have confidence in the integrity of members 
of Council and the City of Leduc. Members of Council have a duty to avoid a 
conflict of interest, to account for their conduct, to report a conflict of interest, 
and take appropriate action to mitigate a conflict of interest. 

Employment of Relatives 

20. In the event that a relative of a member of Council is being considered for 
employment: 

a. Administration will maintain sound hiring practices ensuring the recruitment 
process has been followed and has not been unduly influenced. Nor will 
there be an opportunity to jeopardize financial control(s). 

b. Members of Council are responsible for disclosing any existing or potentia l 
conflicts to the City Manager as soon as they become aware of the 
conflict. 

c. Administration is committed to disclosing to Council, any potential conflicts 
that may arise as part of the recruitment process. 

Improper Use of Influence 

21. Members of Council should be committed to performing their functions with 
integrity and to avoiding the improper use of the influence of their office, both 
apparent and real. No member of Council shall use the influence of their 
office for any purpose other than for the exercise of their officia l duties. 

Use of Municipal Property and Services 

22. In order to fulfil l their roles as elected representatives, members of Council have 
access to municipal resources such as property, equipment, seNices, staff and 
supplies. No member of Council shall use, or permit the use of City land, facilities, 
equipment, supplies, seNices, staff or other resources (for example, City-owned 
materials, websites, or a Member of Council Constituency SeNices Budget) for 
activities other than purposes connected with the discharge of Council duties or 
City business. 



PAG E 5 of 10 

Bylaw No. 957-2017 
COUNCIL CODE OF CONDUCT BYLAW 

23. No Member shall obtain financial gain from the use or sale of City-developed 
intellectual property, computer programs, technological innovations, or other 
patent, trademark, copyright held by the City. 

24. In order to fulfill their roles as elected representatives, members of Council have 
access to municipal resources such as property, equipment, services, staff and 
supplies. No member of Council shall use, or permit the use of City land, facilities, 
equipment, supplies, services, staff or other resources (for example, City-owned 
materials, websites, or a Member of Council Constituency Services Budget} for 
activities other than purposes connected with the discharge of Council duties or 
City business or as otherwise authorized by Council Policy. 

25. No Member shall obtain financial gain from the use or sale of City-developed 
intellectual p roperty, computer programs, technological innovations, or other 
patent, trademark, copyright held by the City 

Election Related Activity 

26. Members of Council are required to conduct themselves in accordance with 
the Local Authorities Elections Act. The use of municipal resources, both actual 
municipal property and staff time, for election-related activity is not permitted. 
This applies to both the promotion and opposition to the candidacy of a person 
for elected office. Election-related activity applies, not only to a member of 
Council's personal campaign for office, but also other campaigns for municipal, 
provincial and federal office. 

Expenses 

27. The Council Remuneration Committee will complete an in depth review of the 
compensation paid to members of Council following each municipal election, 
and an annual review in each of the three years between municipal elections. 
After each review, the Council Remuneration Committee will recommend 
reasonable changes to Council remuneration ensuring the highest standards of 
fairness and transparency are maintained. 

Gifts and Hospitality 

28. Members of Council are called upon to assist and support various charities, 
service clubs, and other non-profit and community-based associations. In 
considering accepting an invitation, or purchasing tickets to, an event, members 
of Council should also consider the organizer. Acceptance of an invitation, or 
purchase of tickets to events, should be reviewed to consider whether 
attendance at the event is being offered by someone whose interests could be 



PAGE 6 of 10 

Bylaw No. 957-2017 
COUNCIL CODE OF CONDUCT BYLAW 

affected by a decision the member of Council could be called upon to make. 
Members of Council should also consider whether accepting an invitation from 
a particular organization would, or would appear, to place the member of 
Council under an actual, or perceived, obligation. 

Complaint System 

29. Any individual who reasonably believes, in good faith, that a member of 
Council has contravened the Bylaw may make complaint. It is recognized that 
complaints may vary in severity, complexity and whether they are admitted or 
denied. As a result, Complainants are given the option of an informal, or 
formal, complaint process. 

30. Informal Complaint: 

a. An informal complaint is appropriate for quick problem solving where the 
parties can seek agreement and shared understanding of how to avoid 
problems in the future. 

b. Any individual who reasonably believes, in good faith, that a member of 
Council has contravened the Bylaw may wish to address the prohibited 
conduct by: 

I. advising the member of Council that the behaviour or activity 
contravenes the Code of Conduct; 

II. encourage the member of Council to stop the prohibited behaviour or 
activity; 

Ill. keep a written record of the incident(s}, including dates, times, 
locations, other persons present, and an_y other relevant information; 

IV. request that the Mayor assist in informal discussions with the member of 
Council in an attempt to resolve the issue. In the event the Mayor is the 
subject, or is implicated in a complaint, request the assistance from the 
Deputy Mayor; 

V. if applicable, confirm to the member of Council their satisfaction with 
the response of the member of Council, or, if applicable, their 
dissatisfaction with the response; and 

c. Individuals are encouraged to pursue this informal complaint procedure as 
the first means of remedying conduct that they believe violates this Bylaw. 
However, an individual is not required to complete this informal complaint 



PAGE 7 of 10 

Bylaw No. 957-2017 
COUNCIL CODE OF CONDUCT BYLAW 

procedure prior to pursuing the formal complaint procedure outlined 
below. 

31 . Formal Complaint: 

a. Any individual who reasonably believes, in good faith, a Member has 
contravened the Bylaw may make a formal complaint as follows: 

I. All complaints shall be made in writing. The Complainant may 
complete a Statement of Complaint document (Attachment "A") 
which can be obtained from the Office of the City Clerk. 

II. The Complaint must: 

• set out reasonable grounds and probable grounds for the 
allegation; 

• provide a detailed account of the facts as the Complainant 
understands them; 

• provide information on witnesses, if any and if known. 

Ill. The completed Statement of Complaint must be addressed to the 
Office of the City Clerk. 

32. Review of Complaint 

a. The Office of the City Clerk shall forward the Complaint, without added 
comment, to the City Solicitor ("Solicitor") OR a Complainant may file the 
completed Complaint in a sealed envelope, with the Office of the City 
Clerk, and the Complaint shall be forwarded, unopened, to the Solicitor. 

b. A Complaint shall not be made available to the public except as may be 
required and authorized under the Freedom of Information and Protection 
of Privacy Act, the provisions of this By-law or any other applicable law. 

c . Upon receiving a Complaint filed in accordance with this By-law, the 
Solicitor shall notify the member(s} of Council to whom the Complaint is 
directed of the fact and nature of the complaint. 

d. The Solicitor shall conduct a preliminary review of the Complaint as follows 
to determine whether to proceed to investigation or dispose of the 
Complaint: 

i. The Solicitor may request further information from the Complainant as 
part of the preliminary review. 



PAG E 8 of 10 

Bylaw No. 957-2017 
COUNCIL CODE OF CONDUCT BYLAW 

ii. If the Complaint is not, on its face, a complaint relative to the Code of 
Conduct or the complaint is covered by other legislation or a 
complaint procedure under another Council policy, the Solicitor shall 
advise the Complainant, in writing, that the matter is not within the 
jurisdiction of the Solicitor. The advice will provide reasons and referrals 
to the appropriate authority as the Solicitor considers appropriate. 

iii. If the Solicitor considered the Complaint to be frivolous or vexatious, 
t hat it is not made is good faith or that there are no grounds, or 
insufficient grounds, for conducting an investigation the Solicitor may 
choose not to conduct an investigation, terminate the investigation or 
may dispose of the Complaint in a summary manner. The Solicitor's 
decision will be provided in writing to the Complainant and Council. 

33. Inquiry Into a Complaint Regarding a Member of Council: 

a . If the complaint was not dismissed, the Solicitor shall take such steps as is 
considered appropriate to investigate and may attempt to settle the 
Complaint. Steps to investigate may include having a third party ("third 
party") certified to handle such matters, investigate the Complaint. All 
proceedings of the Solicitor and/or the third party regarding the 
investigation shall be confidential. 

b. The Solicitor and/or third party shalt upon conclusion of the investigation, 
provide Council and the member of Council who is the subject of the 
Complaint, the results of the investigation. 

c. A member of Council who is the subject of an investigation shall be 
afforded procedural fairness, including the opportunity to respond to the 
allegations before Council deliberates and make any decision or any 
sanction is imposed. 

d. A member of Council who is the subject of an investigation is entitled to be 
represented by legal counsel, at the member of Council's sole expense. 

Compliance with the Code of Conduct 

34. Members of Council are accountable to the public through the four-year 
election process and must govern their conduct in accordance with the 
requirements of the Municipal Government Act or any other Act of the Province 
of Alberta or Government of Canada 



PAGE 9of10 

Bylaw No. 957-2017 
COUNCIL CODE OF CONDUCT BYLAW 

35. Members of Council agree to uphold this Bylaw and govern themselves 
accordingly, in order to enhance ethical conduct and the credibility and 
integrity of Council in the community. 

36. DtJring C9uncil Orientati~n, :-Vhich is c?nduc~ed after every municipa! election, 

~
. h ember of Council will be provided with a copy of the Council Code of 

Co ct and will be requested to sign the Statement of Commitment 
( a hment "B") acknowledging that he or she has read the Council Code of 

f"Cond ct and supports it. 

37. No member of Council shall: 

a. Undertake any act of reprisal or threaten reprisal against a Complainant or 
any other person for providing relevant information to Council or to any 
other person. 

b. Obstruct Council, the Solicitor, the third party, or any other person, in 
carrying out the objectives or requirements of this Bylaw. 

38. Should a member of Council breach the Council Code of Conduct, the possible 
course of action available to Council include, but are not limited to: 

a. A letter of reprimand addressed to the member of Council 

b. Requesting the member of Council issue a letter of apology to the 
impacted individual(s) 

c. Suspension or removal from Council Committees and bodies to which 
Council has a right to appoint members 

d. Suspension or removal from a position of Deputy Chief Elected Official or 
Chairperson of a Committee under section 152 of the Act 

e. Suspension or removal of the Chief Elected Official's presiding duties under 
section 154 of the Act 

f. Educational training on ethical and respectful conduct provided b a 3 rd 

party 

g. Any other sanction Council deems reasonable and appropriate in the 
circumstances provided that the sanction does not prevent a member of 
Council from fulfilling the legislated duties of a Councillor and the sanction 
is not contrary to the Act. 



PAGE 10 of 10 

·- -.,....--------,------------- --- -

Bylaw No. 957-2017 
COUNCIL CODE OF CONDUCT BYLAW 

PART V: ENACTMENT 

This Bylaw shall come into force and effect when it receives Third Reading and is duly 
signed. 

READ A FIRST TIME IN COUNCIL THIS 21 DAY OF AUGUST, 2017. 

READ A SECOND TIME IN COUNCIL THIS 26 DAY OF MARCH, 2018. 

READ A THIRD TIME IN COUNCIL AND Fl NALLY PASSED THIS 26 DAY OF MARCH, 2018. 

Date Signed 

Bob Young 
MAYOR 

Sandra Davis 
CITY CLERK 



I ATIACHM ENT "A" 

FORMAL COMPLAINT UNDER THE COUNCIL CODE OF 
CONDUCT BYLAW NO. 957-2017 

NAME OF COMPLAINANT: 

(full name of individual signing and filing this Complaint) 

(full municipal address) 

HEREBY MAKE THIS COMPLAINT AGAINST: 

(Name of Member(s) of Council alleged to have contravened the Council 
Code of Conduct for Members of the City Council of the City Of Leduc) 

The Complainant is (choose appropriate description of Complainant): 

D acting on behalf of and pursuant to the direction of, the City Council; 

D a Member of City Council; 

D a City employee; 

D a City resident; 

D a person or body which has business, institutional or other premises in 
the City. 

I, [or the Complainant, if different from the person filing this Complaint] 
have/ has knowledge of the statements made in this Complaint, by reason 
of: 

D my personal observations; 

D my personal knowledge; 

D documentation and/or records attached; 

FORMAL COMPLAI NT UN DER THE COUNCIL CODE OF CONDUCT BYLAW NO. 957-2017 Page l of_ 



D other information etc. 

I have reasonable and probable grounds to believe that the following 
Member(s) of the City Council of the City of Leduc has/have contravened the 
Code of Conduct, as fo llows: 

Name of Member(s): 

Date(s) and time(s) of Contravention: 

Conduct: 

Set out statements of fact in the space below or, if you requ ire more space, 
please attach an additional page or pages, numbered consecutively, with a 
statement at the top of each additional page or pages that the contents form 
part of this Complaint. 

If you wish to include documents or other exhibits to support this Complaint, 
please refer to them as "Exhibit A", "B', etc., and attach them to this 
statement of Complaint; 

If you are relying on the information of others, please indicate this and 
identify the source of the information, by name, with contact information, if 
possible. 

Please specify the number of additional pages attached, and any other 
available sources of information. 

FORMAL COMPLAINT UNDER THE COUNCI L CODE OF CONDUCT BYLAW NO. 957- 20 17 Page 2of _ 



Names of any other persons who may have witnessed the contravention(s), 
and particulars of their contact information: 

MY PERSONAL CONTACT INFORMATION: 

Address: 

Telephone Number: _______________ _______ _ 

Cell-phone Number: ___ ___ ___ ___ _______ _ 

Email address: ----- - -----------------------
Any other contact information: 

This Statement of Complaint is made and filed for the purpose of making a 
Complaint regarding the conduct of one or more Members of the City Council 
of the City of Leduc. This Statement has been filed for consideration by the 

, City Solicitor, for his or her consideration, and for no other or improper 
purpose. 

Signature of Complainant 

Date 

Personal information on this form ls being collected In accordance with the Freedom of Information and Protection Privacy Act Sections 
33 (a) and (c), and the Municipal Government Act. The personal Information will be used strictly for the purpose of Investigations 
under the Council Code of Conduct Bylaw No. 957-2017. Please contact the FOIP Coordinator with any questions regarding the 
collection of th is information at (780) 980-7177. 

FORMAL COMPLAINT UNDER THE COUNCIL CODE OF CONDUCT BYLAW NO. 957-2017 Page 3of _ 



PUBLIC COMMENTARY 

X.



 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

IN-CAMERA ITEMS 
 

 

 

 
 

Council Appointment of a Public Member to the 
Assessment Review Boards 

 
 
 
 

(Removed Pursuant to Sections 24 & 29 of the FOIP Act) 
 
 

 

 
 

Presented by: 
 

Mayor B. Young 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 



RISE & REPORT FROM 

IN-CAMERA ITEMS 

XII.



Office of Mayor Young 

Mayor's Report 
April 1 - April 15, 2018 

April 3, 2018: 
• G Krischke and S Laurion 
• Ribbon Cutting I Southfork Childcare Grand Opening 
• Joint City/County Council agenda review 
• Joint City/County Council meeting strategy 
• Joint City of Leduc/Leduc County Council meeting 

April 4, 2018: 
• Leduc-Nisku EDA I Creating Connections: Unravelling Regional Broadband workshop 
• Mock Council orientation 
• Sports Tourism photo shoot 
• "An Evening to Inspire" committee 

April 5, 2018: 
• Rotary Club 
• Budget Information session 
• Del Sveisson I Coldwell Banker Haida Realty 
• Briefing with City Manager 
• Public engagement session I 2019-2022 Strategic Plan 

April 6, 2018: 
• Tom Ruth, President & CEO, Edmonton International Airport 
• Met with Robert W. Murray, Paul Benedetto, City Manager (City of Leduc), Mayor Tanni 

Doblanko, Leduc County, Duane Coleman, Leduc County Manager 
• Joint City/County Council meeting debrief 
• Leduc Chamber Luncheon 
• Mock Council with West Haven Elementary School 
• Communications meeting 

April 9, 2018: 
• Naming Committee 
• Korynna Wolfe, Site Director, Leduc Community Hospital 
• Freson Bros Award Presentation 
• Committee-of-the-Whole 
• Regular Council 

April 10, 2018 
• Murray Hales, public member on the Edmonton Regional Airports Authority Board 
• Perry Batke, General Manager, Best Western Premier Denham Inn & Suites and Best 

Western Plus Edmonton Airport Hotel 

April 11, 2018 
• Ribbon Cutting I Cobs Bread 
• Mock Council with Caledonia Park School 



Mayor's Report 
Apr il 1-April 15, 2018 

April 12, 2018 
• Rotary Club 
• Edmonton Metropolitan Region Board 
• Traffic Advisory Committee 

April 13, 2018 
• Mock Council with Ecole Corinthia Park 
• Minister Anderson and Eli Schrader 
• Briefing with City Manager 
• Celebration of the Arts 

April 14, 2018 
• Mayor's Prayer Breakfast I City of St. Albert 
• Ribbon Cutting I Quantum IPTV Ltd. 
• The Chamber (Leduc & Wetaskiwin Regions) Business Expo+ Trade Fair 
• Seeds of Hope: Dinner and Silent Auction in support of the Leduc & District Emergency 

Shelter Association 

April 15, 2018 
• The Chamber (Leduc & Wetaskiwin Regions) Business Expo+ Trade Fair 
• Dairy Queen Fundraiser for Humboldt Broncos player and Leducian, Tyler Smith 

Appr~ed by Mayor Bob Young 

L:\Administration\Mayor\Council\Council Agenda Items\2018 Mayor Weekly Updates\Mayors Report 04-02-2018 to 04-15-2018.docx 



ADJOURNMENT 

XIV.


	00 - 2018-04-23 Council Agenda
	01 - Adoption of Agenda
	02 - Items for Discussion and Related Business
	03A - Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting - April 9, 2018
	04 - Recognition Items
	05 - Public Commentary
	06 - Public Hearing
	07A - Mayor's Poetry City Challenge - Poetry Reading
	08A - Introduction of Acting OIC
	08B - RCMP Annual Update
	08C - Municipal Grant - Leduc Arts Foundry
	09A - Bylaw No. 975-2018 - 2018 Property Tax Rate Bylaw (2nd & 3rd Readings)
	09B - Bylaw No. 970-2017 - Amendment to Land Use Bylaw (1st Reading) (Dist Und Sep Cov)
	09C - Bylaw No. 971-2017 - Amendment to Business Licence Bylaw (1st Reading)
	09D - Bylaw No. 981-2018 - Amendment to the Community Standards Bylaw (1st Reading)
	09E - Bylaw No. 957-2017 - Council Code of Conduct Bylaw (2nd & 3rd Readings)
	10 - Public Commentary
	11A - Council Appointment to the ARB
	12 - Rise and Report from In-Camera Items
	13A - Mayor's Report
	14 - Adjournment



